
AMENDED
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR

AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY
MEETING AGENDA

May 16, 2019
6:00 PM

The Mission of the City of Coalinga is to provide for the preservation of the
community character by delivering quality,  responsive City services, in an efficient 
and cost-effective   manner,  and to develop, encourage,  and promote a diversified

economic base in order to ensure the future financial stability of the City for its
citizens.

Notice is hereby given that the City Council will hold a Meeting, on May 16, 2019 in the
City Council Chambers located at 155 West Durian, Coalinga, CA. Persons with

disabilities who may need assistance should contact the City Clerk at least 24 hours
prior to this meeting at 935-1533 x113. Anyone interested in translation services should

contact the City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 935-1533 x113. The
Meeting will begin at 6:00 p.m. and the agenda will be as follows:

1. CALL TO ORDER

1.   Pledge of Allegiance
2.   Changes to the Agenda
3.   Council's Approval of Agenda

2. AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, APPOINTMENTS AND PROCLAMATIONS

1. Recognition of AFS-USA International Exchange Students Mooktri Kaeng-In and
Muriel Wegmuller

2. Recognition of Terry Brumana for 18 Years of Service to the City of Coalinga
3. Presentation of Check to the City of Coalinga's K9 Program, Coalinga PD K9

Supporters
4. Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Audited Financial Statements by the City

Auditor

3. CITIZEN COMMENTS

This section of the agenda allows members of the public to address the City Council on



any item within the jurisdiction of the Council. Members of the public, when recognized
by the Mayor, should come forward to the lectern, identify themselves and use the
microphone. Comments are normally limited to three (3) minutes. In accordance with
State Open Meeting Laws, no action will be taken by the City Council this evening and
all items will be referred to staff for follow up and a report.

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Council Consideration of Conditional Use Permit Application 19-02 and Further
Adopting Resolution No. 3897 with Conditions, to Reestablish the Legal Non-
Conforming Status of the Structure Located at 358 E. Polk Street
Sean Brewer, Community Development Director

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Check Register: 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019
2. Approval of Resolution No. 3772-B Adding Locations Approved for the Operation of

Food Truck Vendors
3. Authorize City Manager to Approve the Proposal Received from MuniTemps

Municipal Staffing Solutions for Accounting Services Related to the Preparation of
Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Audit

4. Receive Report and Approve Commercial Cannabis Regulatory Permit for PEP
Partners LLC

5. Council Consideration and Certification of an Environmental Determination for the
Phelps Ave Reconstruction Project and Further Direct Staff to File a Notice of
Exemption with the County Clerk’s Office in Compliance with the California
Environmental Quality Act

6. Approve Contract for Gimme Love to Take Over Animal Control and Shelter Services
for the City of Coalinga

7. Authorize the Police Department to Add 2 Additional Part -Time Reserve Officer
Positions and 4 Non-Paid Reserve Police Officer Positions

8. Notice of Completion for Close Sidewalk Gaps and Construct ADA Ramps Project.
Project No. PW18-001

9. Authorize the Expenditure of Grant Funds for Purchase of Park Equipment
10. Adoption of Resolution No. 3898 - Acceptance of Public Utility Easements related to

the CHRPD Sports Complex Project (Portions of APN Numbers 070-060-82T &
070-060-88T)

11. Police Department Monthly Report

6. ORDINANCE PRESENTATION, DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of Resolution No.3896 Approving Public Censure of Council Member
Tanya Stolz
Mario Zamora, City Attorney

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS

1.   City Manager's Announcements
2.   Councilmembers' Announcements/Reports



3.   Mayor's Announcements

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

9. CLOSED SESSION

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Government Code 54957.6.
CITY NEGOTIATORS: City Manager, Marissa Trejo; City Attorney, Mario Zamora.
EMPLOYEE (ORGANIZATION): Coalinga's Police Officer's Association

2. CITY MANAGER’S PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Government Code
54957(b)

10. CLOSED SESSION REPORT

Closed Session: A "Closed" or "Executive" Session of the City Council, Successor Agency,
or Public Finance Authority may be held as required for items as follows: personnel matters;
labor negotiations; security matters; providing instructions to real property negotiators; legal
counsel regarding pending litigation; and protection of records exempt from public disclosure.
Closed session will be held in the Administration Building at 155 W. Durian Avenue and any
announcements or discussion will be held at the same location following Closed Session.

11. ADJOURNMENT



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Audited Financial Statements by the City
Auditor

Meeting Date: May 16, 2018
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Jasmin Bains, Financial Services Director

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

No recommendation.  Mr. Osvaldo Gutierrez from Price, Paige & Company will be presenting the Audited
Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2016-2017.

II.    BACKGROUND:

III.   DISCUSSION:

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

None 

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
Coalinga_Financial_Statements___Single_Audit_FY2017-Combined-Revised.pdf Audited Financial Statements FY 2016-2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Coalinga, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Coalinga, California (the “City”) as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Coalinga, California, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America required to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic financial 
statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
information on pages 48 through 50, the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability on page 52, and the Schedule of 
Contributions on page 53 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 2, 2019, on our 
consideration of the City of Coalinga’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of 
Coalinga’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Clovis, California 
May 2, 2019 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments 6,821,347$        5,514,592$        12,335,939$      
Restricted cash with fiscal agent 2,636,397          2,840,967          5,477,364          
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 1,053,192          957,269             2,010,461          
Internal balances 12,786,455        (12,786,455)       -                         
Advances to the Successor Agency 2,240,000          -                         2,240,000          
Notes receivable 3,079,885          -                         3,079,885          
Lease receivable 11,301               -                         11,301               
Bonds receivable 7,094,942          -                         7,094,942          
Interest receivable - long-term 1,151,260          3,353                 1,154,613          
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 3,119,967          1,133,471          4,253,438          

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 18,905,450        16,103,010        35,008,460        

Total assets 58,900,196        13,766,207        72,666,403        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,141,258          331,231             1,472,489          

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,141,258          331,231             1,472,489          

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 367,550             534,334             901,884             
Accrued liabilities 170,826             26,576               197,402             
Deposits and other liabilities 89,679               24,500               114,179             
Accrued interest payable 309,021             -                         309,021             
Due to employees 748,625             -                         748,625             
Unearned revenue 6,662                 -                         6,662                 
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 1,700,876          46,377               1,747,253          

Due in more than one year 22,364,964        170,836             22,535,800        

Net pension liability 197,361             39,136               236,497             

Total liabilities 25,955,564        841,759             26,797,323        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 141,622             30,678               172,300             

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 
(Continued) 

 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 19,435,417        7,131,127          26,566,544        
Restricted for:

Emergency Medical Transportation 1,235,432          -                         1,235,432          
Community development 3,948,243          -                         3,948,243          
Law enforcement 21,066               -                         21,066               
Storm drainage and flood control 65,976               -                         65,976               
Capital projects and improvements 1,832,101          -                         1,832,101          
Streets and bridges 219,647             -                         219,647             
Transit system 7,993                 -                         7,993                 
Street maintenance 2,019,933          -                         2,019,933          
LTF Article 8 783,193             -                         783,193             
Public buildings and facilities 51,617               -                         51,617               
EDA community buildings 46,424               -                         46,424               
EDA revolving loans 58,376               -                         58,376               
Debt service 3,513,526          -                         3,513,526          

Unrestricted 705,324             6,093,874          6,799,198          

Total net position 33,944,268$      13,225,001$      47,169,269$       
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Functions/programs:
 Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government 1,205,736$        120,820$           -$                       -$                       (1,084,916)$       -$                       (1,084,916)$       
Public works 2,208,114          190,463             1,046,428          1,712,842          741,619          -                     741,619          
Community development 1,914,043          616,817             83,917               1,289,775          76,466            -                         76,466            
Public safety 6,000,094          1,506,535          1,049,708          -                         (3,443,851)     -                         (3,443,851)     
Interest on long-term debt 1,265,162          -                         -                         -                         (1,265,162)     -                     (1,265,162)     

Total governmental activities 12,593,149        2,434,635          2,180,053          3,002,617          (4,975,844)         -                         (4,975,844)         

Business-type activities:
Water 4,725,229          4,684,712          -                         -                         -                         (40,517)              (40,517)              
Sewer 1,139,268          1,187,091          -                         -                         -                         47,823               47,823               
Natural gas 1,684,472          1,678,287          -                         -                         -                         (6,185)                (6,185)                

Sanitation 1,784,154          1,736,367          -                         5,000                 -                         (42,787)              (42,787)              

Total business-type activities 9,333,123          9,286,457          -                         5,000                 -                         (41,666)              (41,666)              

Total 21,926,272$      11,721,092$      2,180,053$        3,007,617$        (4,975,844)         (41,666)              (5,017,510)         

General revenues:                                                                                                                                                                                       
Property taxes 3,022,368       -                     3,022,368          
Sales taxes 781,689             -                     781,689             
Franchise and other taxes 373,319             -                     373,319             
Special assessments 92,473               92,473               
Rents 44,365               22,700            67,065               
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,392,553          12,402            1,404,955          
Gain on sale of assets 3,583,797          -                     3,583,797          
Miscellaneous 90,654               154,449             245,103             

Total general revenues                                                                                      9,381,218          189,551             9,570,769          

Changes in net position                                                                                     4,405,374          147,885             4,553,259          

Net position - beginning 29,538,894        13,077,116        42,616,010        

Net position - ending                                                                                         33,944,268$      13,225,001$      47,169,269$      

Changes in Net Position
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

General

Fund

Coalinga Public 

Financing 

Authority Debt 

Service Fund

Low-Moderate

Housing

Asset Special 

Revenue Fund

Grants Special 

Revenue Fund

Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 538,051$           1,587,733$        94,311$            1,180,168$        3,421,084$       6,821,347$       
Restricted cash with fiscal agent -                         1,873,604          762,793            -                        -                       2,636,397         
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 252,830             -                         13,735              718,759             75,405              1,060,729         
Due from other funds 340,578             -                         -                       -                        -                       340,578            
Advances to other funds -                         12,950,000        -                       -                        -                       12,950,000       
Advances to the Successor Agency -                         2,240,000          -                       -                        -                       2,240,000         
Notes receivable -                         -                         3,079,885         -                        -                       3,079,885         
Lease receivable 11,301               -                         -                       -                        -                       11,301              
Bonds receivable -                         7,094,942          -                       -                        -                       7,094,942         

Long-term interest receivable -                         1,143,723          -                       -                        -                       1,143,723         

Total assets 1,142,760$        26,890,002$      3,950,724$       1,898,927$        3,496,489$       37,378,902$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 273,085$           -$                       2,481$              66,826$             25,158$            367,550$          
Accrued liabilities 165,954             -                         -                       -                        4,872                170,826            
Deposits and other liabilities 84,379               -                         -                       -                        5,300                89,679              
Due to other funds -                         -                         -                       -                        6,123                6,123                
Advances from other funds -                         -                         -                       -                        498,000            498,000            
Due to employees 748,625             -                         -                       -                        -                       748,625            

Unearned revenue -                         -                         -                       -                        6,662                6,662                

Total liabilities 1,272,043          -                         2,481                66,826               546,115            1,887,465         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue -                         -                         1,579,885         -                        -                       1,579,885         

Total deferred inflows of resources -                         -                         1,579,885         -                        -                       1,579,885         

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Nonspendable:
Leases receivable 11,301               -                         -                       -                        -                       11,301              

Restricted: 
Community development -                         -                         2,368,358         -                        -                       2,368,358         
Emergency Medical Transportation 1,235,432          -                         -                       -                        -                       1,235,432         
Law enforcement -                         -                         -                       -                        21,066              21,066              
Storm drainage and flood control -                         -                         -                       -                        65,976              65,976              
Capital projects and improvements -                         -                         -                       1,832,101          -                       1,832,101         
Streets and bridges -                         -                         -                       -                        219,647            219,647            
Transit system -                         -                         -                       -                        7,993                7,993                
Street maintenance -                         -                         -                       -                        2,019,933         2,019,933         
LTF Article 8 -                         -                         -                       -                        783,193            783,193            
Public buildings and facilities -                         -                         -                       -                        51,617              51,617              
EDA community buildings -                         -                         -                       -                        46,424              46,424              
EDA revolving loans -                         -                         -                       -                        58,376              58,376              
Debt service -                         26,890,002        -                       -                        50,776              26,940,778       

Assigned:
Subsequent year's budget: 
  appropriation of fund balance 557,710             -                         -                       -                        -                       557,710            

Unassigned (1,933,726)         -                         -                       -                        (374,627)          (2,308,353)       

Total fund balances (deficits) (129,283)            26,890,002        2,368,358         1,832,101          2,950,374         33,911,552       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
  resources, and fund balances (deficits) 1,142,760$        26,890,002$      3,950,724$       1,898,927$        3,496,489$       37,378,902$     

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

  different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds 33,911,552$       

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental
activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental funds.          22,025,417 

Other long-term assets are not available resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.            1,579,885 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.         (24,065,840)

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, interest payable is generally not accrued
as a liability in the balance sheet of governmental funds.              (309,021)

Net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of
resources are not due in the current period and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds.               802,275 

33,944,268$       Net position of governmental activities

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are

 
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

General

Fund

Coalinga Public 

Financing 

Authority Debt 

Service Fund

Low-Moderate

Housing

Asset Special 

Revenue Fund

Grants Special 

Revenue Fund

Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments 4,158,867$        -$                       -$                      -$                      92,473$          4,251,340$        
Licenses, permits and impact fees 533,241             -                         -                        -                        191,481          724,722             
Intergovernmental 974,580             -                         1,404,663          1,727,374          1,172,958       5,279,575          
Charges for services 1,634,189          -                         -                        -                        21,976            1,656,165          
Fines and forfeitures 24,838               -                         -                        -                        -                      24,838               
Rental 73,275               -                         -                        -                        -                      73,275               
Interest 8,254                 1,363,295           814                    4,091                 16,099            1,392,553          

Miscellaneous 90,018               -                         -                        -                        -                      90,018               

Total revenues 7,497,262          1,363,295           1,405,477          1,731,465          1,494,987       13,492,486        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 861,321             -                         -                        -                        -                      861,321             
Public works 502,055             -                         -                        22,610               818,819          1,343,484          
Community development 543,126             -                         1,340,576          2,454                 449                 1,886,605          
Public safety 6,463,442          -                         -                        11,738               -                      6,475,180          

Capital outlay 14,479               -                         -                        1,714,645          361,721          2,090,845          
Debt service:

Principal 156,831             715,000              -                        -                        62,984            934,815             

Interest and fiscal charges 4,675                 1,193,083           -                        -                        24,980            1,222,738          

Total expenditures 8,545,929          1,908,083           1,340,576          1,751,447          1,268,953       14,814,988        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures (1,048,667)        (544,788)            64,901               (19,982)             226,034          (1,322,502)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital lease -                        -                         -                        -                        216,963          216,963             

Sale of general capital assets 4,087,151          -                         -                        -                        -                      4,087,151          

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,087,151          -                         -                        -                        216,963          4,304,114          

Net changes in fund balances 3,038,484          (544,788)            64,901               (19,982)             442,997          2,981,612          

Fund balances (deficit), beginning (3,167,767)        27,434,790         2,303,457          1,852,083          2,507,377       30,929,940        

Fund balances (deficit), ending (129,283)$         26,890,002$       2,368,358$        1,832,101$        2,950,374$     33,911,552$       



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

2,981,612$         

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized. This is the amount
of capital assets recorded. 2,275,596           

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported on the government-wide
statement of activities, but it does not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as an expenditure in the
governmental funds. (1,347,002)          

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e.,
sales, trade-ins, and donations) is a decrease in net position. (457,534)             

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in governmental funds, but the

repayment reduced long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 717,852              

Amortization of long-term debt premiums and discounts do not require the use of
current financial resources and is not reported as an expenditure in the
governmental funds. 45,220                

Accreted interest expense reported in the statement of activities does not require
the use of current financial resources; therefore, it is not reported as an
expenditure in the governmental funds. (105,478)             

Compensated absences expense reported in the statement of activities does not
require the use of current financial resources; therefore, it is not reported as an
expenditure in the governmental funds. 84,330                

Changes to net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows
of resources do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 270,593              

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the  governmental funds. (78,396)               

Change in accrued interest is not reported in the governmental funds. 18,581                

4,405,374$         Change in net position of governmental activities

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

 
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 

Natural

Water Sewer Gas Sanitation Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

   Cash and investments -$                    3,079,895$     2,434,697$     -$                 5,514,592$     

Restricted cash with fiscal agent 2,138,406       702,561          -                      -                   2,840,967       
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 490,568          137,247          102,786          226,668       957,269          
Interest receivable -                      2,366              987                 -                   3,353              

Total current assets 2,628,974       3,922,069       2,538,470       226,668       9,316,181       

Noncurrent assets:

Advances to other funds -                      -                      378,000          -                   378,000          

Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 85,564            1,047,907       -                      -                   1,133,471       

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 10,735,652     4,686,908       412,482          267,968       16,103,010     

Total noncurrent assets 10,821,216     5,734,815       790,482          267,968       17,614,481     

Total assets 13,450,190     9,656,884       3,328,952       494,636       26,930,662     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions 165,742          64,995            87,498            12,996         331,231          

Total deferred outflows of resources 165,742          64,995            87,498            12,996         331,231          

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 190,854          31,503            41,188            270,789       534,334          
Accrued liabilities 12,913            5,752              6,971              940              26,576            
Deposits 24,500            -                      -                      -                   24,500            
Due to other funds 199,363          -                      -                      135,092       334,455          

Current portion of long-term debt -                      46,377            -                      -                   46,377            

Total current liabilities 427,630          83,632            48,159            406,821       966,242          

Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds 9,740,000       3,090,000       -                      -                   12,830,000     
Compensated absences 44,715            19,350            32,554            4,653           101,272          
Long-term debt -                      69,564            -                      -                   69,564            

Net pension liability 19,552            7,728              10,387            1,469           39,136            

Total noncurrent liabilities 9,804,267       3,186,642       42,941            6,122           13,039,972     

Total liabilities 10,231,897     3,270,274       91,100            412,943       14,006,214     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 15,326            6,058              8,143              1,151           30,678            

Total deferred inflows of resources 15,326            6,058              8,143              1,151           30,678            

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,219,622       3,231,055       412,482          267,968       7,131,127       
Restricted for:

Capital projects and improvements 2,138,406       702,561          -                      -                   2,840,967       

Unrestricted (1,989,319)      2,511,931       2,904,725       (174,430)      3,252,907       

Total net position 3,368,709$     6,445,547$     3,317,207$     93,538$       13,225,001$   

Business-Type Activities

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Natural

Water Sewer Gas Sanitation Total
Operating revenues:

Charges for services 4,627,680$    1,185,591$   1,678,287$    1,736,367$   9,227,925$     

Connection charges 2,775             1,500            -                     -                    4,275              

Total operating revenues 4,630,455      1,187,091     1,678,287      1,736,367     9,232,200       

Operating expenses:
Personnel services 1,031,102      382,786        476,308         77,669          1,967,865       
Contractual services and utilities 1,317,689      206,610        386,798         1,606,868     3,517,965       
Supplies and materials 715,321         124,009        128,882         22,952          991,164          
Cost of sales 606,223         -                    654,870         -                    1,261,093       
Bad debt 49,167           15,017          (3,635)            22,964          83,513            

Depreciation 422,543         261,573        41,249           53,701          779,066          

Total operating expenses 4,142,045      989,995        1,684,472      1,784,154     8,600,666       

Operating income (loss) 488,410         197,096        (6,185)            (47,787)         631,534          

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Intergovernmental -                     -                    -                     5,000            5,000              
Development impact fees 54,257           -                    -                     -                    54,257            
Investment earnings 2,361             6,340            3,647             54                 12,402            
Rental income -                     22,700          -                     -                    22,700            
Miscellaneous 152,490         1,959            -                     -                    154,449          
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (102,707)        -                    -                     -                    (102,707)         

Interest expenses (480,477)        (149,273)       -                     -                    (629,750)         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (374,076)        (118,274)       3,647             5,054            (483,649)         

Income (loss) before transfers 114,334         78,822          (2,538)            (42,733)         147,885          

Changes in net position 114,334         78,822          (2,538)            (42,733)         147,885          

Net position, beginning 3,254,375      6,366,725     3,319,745      136,271        13,077,116     

Net position, ending 3,368,709$    6,445,547$   3,317,207$    93,538$        13,225,001$   

Business-Type Activities

 
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Natural
Water Sewer Gas Sanitation Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from customers and users 4,511,804$    1,170,317$   1,642,896$   1,698,117$   9,023,134$    
Payments to suppliers and service providers (2,722,445)     (315,518)       (1,156,109)    (1,491,019)    (5,685,091)     

Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (1,022,442)     (387,797)       (469,555)       (71,369)         (1,951,163)     

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 766,917         467,002        17,232          135,729        1,386,880      

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Other receipts 152,490         1,959            -                    -                    154,449         

Payments to (from) other funds (424,088)        667,767        -                    (144,224)       99,455           

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
  financing activities (271,598)        669,726        -                    (144,224)       253,904         

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital grants -                     -                    -                    5,000            5,000             
Development impact fees received 54,257           -                    -                    -                    54,257           
Rental income received -                     22,700          -                    -                    22,700           
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 5,401             (55,097)         (31,494)         -                    (81,190)          
Principal paid on capital debt -                     (42,512)         -                    -                    (42,512)          
Interest paid on capital debt (480,477)        (149,273)       -                    -                    (629,750)        

Proceeds from the sale of assets (102,707)        -                    -                    -                    (102,707)        

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
 financing activities (523,526)        (224,182)       (31,494)         5,000            (774,202)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest on investments 2,361             3,974            2,660            54                 9,049             

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,361             3,974            2,660            54                 9,049             

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (25,846)          916,520        (11,602)         (3,441)           875,631         

Cash and cash investments, July 1 2,164,252      2,865,936     2,446,299     3,441            7,479,928      

Cash and cash investments, June 30 2,138,406$    3,782,456$   2,434,697$   -$                  8,355,559$    

Business-Type Activities

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

(Continued) 
 
 

Natural

Water Sewer Gas Sanitation Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 488,410$       197,096$      (6,185)$         (47,787)$       631,534$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 422,543         261,573        41,249          53,701          779,066         
Bad debt 49,167           15,017          (3,635)           22,964          83,513           

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (122,251)        (16,774)         (35,391)         (38,250)         (212,666)        
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources (38,830)          (27,638)         (24,427)         (1,627)           (92,522)          
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (83,212)          15,101          14,441          138,801        85,131           
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 2,053             1,664            2,513            (450)              5,780             
Increase (decrease) in deposits and other liabilities 3,600             -                    -                    -                    3,600             
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (2,414)            2,269            3,956            4,641            8,452             
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources (34,474)          (12,784)         (15,586)         (3,129)           (65,973)          

Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 82,325           31,478          40,297          6,865            160,965         

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 766,917$       467,002$      17,232$        135,729$      1,386,880$    

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
to the Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments -$                   3,079,895$   2,434,697$   -$                  5,514,592$    

Cash with fiscal agent 2,138,406      702,561        -                    -                    2,840,967      

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,138,406$    3,782,456$   2,434,697$   -$                  8,355,559$    

Noncash Noncapital, Capital and Related Financing,
and Investing Activities:

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 102,707$       -$                  -$                  -$                  102,707$       

Business-Type Activities

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Coalinga Total
Successor Ayres/Beason Private Purpose

Agency Scholarship Trust Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 1,309,306$            50,927$              1,360,233$         
Restricted cash with fiscal agent 1,375,062              -                          1,375,062           
Interest receivable 823                        52                       875                     
Notes receivable 281,453                 -                          281,453              

Assets held for resale 2,549,086              -                          2,549,086           

Total assets 5,515,730              50,979                5,566,709           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,617                     -                          4,617                  
Accrued liabilities 2,071                     -                          2,071                  
Deposits and other liabilities 15,900                   -                          15,900                
Interest payable 110,867                 -                          110,867              
Unearned revenue 600                        -                          600                     
Advance from the City of Coalinga 2,240,000              -                          2,240,000           
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 490,000                 -                          490,000              

Due in more than one year 7,747,252              -                          7,747,252           

Total liabilities 10,611,307            -                          10,611,307         

NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for:

Redevelopment dissolution and other purposes (5,095,577)             -                          (5,095,577)          

Scholarship -                             50,979                50,979                

Total net position (deficit) (5,095,577)$           50,979$              (5,044,598)$        
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 
Coalinga Total

Successor Ayres/Beason Private Purpose
Agency Scholarship Trust Funds

ADDITIONS
Redevelopment property tax revenues 1,677,330$          -$                         1,677,330$          
Investment earnings 21,413                 136                      21,549                 

Gain (loss) on sales of property 1,637,293            -                           1,637,293            

Total additions 3,336,036            136                      3,336,172            

DEDUCTIONS

Administrative costs 253,907               -                           253,907               
Interest and fiscal agency expenses 664,058               -                           664,058               

Distribution to County 2,028,793            -                           2,028,793            

Total deductions 2,946,758            -                           2,946,758            

Changes in net position 389,278               136                      389,414               

Net position (deficit), beginning (5,484,855)           50,843                 (5,434,012)           

Net position (deficit), ending (5,095,577)$         50,979$               (5,044,598)$         
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The City of Coalinga, California (the “City”) was incorporated as a general law city in 1906.  The City operates 
under a Council-Manager form of government.  The City's major operations include public safety; highways 
and streets; water, sewer, natural gas, transit and refuse collection; parks and recreation; building inspection; 
public improvements; planning and zoning, and general administrative services.  The accompanying financial 
statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered 
to be financially accountable.  Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s 
operations, even though they are legally separate entities.  Thus, blended component units are appropriately 
presented as funds of the primary government.  There are no discretely presented component units included 
in these financial statements. 
 
Blended component unit.  The Coalinga Public Financing Authority (“CPFA”) was established in 1991 
through a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City, the Agency, and the Coalinga-Huron Unified 
School District.  The formation of the joint powers authority was approved by the City Council who is also 
designated as the Board of Directors for the CPFA.  The City Manager is appointed Secretary with the City 
staff providing all support services.  The purpose of the CPFA is solely to provide funds from the sale of 
revenue bonds to finance or refinance the costs of various projects for the City.  The City set up the CPFA to 
act as a financing/lending type institution only.  The CPFA/City legislative meetings are held concurrently.  The 
CPFA is reported as a debt service fund and does not issue separate financial statements. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting 
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.  Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended 
purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and 
contractual provisions.  The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial 
requirements. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements – The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the primary government (the City) and its component unit.  These statements include the 
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities.  Eliminations have been made to 
minimize the double-counting of internal activities.  These statements distinguish between the governmental 
and business-type activities of the City.  Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.  Business-type activities are financed in 
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 
different identifiable activity of the City’s business-type activities and for each function of the City’s 
governmental activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function 
and, therefore, are included in the program expense reported for individual function.  Certain indirect costs, 
which cannot be identified and broken down, are included in the program expense reported for individual 
functions and activities.  Program revenues include, 1) fines, fees, and charges paid by the recipients of goods 
and services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead as general revenues. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
Fund Financial Statements – The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, 
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units.  Separate statements for each fund category – 
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is on 
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.  All remaining governmental 
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.  Major individual governmental and 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.  An accompanying 
schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in funds and changes in fund balances as 
presented in these statements to the net position and changes in net position presented in the government-
wide financial statements. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.   
 
The Coalinga Public Financing Authority Debt Service Fund is used to account for revenues and 
expenditures of the CPFA Revenue Bonds.  Bond proceeds are to be used to finance or refinance the 
costs of various improvement projects for the City and other public agencies. 
 
The Low-Moderate Housing Asset Special Revenue Fund accounts for monies received and expended 
for low and moderate income housing activities pursuant to AB1484. 
 
The Grants Special Revenue Fund accounts for monies received and expended related to grant funded 
activity from various agencies. 

 
Enterprise fund financial statements include a statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position, a statement of cash flows for each major enterprise fund and nonmajor funds 
aggregated. 
 
The City has four major enterprise funds: the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Natural Gas Fund, and Sanitation 
Fund, which are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
business enterprise.  In an enterprise fund, the intent of the City Council is that costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing services to the general public, on a continuing basis, be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 

The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water production and distribution operations. 
 

The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sanitary sewer system operations. 
 

The Natural Gas Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s natural gas system. 
 

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s sanitation system. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
The City's fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government.  The fund’s activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a 
statement of changes in fiduciary net position.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide 
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.  
Fiduciary funds are presented on an economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to accounts for assets held by the City as trustee for the Successor 
Agency and Ayres/Beason Scholarships. 
 
The City reports the following private purpose trust funds: 

The Coalinga Successor Agency Fund accounts for the assets and liabilities of the former 
Redevelopment Agency and its allocated revenue to pay estimated installment payments of the 
enforceable obligations until the obligations of the former Redevelopment Agency are paid in full and 
assets have been liquidated. 

The Ayres/Beason Scholarship Fund accounts for the assets and liabilities of the Ayres/Beason 
scholarship. 

 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and 
basis of accounting.  Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current 
financial resources or economic resources.  The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or 
events for recognition in the financial statements. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements – Governmental funds are reported using current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues 
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if 
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment 
is due.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  Issuance of 
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period.  Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time 
requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue 
source (within 60 days of year-end).  Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the 
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the 
amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of 
year-end).  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received 
by the government.  
 
The proprietary and private-purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the water fund, sewer 
fund, natural gas fund, sanitation fund, and utility billing funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.  
 
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents represent the City's cash bank accounts including, but not limited to, certificates of 
deposit, money market funds and cash management pools for reporting purposes in the Statement of Cash 
Flows.  Additionally, investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased are included 
as cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows. 
 
Deposits and Investments 
 
The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds.  Interest earnings as 
result of this pooling are distributed to the appropriate funds based on year-end cash balances in each fund.  
Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund. 
 
Investments of the pool include only those investments authorized by the California Government Code such 
as, United States Treasury securities, agencies guaranteed by the United States Government, registered state 
warrants, and other investments.  Investments primarily consist of deposits in the State of California Local 
Agency Investment Fund.  Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost. 
 
Restricted Cash with Fiscal Agent 
 
The City has funds held by trustee or fiscal agents pledged to the payment or security of bonds and are 
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts 
and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.  The City reports restricted cash with fiscal agent in the 
CPFA debt service fund, the Water and Sewer enterprise funds, and the Coalinga Successor Agency private-
purpose trust fund.  Amounts reported in these funds are restricted for debt service payments and specific 
projects. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
Accounts Receivables 
 
These are comprised primarily of revenues that have been earned but not yet received by the City as of June 
30 from individual customers, private entities and government agencies.  In addition, this account includes 
accrued revenues due from other agencies for expenditure driven types of grants whereby the City accrues 
grant revenues for expenditures/expenses incurred but not yet reimbursed by the grantors.  Also, property 
taxes earned but not received from the County of Fresno as of June 30 and unbilled services for utility and 
other services delivered to customers but not billed as of June 30, are included in this account.  Management 
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by evaluating individual customer accounts.  Utility customer 
closed accounts are written off when deemed uncollectible.  Recoveries to utility customer receivables 
previously written off are recorded when received.  
 
The City uses an independent billing company to bill and collect on all ambulance services.  Due to the large 
amount of bad debts and write-offs, up to 70% of billings, it is the City's policy to report as accounts receivable 
only those funds that are collected within the three-month period following June 30 of each year. 
 
Property Tax Calendar 
 
Fresno County is responsible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of property taxes for all taxing 
jurisdictions.  Property taxes are levied in equal installments on November 1 and February 1.  They become 
delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.  The lien date is January 1 of each year. Property 
taxes are accounted for in the General Fund.  Property tax revenues are recognized when they become 
measurable and available to finance current liabilities.  The City considers property taxes as available if they 
are collected within 60 days after year-end.  Property tax on the unsecured roll are due on the January 1 lien 
date and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.  However, unsecured property taxes are not susceptible 
to year-end accrual. 
 
The City is permitted by Article XIIIA of the State of California Constitution (known as Proposition 13) to levy a 
maximum tax of $1 per $100 of full cash value. 
 
Interfund Transactions 
 
During the course of operations the City has activity between funds for various purposes.  Any residual 
balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds.  
While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the 
preparation of the government-wide financial statements.  Balances between the funds included in 
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net 
amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.  Similarly, balances between 
the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net 
amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column. 
 
Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds.  In fund 
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out.  While reported in fund 
financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial 
statements.  Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the 
net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column.  Similarly, balances between the 
funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in 
the business-type activities column. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
Assets Held for Resale 
 
Assets held by the City or the Coalinga Successor Agency for the purpose of improving and reselling are 
accounted for in the account.  Property is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds 
and as assets in the Government-Wide Financial Statements to the extent the City's capitalization threshold is 
met. 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column 
in the Government- Wide Financial Statements.  Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with 
an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets 
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets 
are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized.  Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values, 
change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized.  Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost and 
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is 
included in the results of operations. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities are included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated 
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Class
Useful Life

Years

Infrastructure 10 - 50
Buildings, structures and improvements 5 - 40
Water storage rights 40
Transmission and distribution equipment 5 - 50
Rolling equipment 2 - 30
Office equipment 3 - 10  

 
Unearned Revenue 
 
Unearned revenue is that for which recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue recognition 
criteria have not been met.  The City typically records intergovernmental revenues (primary grants and 
subventions) received but not earned (qualifying expenditures not yet incurred). 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
Unavailable Revenue 
 
In the fund financial statements, unavailable revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet met the 
revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The City records unavailable 
revenue for transactions for which revenues have been earned, but for which funds are not available to meet 
current financial obligations.   
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
The City recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources.  A deferred outflow of resources is defined as 
a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.  A deferred 
inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a future 
reporting period.  Refer to Notes 9 and 10 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources the City has recognized. 
 
Interest Payable 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable of long-term debt is recognized as the liability is 
incurred for the governmental fund-types and proprietary-fund types. 
 
In the fund financial statements, proprietary fund-types recognize the interest payable when the liability is 
incurred. 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
In the government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred 
and amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the bonds.  Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount.  Gains or losses from refunding of debt are reported as deferred 
outflows or inflows of resources and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or refunding 
debt.  Amortization of these balances is recorded as a component of interest expense. 
 
Prepaid bond insurance costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the bonds. 
Amortization of these balances is recorded as a component of operating expenses. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
It is the City's policy to permit all employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, sick pay and 
compensatory time benefits.  Those employees on shift work schedules may also accumulate hours for 
holiday time benefits. 
 
Vested or accumulated vacation, holiday and eligible sick leave along with any compensation time that is 
expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure in the fund 
financial statements of the Governmental Fund that will pay for it.  Amounts not expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources are reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 
 
Vested leave of Proprietary Funds are recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits accrue. 
 
Pensions 
 
In government-wide financial statements, pensions are recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of 
accounting (see Note 9 and the RSI section immediately following the notes to financial statements), 
regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
The City recognizes a net pension liability for each qualified pension plan in which it participates, which 
represents the excess of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the qualified pension plan, 
measured as of the City’s fiscal year-end or the City’s proportionate share thereof in the case of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan.  Changes in the net pension liability during the period are recorded as pension 
expense, or as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the 
change, in the period incurred.  Those changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of 
resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs 
and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the weighted average remaining 
service life of all participants including retirees, in the respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a 
component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they arose.  Projected earnings on qualified 
pension plan investments are recognized as a component of pension expense.  Differences between 
projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of 
resources and amortized as a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period 
beginning with the period in which the difference occurred. 
 
Classification of Net Position 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following categories: 

 
 Net investment in capital assets – This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, 

into one component of net position.  Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce this 
category. 

 Restricted net position – This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.   

 Unrestricted net position – This category represents the net position of the City, which is not 
restricted for any project or other purpose. 

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are depleted first before 
the unrestricted resources are used. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
Fund Balances 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific 
purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent.  The classifications used in 
the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 Nonspendable:  This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) 
not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.   

 Restricted:  This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of 
the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

 Committed:  This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant 
to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council.  These amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type 
of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed.  This 
classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been 
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.  

 Assigned:  This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for 
a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.  This intent can be expressed by the City 
Council or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the City manager through the 
budgetary process.  This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all 
governmental funds except for the General Fund.   

 Unassigned: This classification includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or 
restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the City.  

 
The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then 
assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned 
resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.  
 
Encumbrances 
 
The City does not use encumbrance accounting. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 
 
Violations of Legal or Contractual Provisions 
 
In accordance with applicable sections of the California Government Code and the Coalinga Municipal Code, 
the City prepares and legally adopts an annual balanced budget on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for 
the General Fund, specific Special Revenue Funds, and specific Capital Projects Funds.  Budget plans are 
adopted for Proprietary Funds.  A proposed budget is presented to the City Council during May of each year 
for review.  The Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations within 
the revenues and reserves estimated as available.  Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted 
appropriations at the fund level.  Supplementary appropriations which alter the total expenditures of any fund, 
or expenditures in excess of total budgeted fund appropriations, must be approved by the City Council. 
 
All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered. 
 
Deficit Fund Balance 
 
The General Fund has deficit net fund balance as of June 30, 2017 of $129,283.  The deficit is expected to be 
relieved from the sale of the Claremont property and through the legalization of medical and recreational 
marijuana. 
 
The Development Impact Fee capital projects fund has deficit net fund balance as of June 30, 2017 of 
$37,387.  The deficit is expected to be relieved from future revenues or transfers from the other funds. 
 
Deficit Net Position 
 
Prior to February 1, 2012, the California Redevelopment Law provided tax increment financing as a source of 
revenue to redevelopment agencies to fund redevelopment activities.  Once a redevelopment area was 
adopted, the former Agency could only receive tax increments to the extent that it could show on an annual 
basis that it had incurred indebtedness that must be repaid with tax increments.  Due to the nature of the 
redevelopment financing, the former Agency liabilities exceeded assets.  Therefore, the Agency historically 
carried a deficit, which was expected to be reduced as future tax increment revenues were received and used 
to reduce its outstanding long-term debt.  This deficit was transferred to the Coalinga Successor Agency on 
February 1, 2012.  At June 30, 2017, Coalinga Successor Agency has a deficit of $5,095,577, which will be 
eliminated with future redevelopment property tax revenues distributed from the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund administered by the County’s Auditor-Controller. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 
Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 12,335,939$     
Restricted cash with fiscal agent 5,477,364         

Fiduciary Funds:
Cash and investments 1,360,233         

Restricted cash with fiscal agent 1,375,062         

Total cash and investments 20,548,598$    
 

 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following: 
 

Cash on hand 2,652$              
Deposits with financial institutions 7,971,172         

Investments 12,574,774       

Total cash and investments 20,548,598$    
 

 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government 
Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of 
the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest 
rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  The City’s investment policy does not contain any 
specific provisions intended to limit the City’s exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk.  This table does not address investments of debts proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed 
by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California 
Government Code or the City’s investment policy. 
 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of Investment In

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer

Local agency bonds 5 years None None 
U.S. treasury obligations 5 years None None 
U.S. agency securities 5 years None None 
Banker's acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable certificates of deposit 5 years 30% None 
Repurchase agreements 1 year None None 
Reverse repurchase agreements 92 days 20% None 
Medium-term notes 5 years 30% None 
Mutual funds N/A 20% 10%
Money market mutual funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage pass-through securities 5 years 20% None 
County pooled investment funds N/A None None 
Local agency investment fund (LAIF) N/A None None 
JPA pools (other investment pools) N/A None None  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
Investments of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements 
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.  The 
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee.  The table 
also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risks, credit risk, and 
concentration of credit risk. 
 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of Investment In

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer

U.S. treasury obligations None None None 
U.S. agency securities None None None 
Banker's acceptances 180 days None None 
Commercial paper 270 days None None 
Money market mutual funds N/A None None 
Investment contracts None None None 
Certificates of deposits 1 year None None 
Repurchase agreements 30 days None None 
Local agency investment fund (LAIF) N/A None None 
Municipal bonds None None None  

 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
maintaining funds in liquid, short-term investments which can be converted to cash when necessary to meet 
disbursement requirements.  The City's investment in the Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”) is available 
for withdraw in one business day. 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by bond 
trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the 
City’s investments by maturity: 
 

Remaining Maturity (in months)

Fair 12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More Than
Investment Type Value or Less Months Months 60 Months 

State investment pool 5,722,879$   5,722,879$   -$                   -$                   -$                  
Held by bond trustee:

Deposit custody account 667,950        667,950        -                     -                     -                    
Money market funds 5,183,943     5,183,943     -                     -                     -                    
Investment contracts 1,000,002     -                    -                     -                     1,000,002      

Total 12,574,774$ 11,574,772$ -$                   -$                   1,000,002$     
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California 
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for 
each investment type. 
 

Minimum 
Fair Legal Not 

Investment Type Value Rating AAAm Rated 

State investment pool 5,722,879$   N/A -$                  5,722,879$   
Held by bond trustee:

Deposit custody account 667,950        N/A -                    667,950        
Money market funds 5,183,943     A 5,183,943     -                    
Investment contracts 1,000,002     N/A -                    1,000,002     

Total 12,574,774$ 5,183,943$   7,390,831$   

Ratings as of Year-End 

 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the failure of any one issuer would place an undue financial burden 
on the City.  The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in 
any one issuer beyond that stipulated in the California Government Code.  Investments in any one issuer 
(other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools that represent 5% or more 
of total investments by reporting unit are as follows: 
 

$1,000,002 of the cash and investments reported in the Coalinga Public Financing Authority debt service 
fund are held in the form of nonnegotiable unrated investment contract issued by Westdeutsche 
Landesbank Girozentrale that matures on September 15, 2021. 
 
$667,950 of the cash and investments (including amounts held by bond trustee) reported in the 
Successor Agency Trust Fund are held in the form of the above-described Reliance Preferred Deposit 
Custody account fund. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
city will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
possession of an outside party.  The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other 
than the following provision for deposits: the California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by the state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under the state law (unless so waived by the government unit).  The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by 
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 
 
The carrying amounts of the City’s cash deposits totaled $7,970,638 at June 30, 2017.  Bank balances were 
$3,415,000, the total amount of which was insured and/or collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institutions in the City’s name. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair value of 
the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon 
the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
 

NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual governmental major funds and aggregate governmental 
nonmajor funds, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
 

 General

Fund 

Financing 

Authority Debt 

Service Fund

Low-Moderate

Housing

Asset Grants Fund

Nonmajor 

Governmental

Funds Total

Receivables:
Accounts receivable 92,730$        -$                  123$             1,132$           75,405$        169,390$      
Due from other governments 160,100        -                    13,612          717,627         -                    891,339        

Gross receivables 252,830        -                    13,735          718,759         75,405          1,060,729     

Less: allowance for uncollectibles -                    -                    -                    -                     -                    -                    

Net receivable 252,830$      -$                  13,735$        718,759$       75,405$        1,060,729$   
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NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES (Continued) 
 
Receivables as of year-end for the City’s enterprise funds, including applicable allowances for uncollectible 
accounts, are as follows: 
 

Water Sewer

Natural

Gas Sanitation Total

Receivables:
Accounts receivable 597,404$      170,565$      127,739$      281,695$       1,177,403$   

Gross receivables 597,404        170,565        127,739        281,695         1,177,403     

Less: allowance for uncollectibles (106,836)       (33,318)         (24,953)         (55,027)          (220,134)       

Net receivable 490,568$      137,247$      102,786$      226,668$       957,269$       
 

NOTE 4 – NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
Notes receivable of $3,079,885 represent monies loaned to homebuyers in connection with a down payment 
assistance program.  The loans are secured by real property with repayment due upon the sale of real 
property or starting at the end of the 30-year deferral period.  At the time of sale, the seller pays the loan 
balance in full without interest.  Starting at the end of the 30-year deferral period, the borrower is required to 
repay the Down Payment Assistance Loan, without interest, over the following 15 years.  The balance as of 
June 30, 2017 is $1,579,885. 
 
Additionally, the City allocated $1,500,000 in Successor Agency Housing Bond Proceeds as a residual 
receipts loan to Warthan Place Investors, LP (Warthan) for the construction of the Warthan Place Apartments 
Multi-Family Housing Project.  The City will be repaid through a residual receipts agreement with Warthan at a 
1.0% interest rate.  The note receivable balance as of June 30, 2017 is $281,453. 
 

NOTE 5 – INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 
 
Current Interfund Receivables/Payables 
 
Current interfund balances are generally short-term loans to cover temporary cash deficits in various funds 
and are expected to be repaid shortly after the end of the fiscal year.  The City’s interfund receivables and 
payables consisted of the following at June 30, 2017: 
 

Due from Due to 
Other Funds Other Funds 

Major Funds:
General Fund 340,578$          -$                      
Water Fund -                        199,363            
Sanitation Fund -                        135,092            

Nonmajor Funds:
Transit Fund -                        6,123                

Total 340,578$         340,578$         
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND ACTIVITIES (Continued) 
 
Long-Term Interfund Advances  
 
Long-term interfund advances are advances to other funds that are not expected to be repaid in one year or 
less.  The City’s long-term interfund advances consisted of the following at June 30, 2017: 
 

Advances to Advances from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

Major Funds:
Coalinga Public Financing Authority Fund 15,190,000$     -$                      
Water -                        9,740,000         
Sewer -                        3,090,000         
Natural gas 378,000            -                        

Nonmajor Funds:
Development impact fees capital projects fund -                        378,000            
Special Assessment Fund -                        120,000            

Fiduciary Funds:
Coalinga Successor Agency Fund -                        2,240,000         

Total 15,568,000$    15,568,000$    
 

 
Bonds Receivable and Payable 
 
The following is a summary of interfund bonds receivable and bonds payable at June 30, 2017: 
 

Bonds Bonds 
Receivable Payable 

Major Funds:
Coalinga Public Financing Authority Fund 8,237,252$       -$                      

Fiduciary Funds:
Coalinga Successor Agency Fund -                        8,237,252         

Total 8,237,252$       8,237,252$       
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND ACTIVITIES (Continued) 
 
Interfund Advances and Bonds Receivables and Payables 
 
Bonds receivable consists of debt instruments purchased by the Coalinga Public Financing Authority (CPFA), 
which was established in 1991 through a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City, the former 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Coalinga, and the Coalinga-Huron Unified School District.  The 
formation of the joint powers authority was approved by the City Council who is also designated as the Board 
of Directors for the CPFA.  The purpose of the CPFA is solely to provide funds from the sale of revenue bonds 
to finance the costs of various projects for the City and other external agencies.  The City set up the CPFA to 
act as a financing/lending type institution only.  In financing the various capital improvement projects, the 
CPFA purchased bonds, entered into lease/sub-lease agreements and capital financing contracts with the City 
and other external agencies.  The following is a list of the debt instruments comprising the long-term interfund 
advances and bonds receivable balances in the CPFA debt service fund as of June 30, 2017: 
 
In October 1993, the CPFA loaned $2,269,000 to the Special Assessment debt service fund for the purpose of 
financing the Highway 198 street improvements projects, in-town street improvements, and the acquisition of 
the tract number 4492 (Fox Hollow) off-site utilities and street improvements.  The final payment of the loan is 
scheduled for September 2, 2018.  The loan balance is $120,000 as of June 30, 2017. 
 
In June 1993, the CPFA loaned $1,420,000 to the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Coalinga for 
the purpose of financing the construction of a new police station.  The final payment of the loan is scheduled 
for September 15, 2021.  The loan balance is $460,000 as of June 30, 2017. 
 
In June 1993, the CPFA loaned $5,480,000 to the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Coalinga for 
the purpose of financing the former Redevelopment Agency’s $5,100,000 tax allocation bonds that were 
issued on June 27, 1991 for the police station project.  The final payment of the loan is scheduled for 
September 15, 2021.  The loan balance is $1,780,000 as of June 30, 2017. 
 
In March 2012, the CPFA loaned $9,740,000 and $3,090,000 to the Water and Sewer enterprise funds, 
respectively, for the purpose of financing the 2012 Water and Wastewater Projects and the refunding of the 
2000 Revenue Bonds, Series A (Water and Wastewater Projects.  The final payment of the loan is scheduled 
for March 25, 2048.  The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2017 in the Water and Sewer enterprise funds 
are $9,740,000 and $3,090,000, respectively. 
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Balance at Balance at
Governmental Activities: June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 2,339,497$    -$                 -$                  2,339,497$    

Construction in progress 164,694          1,553,534     (937,758)       780,470         

Total 2,504,191       1,553,534     (937,758)       3,119,967      

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 18,407,518   68,265        (5,030,001)  13,445,782    
Infrastructure 32,015,394   904,271      (111,650)     32,808,015    

Machinery and equipment 5,717,438       687,284        (775,058)       5,629,664      

Total 56,140,350     1,659,820     (5,916,709)    51,883,461    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures (10,749,284)    (373,008)       4,580,615     (6,541,677)     
Infrastructure (21,249,886)    (700,811)       103,614        (21,847,083)   
Machinery and equipment (5,091,126)      (273,183)       775,058        (4,589,251)     

Total (37,090,296)    (1,347,002)    5,459,287     (32,978,011)   

Total capital assets being
  depreciated, net 19,050,054     312,818        (457,422)       18,905,450    

Governmental activities capital assets, net 21,554,245$   1,866,352$   (1,395,180)$  22,025,417$   
 
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary 
government as follows: 

Governmental Activities:
General government 328,059$      
Public works 689,940        
Community development 48,357          
Public safety 280,646        

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 1,347,002$    
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Capital assets activity of the business-type activities for the year ending June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Balance at Balance at
Business-Type Activities: June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 1,068,039$     -$                   -$                   1,068,039$     
Construction in progress 102,707          65,432           (102,707)        65,432            

Total 1,170,746       65,432           (102,707)        1,133,471       

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 10,036,351     -                     -                     10,036,351     
Infrastructure 27,692,518     -                     -                     27,692,518     
Machinery and equipment 5,584,566       118,465         -                     5,703,031       

Total 43,313,435     118,465         -                     43,431,900     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (5,944,731)      (109,462)        -                     (6,054,193)      
Infrastructure (15,533,222)    (550,136)        -                     (16,083,358)    
Machinery and equipment (5,071,871)      (119,468)        -                     (5,191,339)      

Total (26,549,824)    (779,066)        -                     (27,328,890)    

Total capital assets, being
  depreciated, net 16,763,611     (660,601)        -                     16,103,010     

Business-type activities capital assets, net 17,934,357$   (595,169)$      (102,707)$      17,236,481$    
 
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the business-type activities of the primary 
government as follows: 
 
Business-Type Activities:

Water 422,543$      
Sewer 261,573       
Natural Gas 41,249          
Sanitation 53,701           

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 779,066$        
 
 
NOTE 7 – DUE TO EMPLOYEES 
 
In 2014 the City’s 401(a) plan was terminated with ICMA, and ICMA sent funds to the City regarding the 
forfeiture balance.  These funds must be distributed into the accounts of the employees within the 401(a) plan.  
The City is currently going through an IRS voluntary compliance program and until completion of the review, 
the funds will be held by the City.  As of June 30, 2017, the amount of $748,625 is still held by the City. 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following is a summary of the long-term liabilities transactions of the City for governmental activities for the 
year ended June 30, 2017: 
 

Interest Original Final Balance Balance Due Within
Rates Borrowing Maturity July 1, 2016 Additions Reductions June 30, 2017  One Year 

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable:
1998 Series A Bonds 5.5%-6.375% 12,970,000$     2022 2,590,000$     -$                     -$                   2,590,000$     885,000$      
1998 Series B Bonds 4.6%-5.0% 1,830,000     2017 65,000            -                       (65,000)          -                      -                    
1998 Series C Bonds 5.5%-6.0% 6,140,000     2017 190,000          -                       (190,000)        -                      -                    
2000 Series Tax Allocation Bonds 5.2%-5.85% 3,404,942     2031 3,274,942       -                       (20,000)          3,254,942       25,000          
2012 Series Revenue Bonds 3.1%-5.0% 12,830,000   2048 12,830,000     -                       -                     12,830,000     205,000        
2009 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds 3%-6% 3,235,000     2024 2,110,000       -                       (220,000)        1,890,000       225,000        
2009 Series B Tax Allocation Bonds 3%-6% 2,660,000     2024 1,735,000       -                       (180,000)        1,555,000       190,000        
2009 Series C Tax Allocation Bonds 3%-6% 645,000        2024 435,000          -                       (40,000)          395,000          50,000          

Assessment District #1 Improvement Bond 5% 433,000        2021 85,500            -                       (15,500)          70,000            16,000          

Subtotal 23,315,442     -                       (730,500)        22,584,942     1,596,000     
Bond Premiums 303,735          -                       (57,854)          245,881          -                    
Bond Discounts (401,173)         -                       12,635           (388,538)         -                    
Accreted Interest 1,036,832       105,478           -                     1,142,310       -                    

Total Bonds Payable 24,254,836     105,478           (775,719)        23,584,595     1,596,000     

Capital Leases Payable:
Fire Truck Capital Lease 5.125% 346,456        2018 89,176            -                       (89,176)          -                      45,757          
KME Fire Engine Capital Lease 5.50% 141,870        2019 67,655            -                       (67,655)          -                      21,326          
Police Vehicles Capital Lease 7.338% 216,963        2021 -                      216,963           (47,484)          169,479          37,793          

Total Capital Leases Payable 156,831          216,963           (204,315)        169,479          104,876        

Compensated absences 396,096          -                       (84,330)          311,766          -                    

Governmental activities long-term liabilities 24,807,763$   322,441$         (980,034)$      24,065,840$   1,700,876$   

 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2016 Additions Reductions June 30, 2017 One Year 

Business-Type Activities: 

Loans Payable
CalPOP Energy Efficiency Loan Payable 0.00% 220,289$          2020 158,453$        -$                     (42,512)$        115,941$        46,377$        

Compensated absences 99,125            2,147               -                     101,272          -                    

Business-type activities long-term liabilities 257,578$        2,147$             (42,512)$        217,213$        46,377$        
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 
 
The annual debt service requirement schedule is as follows: 
 

 Years Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Totals Principal Interest Totals

2018 1,633,793$     1,121,269$     2,755,062$     46,377$        -$                  46,377$        
2019 1,157,693       1,061,625       2,219,318       46,377          -                    46,377          
2020 1,226,816       995,853          2,222,669       23,187          -                    23,187          
2021 1,291,177       923,981          2,215,158       -                    -                    -                    
2022 1,300,000       847,819          2,147,819       -                    -                    -                    

2023-2027 5,245,429       3,183,309       8,428,738       -                    -                    -                    
2028-2032 2,129,513       4,786,237       6,915,750       -                    -                    -                    
2033-2037 2,050,000       1,997,500       4,047,500       -                    -                    -                    
2038-2042 2,610,000       1,431,500       4,041,500       -                    -                    -                    
2043-2047 3,340,000       709,750          4,049,750       -                    -                    -                    
2048-2052 770,000          38,500            808,500          -                    -                    -                    

22,754,421$   17,097,343$   39,851,764$   115,941$      -$                  115,941$      

Business-Type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

 
 
NOTE 9 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents 
a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The City has pension related items 
that qualify to be reported in deferred outflows of resources.  The pension related deferred outflows of 
resources are described in detail in Note 10. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The City has two types of items that qualify for reporting in this 
category and they are unavailable revenues and pension deferrals. 
 
Deferred inflows of resources reported in the governmental funds for unavailable revenues are as follows: 
 

Low-Moderate 
Housing Asset 

Fund

Total
Governmental 

Funds

Housing loans 1,579,885$       1,579,885$       

Total 1,579,885$       1,579,885$       
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NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Plan (CalPERS) 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
Public Agency Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS).  The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk 
pool (police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other.)  Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for 
any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools.  Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or 
miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68.  Individual employers may 
sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools.  The City sponsors five rate plans 
(two miscellaneous and three safety.)  Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and 
City resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan 
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS 
website. 
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits 
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of 
total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-
duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death 
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living 
adjustments for the Plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017 are summarized as follows: 
 

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% - 2.418% 1.0% - 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.000% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 8.377% 6.555%

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 50 - 57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% - 2.0% 1.426% - 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7.000% 9.500%
Required employer contribution rates 12.055% 9.418%

Miscellaneous

Safety

 
 
Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of payroll 
for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions towards the 
unfunded liability and side fund, if applicable.  The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis.  The City’s 
required contribution for the unfunded liability was $69 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Plan (CalPERS) (Continued) 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall 
be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for the Plan are 
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the 
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  The City is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 
 
The City’s contributions to the plan that were recognized as a part of pension expense for the year ended 
June 30, 2017 were $456,720. 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the Plan of 
$236,497. 
 
The City’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.  
The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability for the 
Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, 
rolled forward to June 30, 2016, using standard update procedures.  The City’s proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to 
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  The City’s proportionate 
share of the net pension liability (asset) for the Plan as of June 30, 2015 and 2016 was as follows: 
 
Proportion - June 30, 2015 -0.0057%
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.0027%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.0084%  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $170,246.  At June 30, 2017, the 
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 438,369$             -$                         
Changes in assumptions -                           139,190               
Differences between actual and expected experience 3,166                   16,097                 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
  plan investments 701,657               -                           
Change in employer's proportion 20,523                 17,013                 

Differences between the employer's actual contributions and the 
employer's proportionate share of contributions 308,774               -                           

Total 1,472,489$          172,300$             
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NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Plan (CalPERS) (Continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions (Continued) 
 
$438,369 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017.  Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

Years Ending
June 30

2018 216,314$       
2019 113,886         
2020 349,381         
2021 182,239         
2022 -                     

Thereafter -                      

 
C. Actuarial Assumptions  
 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuations were determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase 3.3% - 14.2%(1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%(2)

Mortality Membership Data for all 

Funds(3)

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3) The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS specific data.  
The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of 
Actuaries Scale BB.  

 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation 
were based on the results of January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011.  Further 
details of the Experiences Study can be found on the CalPERS website. 
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NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Plan (CalPERS) (Continued) 
 
D. Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent for the Plan.  To determine 
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, CalPERS 
stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially 
assumed discount rate.  Based on the testing of the plans, the test revealed the assets would not run out.  
Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate 
calculation is not deemed necessary.  The long-term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent is applied to all 
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).  The stress test results are presented in a detailed 
report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained from the CalPERS website under the 
GASB 68 section.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected PERF cash flows.  Using historical returns of all the 
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns 
for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.  The expected 
rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present 
value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The 
expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded 
down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.  The target 
allocation shown was adopted by the Board effective on July 1, 2015. 
 

Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation

Real Return 

Years 1-10(a)

Real Return 

Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.  
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NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Plan (CalPERS) (Continued) 
 
D. Discount Rate (Continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – 
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) for the Plan, calculated 
using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate -1% 
6.65%

Current Discount 
Rate 7.65%

Discount Rate +1% 
8.65%

1,461,099$               236,497$                  (772,121)$                  
 
E. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
CalPERS financial reports. 
 
F. Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
The City did not have an outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. 
 

NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is a member of the Public Agency Risk Sharing Authority for California (PARSAC), a public entity risk 
pool in which there is a transferring (sharing) of risk among the pool participants.  The City pays an annual 
premium to PARSAC for its general liability coverage.  PARSAC is self-sustaining through member premiums.  
The City is insured under a retrospectively rated policy in which the initial premium is adjusted based on actual 
experience during the period of coverage.  The City is responsible for all claims up to $25,000 per occurrence 
for general and auto liability with a coverage limit at June 30, 2014 of $975,000. 
 
The City’s risk management program also includes fire, property and automobile insurance.  The coverage 
includes an all risk-replacement cost blanket.  Additionally, the City has property insurance coverage up to 
$975,000 per occurrence. 
 
The City provides worker’s compensation and employer’s liability coverage on all employees through 
PARSAC.  This insurance is paid entirely by the City.  All premiums are paid by the appropriate fund 
designation for each employee’s salary and benefits.  In the risk management program for the City, a 
proactive approach is taken toward work safety for employees.  Various training sessions and inspections are 
conducted throughout the year.  The result has been a continued reduction of work related injury claims. 
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NOTE 12 – OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
The City offers medical, dental, vision, chiropractic and prescription insurance coverage, as well as group life 
insurance coverage, to employees and their dependents.  Additionally, the City offers an employee assistance 
program to assist employees and their families with problem assessment and short-term counseling needs.  
The City pays a portion of premiums in connection with the insurance coverage offered by the City. 
 
City Employee Post Retirement Benefits 
 
In accordance with federal requirements, the City provides its retirees the opportunity to continue enrollment in 
the City's health insurance program.  Premium charges paid by retirees are intended to cover the full cost of 
benefits provided without cost to the City.  For the year ended June 30, 2017, no retirees were enrolled in the 
health insurance program. 
 
Employee Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The City offers and Employee Deferred Compensation Plan created in accordance with the Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457 to its employees, allowing them to defer or postpone receipt of income.  Amounts so 
deferred may not be paid to the employee during employment with the City except for a catastrophic 
circumstance creating an undue financial hardship for the employee.  
  
Effective January 1, 1999, Federal legislation (Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996) requires the 
Section 457 plan assets to be placed in trust for the exclusive use of the plan participants and their 
beneficiaries. 
 
The City's deferred compensation administrator, the International City Managers' Association (ICMA) or 
Verisight qualifies as the plan trustee to meet Federal requirements.  Since the plan assets are no longer 
considered property and rights of the City, such assets are no longer reflected in the accompanying basic 
financial statements. 
 
The City also offers to two employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401(a).  All amounts deferred and invested under this plan, with related interest, are 
the property and rights of the participating employees and, as such, are not reflected in the accompanying 
basic financial statements. 
 
 
NOTE 13 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
General Liability 
 
There are various claims and legal actions pending against the City for which no provision has been made in 
the financial statements.  In the opinion of the City Attorney and City Management, liabilities arising from these 
claims and legal actions, if any, will not be material to these financial statements. 
 
Federal Awards and Grants 
 
The City has received federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the federal 
government.  Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowances under grant terms, any required 
reimbursements are not expected to be material. 
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NOTE 14 – COALINGA SUCCESSOR AGENCY PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND 
 
On January 30, 2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor Agency for the former redevelopment 
agency in accordance with Assembly Bill 1X26 (the “Bill”) which dissolved all redevelopment agencies in the 
State of California. 
 
Under the control of an oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in 
existence at the date of dissolution of the redevelopment agency (including the completion of any unfinished 
projects that were subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments). 
 
Successor agencies are only allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay estimated annual 
installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all enforceable 
obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated. 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
A reconciliation of the Coalinga Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund’s cash and investments as of 
June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Cash and investments 1,360,233$      
Restricted cash with fiscal agents 1,375,062        

Total cash and investments 2,735,295$       
 
Long-Term Liabilities 
 
The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the Coalinga Successor Agency Private 
Purpose Trust Fund at June 30, 2017: 
 

Interest Original Final Balance Balance Due Within
Rates Borrowing Maturity July 1, 2016 Additions Reductions June 30, 2017 One Year 

Bonds Payable
2000 Series Tax Allocation Bonds 5.2%-5.85% 3,404,942$    2031 3,274,942$    -$                 (20,000)$      3,254,942$       25,000$      
2009 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds 3%-6% 3,235,000   2024 2,110,000      -                   (220,000)      1,890,000         225,000      
2009 Series B Tax Allocation Bonds 3%-6% 2,660,000   2024 1,735,000      -                   (180,000)      1,555,000         190,000      

2009 Series C Tax Allocation Bonds 3%-6% 645,000      2024 435,000         -                   (40,000)        395,000            50,000        

Subtotal 7,554,942      -                   (460,000)      7,094,942         490,000      

Accreted Interest 1,036,832      105,478        -                   1,142,310         -                  

Total long-term liabilities 8,591,774$    105,478$      (460,000)$    8,237,252$       490,000$    
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NOTE 14 – COALINGA SUCCESSOR AGENCY PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND (Continued) 
 
Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

The annual debt service requirement schedule is as follows: 
 

 Years Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Totals

2018 490,000$       367,198$       857,198$        
2019 505,000         340,236         845,236          
2020 540,000         310,011         850,011          
2021 560,000         277,045         837,045          
2022 595,000         242,423         837,423          

2023-2027 3,925,429      384,938         4,310,367       

2028-2032 479,513         2,340,487      2,820,000       

7,094,942$    4,262,338$    11,357,280$   

Successor Agency
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CITY OF COALINGA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments 3,567,200$      3,567,200$    4,158,867$       591,667$          
Licenses, permits and impact fees 192,850           192,850         533,241            340,391            
Intergovernmental 50,000             50,000           974,580            924,580            
Charges for services 2,496,631        2,496,631      1,634,189         (862,442)           
Fines and forfeitures 21,200             21,200           24,838              3,638                
Rental 52,750             52,750           73,275              20,525              
Interest 500                  500                8,254                7,754                

Other 730,791           730,791         90,018              (640,773)           

Total revenues 7,111,922        7,111,922      7,497,262         385,340            

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government 613,932           613,932         861,321            (247,389)           
Public works 496,017           496,017         502,055            (6,038)               
Community development 409,656           409,656         543,126            (133,470)           
Public safety 5,792,096        5,792,096      6,463,442         (671,346)           

Capital outlay 29,120             29,120           14,479              14,641              
Debt service:

Principal 553,877           553,877         156,831            397,046            

Interest and fiscal charges 11,447             11,447           4,675                6,772                

Total expenditures 7,906,145        7,906,145      8,545,929         (639,784)           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures (794,223)          (794,223)        (1,048,667)        (254,444)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of general capital assets -                       -                     4,087,151         4,087,151         

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       -                     4,087,151         4,087,151         

Net changes in fund balances (794,223)          (794,223)        3,038,484         3,832,707         

Fund balances (deficit), beginning (3,167,767)       (3,167,767)     (3,167,767)        -                        

Fund balances (deficit), ending (3,961,990)$     (3,961,990)$   (129,283)$         3,832,707$       

Budgeted Amount
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CITY OF COALINGA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – LOW-MODERATE HOUSING ASSET SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 201,200$        201,200$       1,404,663$      1,203,463$     

Interest -                      -                     814                  814                 

Total revenues 201,200          201,200         1,405,477        1,204,277       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development 230,000          230,000         1,340,576        (1,110,576)      

Total expenditures 230,000          230,000         1,340,576        (1,110,576)      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures (28,800)           (28,800)          64,901             93,701            

Net changes in fund balances (28,800)           (28,800)          64,901             93,701            

Fund balances, beginning 2,303,457       2,303,457      2,303,457        -                      

Fund balances, ending 2,274,657$     2,274,657$    2,368,358$      93,701$          

Budgeted Amount
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CITY OF COALINGA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 2,117,000$     2,117,000$    1,727,374$    (389,626)$         

Interest -                      -                     4,091             4,091                

Total revenues 2,117,000       2,117,000      1,731,465      (385,535)           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works -                      -                     22,610           (22,610)             
Community development -                      -                     2,454             (2,454)               
Public safety -                      -                     11,738           (11,738)             

Capital outlay 2,117,000       2,117,000      1,714,645      402,355            

Total expenditures 2,117,000       2,117,000      1,751,447      365,553            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures -                      -                     (19,982)          (19,982)             

Net changes in fund balances -                      -                     (19,982)          (19,982)             

Fund balances, beginning 1,852,083       1,852,083      1,852,083      -                        

Fund balances (deficit), ending 1,852,083$     1,852,083$    1,832,101$    (19,982)$           

Budgeted Amount
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CITY OF COALINGA 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 
The following funds incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the following amounts for the 
year ended June 30, 2017: 
 

Major Funds:
General Fund:

Current:
General government (247,389)$       
Public works (6,038)             
Community development (133,470)         
Public safety (671,346)         

Current:
Community development (1,110,576)      

Current:
Public works (22,610)           
Community development (2,454)             
Public safety (11,738)           

Low-Moderate Income Housing Asset 
  Special Revenue Fund:

Grants Special Revenue Fund:

 
 
In the General Fund, excess expenditures were covered by short-term borrowings from other City Funds.  
In the Low-Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund, the excess expenditures were covered by available 
fund balance in the fund.  In the Grants Special Revenue Fund, the excess expenditures were covered by 
available fund balance in the fund. 
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CITY OF COALINGA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
LAST 10 YEARS* 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

2015 2016 2017

Proportion of the net pension liability -0.0029% -0.0057% 0.0027%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) (182,681)$      (391,805)$      236,497$       

Covered payroll 4,816,404$    4,088,221$    4,943,384$    

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as percentage of 
  covered-employee payroll -3.79% -9.58% 4.78%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
  total pension liability 102.92% -105.05% 97.39%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms - None

Change in Assumptions
The discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent to correct for an
adjustment to exclude administrative expense.

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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CITY OF COALINGA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

LAST 10 YEARS* 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017

Actuarially determined contribution 684,467$       396,490$       456,720$       438,369$       
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contributions (684,467)        (396,490)        (456,720)        (438,369)        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Covered payroll 4,816,404$    4,088,221$    4,943,384$    4,623,178$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 14.21% 9.70% 9.24% 9.48%

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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CITY OF COALINGA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Gas Tax Measure C

Local 

Transportation Transit

COPS

Grants

ASSETS
Cash and investments 140,607$           1,868,003$        782,387$           -$                     11,065$            

Receivables 155                    33,805               806                    20,921              10,001              

Total assets 140,762$           1,901,808$        783,193$           20,921$            21,066$            

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 18,532               2,420                 -                        3,618                -                       

Accrued liabilities 1,685                 -                         -                        3,187                -                       

Deposits and other liabilities -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       
Due to other funds -                         -                         -                        6,123                -                       
Advances from other funds -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       

Unearned revenue -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       

Total liabilities 20,217               2,420                 -                        12,928              -                       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       

Total deferred inflows of resources -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted: 

Law enforcement -                         -                         -                        -                       21,066              
Storm drainage and flood control -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       
Streets and bridges -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       
Transit System -                         -                         -                        7,993                -                       
Street maintenance 120,545             1,899,388          -                        -                       -                       
LTF Article 8 -                         -                         783,193             -                       -                       
Public buildings and facilities -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       
EDA community buildings -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       
EDA revolving loans -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       
Debt Service -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       

Unassigned -                         -                         -                        -                       -                       

Total fund balances (deficits) 120,545             1,899,388          783,193             7,993                21,066              

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) 140,762$           1,901,808$        783,193$           20,921$            21,066$            

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF COALINGA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

(Continued) 
 

Capital Debt
Projects Service

Fund Fund

EDA

Building

Rentals

EDA

Revolving Loans

Development 

Impact Fees

Special

Assessment

Debt Service Totals

ASSETS
Cash and investments 49,330$             58,316$            340,228$          171,148$          3,421,084$       

Receivables 9,056                 60                     385                   216                   75,405              

Total assets 58,386$             58,376$            340,613$          171,364$          3,496,489$       

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -                         -                       -                       588                   25,158              

Accrued liabilities -                         -                       -                       -                       4,872                

Deposits and other liabilities 5,300                 -                       -                       -                       5,300                
Due to other funds -                         -                       -                       -                       6,123                
Advances from other funds -                         -                       378,000            120,000            498,000            

Unearned revenue 6,662                 -                       -                       -                       6,662                

Total liabilities 11,962               -                       378,000            120,588            546,115            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total deferred inflows of resources -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted: 

Law enforcement -                         -                       -                       -                       21,066              
Storm drainage and flood control -                         -                       65,976              -                       65,976              
Streets and bridges -                         -                       219,647            219,647            
Transit System -                         -                       -                       -                       7,993                
Street maintenance -                         -                       -                       -                       2,019,933         
LTF Article 8 -                         -                       -                       -                       783,193            
Public buildings and facilities -                         -                       51,617              -                       51,617              
EDA community buildings 46,424               -                       -                       -                       46,424              
EDA revolving loans -                         58,376              -                       -                       58,376              
Debt Service -                         -                       -                       50,776              50,776              

Unassigned -                         -                       (374,627)          -                       (374,627)          

Total fund balances (deficits) 46,424               58,376              (37,387)            50,776              2,950,374         

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) 58,386$             58,376$            340,613$          171,364$          3,496,489$       

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF COALINGA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Gas Tax Measure C

Local 

Transportation Transit

COPS

Grants

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Licenses, permits and impact fees -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental 340,494           417,723           -                       285,417           129,324           
Charges for services -                       -                       -                       21,976             -                       

Interest 490                  11,162             2,099               -                       110                  

Total revenues 340,984           428,885           2,099               307,393           129,434           

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public works 508,041           -                       -                       310,778           -                       
Community development -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Capital outlay 5,984               40,952             1,625               -                       313,160           
Debt service:

Principal -                       -                       -                       -                       47,484             

Interest and fiscal charges -                       -                       -                       -                       3,315               

Total expenditures 514,025           40,952             1,625               310,778           363,959           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures (173,041)          387,933           474                  (3,385)              (234,525)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital lease -                       -                       -                       -                       216,963           

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       -                       -                       -                       216,963           

Net changes in fund balances (173,041)          387,933           474                  (3,385)              (17,562)            

Fund balances (deficits), beginning 293,586           1,511,455        782,719           11,378             38,628             

Fund balances (deficits), ending 120,545$         1,899,388$      783,193$         7,993$             21,066$           

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF COALINGA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

(Continued) 
 

Capital Debt
Projects Service

Fund Fund

EDA

Building 

Rentals

EDA

Revolving 

Loans

Development

Impact Fees

Special 

Assessment 

Debt Service Totals

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments -$                     -$                     -$                     92,473$           92,473$           
Licenses, permits and impact fees -                       -                       191,481           -                       191,481           
Intergovernmental -                       -                       -                       -                       1,172,958        
Charges for services -                       -                       -                       -                       21,976             

Interest 407                  163                  946                  722                  16,099             

Total revenues 407                  163                  192,427           93,195             1,494,987        

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public works -                       -                       -                       -                       818,819           
Community development 449                  -                       -                       -                       449                  

Capital outlay -                       -                       -                       -                       361,721           
Debt service:

Principal -                       -                       -                       15,500             62,984             

Interest and fiscal charges -                       -                       -                       21,665             24,980             

Total expenditures 449                  -                       -                       37,165             1,268,953        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures (42)                   163                  192,427           56,030             226,034           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital lease -                       -                       -                       -                       216,963           

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       -                       -                       -                       216,963           

Net changes in fund balances (42)                   163                  192,427           56,030             442,997           

Fund balances (deficits), beginning 46,466             58,213             (229,814)          (5,254)              2,507,377        

Fund balances (deficits), ending 46,424$           58,376$           (37,387)$          50,776$           2,950,374$      

Special Revenue Funds
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTOL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Coalinga, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Coalinga, 
California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated May 2, 2019. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not 
been identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses.  We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2017-001 that we consider to be a 
significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
City of Coalinga’s Responses to Findings 
 
The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying corrective action 
plan following the schedule of findings and questioned costs.  The City’s responses were not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
them. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 

Clovis, California 
May 2, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 

 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
City Council of the City of Coalinga 
Coalinga, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Coalinga’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.  The City’s major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs based on 
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the City of Coalinga complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over 
compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Coalinga as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial 
statements.  We issued our report thereon dated May 2, 2019, which contained unmodified opinions on those 
financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

Clovis, California 
May 2, 2019 



CITY OF COALINGA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Contract/
Federal Pass-Through Federal

Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA Entity Identifying Expenditures
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number 2017

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2015-DJ-BX-0013 10,668$          

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

Total U.S. Department of Justice 10,668            

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through the State of California Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 HSIPL -5146(016) 18,189            
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 HSIPL -5146(017) 50,693            

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 68,882            

U.S. Department of Housing and Community Development

Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 15-HOME-10092 2,776,247       
Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 15-HOME-10092 13,423            
Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 13-HOME-9001 6,307              

Total HOME Program 2,795,977       

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 13-CDBG-8955 89,232            

Total U.S Department of Housing and Community Development 2,885,209       

Total Federal Awards Expenditures 2,964,759$     

Passed through the State of California Housing and 
  Community Development
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The financial reporting entity, as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), 
consists of the primary government, which is the City of Coalinga, California (the City), organizations for 
which the primary government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

B. Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
City of Coalinga and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Guidance.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements. 
 
C. Indirect Cost Rate 
 
The City has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis cost rate as allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
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SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
 Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No
 Significant deficiencies identified that
  are not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
 Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No
 Significant deficiencies identified that
   are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
 for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
 to be reported in accordance with
 2 CFR 200.516(a) Yes X No

Identification of major programs

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.239 Home Investment Partnership Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
  and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No
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SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2017-001 Year-End Closing Process (Significant Deficiency) 
 
Condition: During the audit of the City’s financial statements, the timing and process for 

closing out the City’s trial balance and preparing the necessary supporting 
schedules caused the delay in issuing the current year audit. 

 
Criteria: A strong system of internal controls and management review requires that 

general ledger account balances be properly reconciled to a subsidiary ledger 
or other adequate supporting documentation on a periodic basis, as well as 
during the year-end financial close process in order to accurately and 
completely close the current year general ledger in a timely manner.  
Management is responsible for maintaining its accounting records in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America (U.S. GAAP). 

 
Cause: The City’s Finance Director and accounting department were not able to 

perform the year-end close in a timely and efficient manner.  This was largely 
due to significant turnover in the City’s Finance Department. 

 
Effect: The result is the audit being delayed and completed over a year late which 

affects the timely submission of the financial statements and related reports to 
relevant State and Federal Agencies.  

 
Recommendation: We recommend that the City perform the following steps in order to address 

the matters described above: 
 

1) Create a closing checklist to assist with the preparation of audit 
schedules that are complete, accurate, and reconcile to the City’s 
general ledger account balances.  Additionally, ensure that a system is in 
place to allow the City to perform this in a timely manner. 

2) Provide additional assistance to the Finance Department through the 
hiring of additional competent personnel. 

3) Provide additional training in accounting specific to government entities 
to Finance Department staff in order to ensure that they are current with 
all financial accounting and reporting requirements as directed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
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SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
None identified. 
 
 



CITY OF COALINGA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

10 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2016-001 Year-End Closing Process (Material Weakness) 
 
Condition: During the audit of the City’s financial statements, we identified material 

misstatements in the City’s general ledger account balance which necessitated the 
proposal of numerous audit adjustments. 

 
Criteria: A strong system of internal controls and management review requires that general 

ledger account balances be properly reconciled to a subsidiary ledger or other 
adequate supporting documentation on a periodic basis, as well as during the year-
end financial close process in order to accurately and completely close the current 
year general ledger in a timely manner.  Management is responsible for maintaining 
its accounting records in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

 
Cause: The City’s Finance Director and accounting department were not able to perform the 

year-end close and, in addition to the demands of closing a City’s general ledger, 
there were numerous other financial statement, compliance, and control environment 
matters.  This was largely due to significant turnover in the City’s Finance 
Department. 

 
Effect: The result of the audit included over 30 adjusting journal entries, which were required 

to be either posted by the City or proposed by us subsequent to receiving the City’s 
final trial balance.  

 
Recommendation: We recommend that the City perform the following steps in order to address the 

matters described above: 
 

4) Create a closing checklist to assist with the preparation of audit schedules that 
are complete, accurate, and reconcile to the City’s general ledger account 
balances.  Additionally, ensure that a system is in place to allow the City to 
perform this in a timely manner. 

5) Provide additional assistance to the Finance Department through the hiring of 
additional competent personnel. 

6) Provide additional training in accounting specific to government entities to 
Finance Department staff in order to ensure that they are current with all 
financial accounting and reporting requirements as directed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

 
Status: Partially implemented, see finding 2017-001. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued) 
 
Finding 2016-002 Overhead Cost Allocations (Material Weakness) 
 
Condition: The City is using a method of allocating overhead costs that has not been updated to 

address the current operations of the City.  Additionally, the allocation method was 
created prior to current administration and could not be substantiated by supporting 
documentation. 

 
Criteria: A strong system of internal control requires that a reasonable methodology for 

allocating overhead costs throughout the City’s functions should be reviewed and 
updated periodically to reflect the current operations and personnel of the City. 

 
Cause: The City has not reviewed and/or updated its cost allocation schedule for multiple 

years to ensure that it accurately reflects the current operations and personnel of the 
City. 

 
Effect: General government allocated were allocated to the City’s enterprise funds in 

excess of total actual costs incurred.  Since these costs were allocated to enterprise 
funds whose primary revenue source are user fees, the City also risks being out of 
compliance with Proposition 218. 

 
Recommendation: We recommend that the City establish a reasonable methodology to allocate 

overhead costs and it is reviewed and updated periodically by management, but at 
least on an annual basis.  Updates to the overhead allocation schedule should be 
reviewed and approved through formal action the City Council. 

 
Status: Implemented 
 

Finding 2016-003 Public Safety Cost Allocations (Material Weakness) 
 
Condition: Public safety costs allocated to the City’s Natural Gas Fund for protection and 

monitoring of the City’s gas meters were materially in excess of the City’s estimate 
for the actual cost to provide those services. 

 
Criteria Proposition 218 specifies that any resources generated through user fees must be 

used to cover expenses directly related to those fees. 
 
Cause: The City allocated an amount of public safety costs to the Natural Gas Fund well in 

excess of the initial estimate prepared by the City.  Additionally, the City did could 
not find any documentation substantiating the initial cost allocation estimate. 

 
Effect: The City allocated $326,000 to the Natural Gas Fund – an enterprise fund with 

revenue generated through user fees – for public safety without adequate 
documentation substantiating the allocation. 

 
Recommendation If the City continues to allocate public safety costs to the Natural Gas Fund, we 

recommend the City prepare a reasonable and detailed methodology clearly 
substantiating a nexus between the City’s public safety responsibilities and the 
additional protection and monitoring it provides to the Natural Gas Fund.  City 
management should also periodically review and update this methodology at least 
on an annual basis, and it should be reviewed and approved through formal action 
of the City Council. 

 
Status: Implemented 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued) 
 
Finding 2016-004 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Material Weakness) 
 
Condition: The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) initially provided by the City 

was materially incomplete.  There were Federal grants for which the City made 
expenditures that were not included on the SEFA. 

 
Criteria: A strong system of internal controls and management review requires that 

expenditures for all Federal grants are accumulated and included on the SEFA in 
compliance with applicable standards. 

 
Cause: As described in Finding 2016-001, the City did not adequately close its accounting 

records and, accordingly, not all expenditures were captured in the City’s financial 
records. 

 
Effect: As a result of the condition described above, Federal grant expenditures were 

understated by $803,461. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend that management create a system of control whereby all 

expenditures, including grant related expenditures, are identified and included on the 
SEFA.  Additionally, we recommend management maintain a centralized file of all 
City grants and create a system to develop an annual grant reconciliation for these 
grants that identifies the funding source and can be reconciled to the trial balance. 

 
Status: Implemented 
 

Finding 2016-005 Utilities Billings Adjustments (Significant Deficiency) 
 
Condition: The City does not have adequate controls over its utilities billings adjustments.  

Through our interview process, we were able to determine that the utilities billing 
clerks had access to adjusting utilities without any subsequent review. 

 
Criteria: A strong system of internal control requires that the City have a process for 

detecting misstatements due to error or fraud, which includes and adequate review 
over all utilities billings adjustments. 

 
Cause: Utilities billing clerks had access to the module in the City’s accounting software 

that allowed for adjustments to customer accounts without an adequate review by 
appropriate personnel. 

 
Recommendation: The City creates an internal control process whereby all adjustments to customer 

accounts are reviewed periodically – but no less often than monthly – and in a 
timely manner by appropriate personal.  

 
Status: Implemented 
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STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Council Consideration of Conditional Use Permit Application 19-02 and Further
Adopting Resolution No. 3897 with Conditions, to Reestablish the Legal Non-
Conforming Status of the Structure Located at 358 E. Polk Street

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Sean Brewer, Community Development Director

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

City Council approval of Resolution No. 3897, approving conditional use permit application 19-02 with
conditions to reestablish the legal non-conforming status of the structure located at 358 E. Polk Street.

II.    BACKGROUND:

On April 2, 2019 the Community Development Department received a conditional use permit application
requesting the reestablishment of a structure’s legal non-conforming status at 358 E. Polk Street.
 
In accordance with Section 9-6.210 of the Planning and Zoning Code no nonconforming use may be
resumed, reestablished, reopened or replaced by any other nonconforming use after it has been abandoned or
vacated for a period of six (6) months, except as provided for in this section. The nonconforming use of a
legally established structure may be reestablished if the City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit with
applicable findings.
 
Staff was able to review the code and as mentioned above, there is a remedy to reestablish the structure legal
non-conforming status and then permit the rebuilding of the existing structure. Therefore, the applicant is
seeking approval from the City Council to reestablish the structures legal-nonconforming status in order to
demolish and rebuild the residence that currently exists on the property in accordance with Section 9-6.210.

III.   DISCUSSION:

The structure located at 358 E. Polk Street was damaged beyond repair several years ago due to ground
movement such as an earthquake and has been unoccupied for several years. As a result, the property was
posted by the Building Official as unsafe to occupy and it would either need to be repaired or demolished
and/or rebuilt.  When originally constructed, the structure was legally establishment prior to the re-zoning of
the property from Residential (1994 General Plan Update) to Mixed Use Commercial (2025 General Plan).
Recently, the property owner submitted an application for a building permit to demolish and rebuild the
residence that is currently on this parcel. Unfortunately, staff was unable to issue a permit to demo and rebuild
the structure do to the fact that it had lost it’s legal non-conforming status since it has been vacated for more
than six (6) months, therefore the property must be developed in accordance with the (MX) Mixed Use
zoning designation. 
 
Staff has reviewed the application and what possible impacts it would have to reestablish the legal non-



conforming status of this property and it has been determined that it would not have a substantial impact to
the surround properties.
 
FINDINGS
 
When determining whether a legal non-confirming status shall be reinstated, the following three (3) findings
shall be considered:
 

1.       The structure cannot be used for any conforming use because of its original design or
because of legal structural changes made for a previous nonconforming use;

 
The existing structure is currently in disrepair and cannot be occupied. Demolishing the structure would
create another vacant lot in the City that has limited interest for commercial development in addition to the
fact that the properties to the north are currently occupied as residential uses. This location also lacks off-site
improvements and has considerable access issues since Dorothy Street has never been improved to City
standards and currently facilitates access to adjacent properties. Demolishing and rebuilding the residence
would reduce future blight as well as provide additional housing where housing is limited in the City.

 
2.       The structure can be reasonably expected to remain in active use for a period of twenty
(20) years without requiring repairs or maintenance in excess of fifty (50) percent of the
replacement cost of the structure, as defined in this chapter, within any five (5) year period;
and

 
Rebuilding a new residence would establish a structure that would reasonable remain in active use for a period
of twenty (20) years without requiring major repair except for the typical maintenance a residence would see
such as painting, HVAC, roof, ect. 
 

3.       The continuation of the use or structure will not be incompatible with or detrimental to
surrounding conforming uses.

 
Demolishing and rebuilding a new home at 358 E. Polk Street would reduce the existing blight as well as
provide a compatible use based on the surrounding properties. The east, south properties are currently
residential uses and commercial uses to the north and west which is not uncommon for residential uses to be
adjacent to commercial uses considering the appropriate transitional standards are applied.  
 
Should the City Council choose to reestablish the legal non-conforming status of the existing structure, staff
would advise the applicant to proceed with the submission of a building permit application to rebuild the
home that currently exists in accordance with Section 9-6.208 related to the restoration of damaged non-
conforming structures. Staff feels that the exception for residential structures would apply in this situation
allowing the rebuilding of the structure. 
 
Section 9-6.208(b) Restoration when damage exceeds seventy-five (75) percent of value. (1) If any
nonconforming structure or a structure containing a nonconforming use is destroyed by fire, explosion or
other casualty or involuntary destruction to an extent of seventy-five (75) percent or greater of the
replacement cost, as determined by the Building Official, then the structure may be restored and used only in
compliance with the applicable regulations for the district where it is located, except as provided below.
 
(2) Exceptions for residential structures. Any nonconforming residential use may be reconstructed,
restored, or rebuilt up to the size and number of dwelling units prior to the damage and the nonconforming
use, if any, may be resumed unless the City finds that:
 



(a.) The reconstruction, restoration, or rebuilding will be detrimental or injurious to the health, safety,
or general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood or will be detrimental or
injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood.
 
(b.) The existing nonconforming use of the building or structure can be more appropriately moved to
a zoning district in which the use is permitted, or that there no longer exists a district in which the
existing nonconforming use is permitted.
 
(c.) Any reconstruction, restoration, or rebuilding undertaken pursuant to this section shall conform to
all applicable Building Code requirements.
 
(d.) A building permit shall be obtained within two (2) years after the date of the damage or
destruction.

 
When adopting resolution number 3897 staff has included conditions of approval in order to facilitate the
appropriate demolition and reconstruction of the legal non-confirming structure. In addition to ensuring
compliance with the standards for legal non-conforming structures and uses, staff has included conditions to
facilitate compliance with property maintenance concerns that currently exist on the property such as stored
trailers, and sea train containers. All of the conditions have been included as an attachment to the resolution.
 
Environmental (CEQA):
 
The proposed project has been reviewed for its conformance with the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) and determined that this project is to be categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15302 related to
the replacement or reconstruction of existing structures and/or facilities.
 
Public Notification:
 
Public hearing notices were sent to all property owners within 300 feet of the site as required by Local and
State law.

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

The city Council may choose not to approve Resolution No. 3897 and deny the Conditional Use Permit
application.

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

None determined at this time.

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
Resolution_3897.doc Resolution No. 3897

CUP_19-02_Application.pdf CUP 19-02 Application

Site_Photo_1.jpg Site Photo 1

Site_Photo_2.JPG Site Photo 2

Site_Photo_3.JPG Site Photo 3



RESOLUTION NO. 3897 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COALINGA CITY COUNCIL  

APPROVING WITH CONDITIONS CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

APPLICATION NUMBER 19-02, RE-ESTABLISHING THE LEGAL NON-

CONFORMING STATUS OF THE STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 358 E. POLK 

STREET 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Coalinga Community Development Department has received an 
application for a Conditional Use Permit to reestablish the legal non-conforming status of the 
structure located at 358 E. Polk Street; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Coalinga Planning and Zoning Code permits the City Council 
reestablish the legal non-conforming status of a structure or use with the approval of a conditional 
use permit; and 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council held the scheduled and noticed public hearing on May 16, 
2019 to take testimony with regard to the proposed application, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that this project is exempt for further 
environmental review under CEQA in accordance with Government Code Section 15302 
(Replacement or Reconstruction), and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council completed its review of the proposed development and 
information contained in the staff report and has considered the testimony received during the 
public meeting process and comments provided via mail, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has made the following findings regarding the 
reestablishment of the structures legal non-conforming status: 
 

• The structure cannot be used for any conforming use because of its original design or 
because of legal structural changes made for a previous nonconforming use;  

 

• The structure can be reasonably expected to remain in active use for a period of twenty 
(20) years without requiring repairs or maintenance in excess of fifty (50) percent of the 
replacement cost of the structure, as defined in this chapter, within any five (5) year 
period; and  

 

• The continuation of the use or structure will not be incompatible with or detrimental to 
surrounding conforming uses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 3897 
City Council 

May 16, 2019 
Page 2 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council approves the proposed 
mini-storage expansion as a non-conforming use with conditions (Exhibit A): 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the City of Coalinga City Council at a regularly scheduled meeting 
held on the 16th Day of May 2019. 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT: 
 

_________________________________________ 
                                                      Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 
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City Council 
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Exhibit A 

 

Conditions of Approval – Conditional Use Permit 19-02 
(358 E Polk Street) 

 

REVISIONS: Any proposed change to the approved use or activity on the site shall require 

submittal, review and approval of an additional land use application. Any minor changes can be 

reviewed and approved by the Community Development Director unless determined that the 

City Council shall approve such change.  

  

EXPIRATION: This approval shall become null and void if a demo permit has not been secured 

within 6 months of approval. In addition, all conditions must be completed and the occupancy 

or use of the land must take place within one (1) year of the effective date of conditional 

approval. 

 

PERMITS: Prior to occupancy, all licenses and permits shall be obtained from all applicable City 

Departments (Fire department, Building Department, Business, ect.).  

 

CONTINUOUS EFFECT: All of the conditions of this approval are continuously in effect 

throughout the operative life of the project for the uses approved. Failure of the property 

owner, tenant, applicant, developer or any operator to comply with any or all of the conditions 

at any time may result in a public hearing and revocation of the use provided adequate notice, 

time and opportunity is provided to the property owner or other party to correct the non-

complying situation.  

 

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE: The tenant and/or property owner shall continually maintain the 

property and its infrastructure so that it is visually attractive and not dangerous to the health, 

safety and general welfare of both its employees, patrons and surrounding properties.  

 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS: 

 

AC-1. The applicant shall obtain the appropriate approvals from the San Juaquin Air 

Pollution Control District prior to the City issuing a demo permit.  

 

AC-2. The applicant shall file an application for an administrative site plan review with 

the Community Development Department for the reconstruction of the new 

residence prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

 
AC-3. Prior to issuance of building permit, the applicant shall pay all applicable city, 

special district, and regional development impact fees. 

 
AC-4. Prior to approval of a building permit, all stored equipment, trailers, and seatrain 

containers shall be removed from the property. 

 
AC-5. The legal non-conforming status of the structure shall remain in effect in 

accordance with Planning and Zoning Code. The legal non-conforming status shall 

only remain so long as the use is in constant existence.  













STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Check Register: 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019
Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Vivian Sauceda, Financial Services Supervisor

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

II.    BACKGROUND:

III.   DISCUSSION:

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
Check_Register_Cover_Sheet_for_Council-_03-2019.pdf Check Register Cover Sheet - March 2019

Expense_Approval_Rpt-03-2019.pdf Check Register - March 2019



EXPENSES: 3/1/2019 through 3/31/2019

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
Month Ending: 3/31/2019 Registers: # 59445 - #59646 1,127,147.02$      

PAYROLL:
Pay Period Ending: 3/3/2019 Payroll Check # 17730-17738 5,081.12$             

Pay Date: 3/8/2019 Direct Deposit 136,285.64$         
Cash Outs: 3/8/2019 Payroll Check # 17739 11,175.24$           

Payroll Total: 152,542.00$         

Pay Period Ending: 3/17/2019 Payroll Check # 17716-17724 4,761.99$             
Pay Date: 3/22/2019 Direct Deposit 123,599.63$         

Payroll Total: 128,361.62$        

CHECK REGISTER
COUNCIL MEETING OF

May 16, 2019

TOTAL CHECK REGISTERS THROUGH: 3/31/19 1,408,050.64$    
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Expense Approval Report
Coalinga, CA By Payment Number

Payment Dates 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019

Payment Amount

Payment Number

Payment Date

Account Number

Vendor #

Vendor NamePayable Number Description Item Amount

59445 3/7/2019 Andrew Diaz 45.001055

45.00101-413-860102/19 Meal Advance for Public Safety Training20094

59446 3/7/2019 Aramark 934.811068

101.99107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21423687

101.99501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21423687

101.99502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21423687

101.99503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21423687

16.19107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21452734

16.19501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21452734

16.18502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21452734

16.18503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Jackets21452734

3.39101-431-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039707

9.23107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039707

10.20501-503-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039707

9.22501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039707

9.22502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039707

10.20503-520-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039707

9.22503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039707

10.38101-431-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

31.75107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

33.15501-503-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

31.75501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

31.75502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

33.15503-520-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

31.75503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

12.24504-535-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

18.52506-540-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602039708

166.99101-413-703802/19 PD Jail Blanket Cleaning602039709

59448 3/7/2019 BC Laboratories, Inc. 364.5002057

50.00503-520-880801/19 WWP Outside Lab WorkB330251

195.00501-503-880812/19 WP Outside Lab WorkB330450

119.50503-520-880802/19 WWP Outside Lab WorkB330707

59449 3/7/2019 BEEHIVE TRUCK & AUTO 96.801102

96.80107-422-701302/19 PW Propane for Truck007284

59450 3/7/2019 Blais & Associates 2,000.001115

2,000.00107-422-881301/19 ATP Cycle 3 Scope Change Support Svc01-2019-CA1

59451 3/7/2019 Boot Barn 290.6002020

60.00101-440-620802/19 PW Employee Boots-E DeLeonIVC0167666

140.60501-503-620812/19 PW Employee Boots-A UribeIVC0167666

90.00501-508-620802/19 PW Employee Boots-E DeLeonIVC0167666

59452 3/7/2019 Chemtrade Chemicals US LLC 4,444.151192

4,444.15501-503-702402/19 WP Chemical Alum Sulfate92574165

59453 3/7/2019 City of Coalinga 791.461207

136.78502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 31-01008-013030719

152.23502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 42-03719-018030719

68.48502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 42-03309-006030719

99.38502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 22-08435-005030719

18.38502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 01-00139-016030719

61.98502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 32-01197-05030719

vsauceda
Highlight
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48.97502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 81-09306-009030719

104.26502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance 31-10970-009030719

101.00502-510-801002/19 Natural Gas Assistance-71-11609-002030719

59454 3/7/2019 Cook's Communications 107.981243

107.98101-413-840602/19 PD Mic for Patrol Veh139878

59455 3/7/2019 Creative Copy 1,247.891254

1,247.89101-413-700402/19 PD Citation Books62328

59456 3/7/2019 Fastenal Company 319.971356

277.43101-416-704501/19 FD Station SuppliesCALEM27504

42.54101-416-704501/19 FD Station SuppliesCALEM27664

59457 3/7/2019 GCS Environmental Equipment Services 1,147.101422

474.27504-535-840601/19 PW Parts for Street Sweeper18874

672.83504-535-840602/19 PW Parts for Street Sweeper18914

59458 3/7/2019 Geil Enterprises, INC 1,961.181424

246.18101-432-840302/19 Bldg Janitorial Supplies358040

1,715.00101-432-840302/19 Bldg Monthly Janitorial Svc358400

59459 3/7/2019 GRISWOLD, LASALLE, COBB, DOD, & GIN, L.L.P. 696.201450

175.00101-401-880109/18 Legal Svc Fees for Acct 21794.00809252018

121.00101-401-880105/18 Legal Svc Fees for Acct 21794.00709252018

332.20101-401-880105/18 Legal Svc Fees for Acct 21794.10109252018

68.00101-401-920605/18 Legal Svc Fees for Acct 21794.01309252018

59460 3/7/2019 Hach Company 86.451451

86.45501-503-702022/19 WP Lab Supplies11335856

59461 3/7/2019 Intervet Inc 225.131497

225.13101-415-881002/19 AC Vaccines241846906

59462 3/7/2019 Jensen and Pilegard #5 129.691519

129.69107-422-840502/19 PW Repair Backpack Blower396199

59463 3/7/2019 Juan Cisneros 45.001542

45.00101-413-860102/19 Meal Advance for Safety Training20093

59464 3/7/2019 L.N. Curtis & Sons 16.461571

16.46101-413-701012/19 PD Uniform Patch for SaucedaINV255764

59465 3/7/2019 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 87.001592

69.60101-405-8802010/18 ERMA Claim-Sanchez1468269

17.40820-610-8801010/18 ERMA Claim-Sanchez1468269

59466 3/7/2019 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. 551.201630

551.20501-503-701402/19 WP Sump Pump for Hydro Room Drain Well86320762

59467 3/7/2019 Miguel A Gomez 45.001648

45.00101-413-860102/19 Meal Advance for Safety Training20095

59468 3/7/2019 Mountain Valley Pest Control 113.001661

35.00503-521-881001/19 PW Pest Control Svc98989

28.00101-432-840301/19 Bldg Pest Control Svc98990

50.00101-435-840301/19 AP Pest Control Svc98992

59469 3/7/2019 MVP Repair Service Co. 5,493.291664

5,493.29501-508-881002/19 PW Large Meter Testing & Repairs3909

59470 3/7/2019 National Meter & Automation, Inc. 1,166.501671

1,166.50501-508-980542/19 PW Water MetersS1110686.002
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59472 3/7/2019 Raul Herrera 600.001755

600.00101-408-890502/19 HR PolygraphsCOALPD-PD-2019

59474 3/7/2019 Suzanne Redding 56.001885

56.00101-408-860102/19 Meal Advance for Payroll Law Seminar20036

59475 3/7/2019 Tyler Technologies, Inc 2,587.411943

34.50101-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25107-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25110-424-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25125-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25127-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25130-451-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25140-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

215.62501-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

215.62502-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

215.61503-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

43.12504-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25506-540-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

17.25820-610-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249187

34.50101-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25107-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25110-424-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25125-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25127-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25130-451-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25140-422-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

215.62501-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

215.62502-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

215.61503-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

43.12504-406-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25506-540-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

17.25820-610-880401/19 Hosting User Fee025-249415

34.50101-406-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25107-422-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25110-424-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25125-422-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25127-422-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25130-451-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25140-422-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

215.62501-406-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

215.62502-406-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

215.61503-406-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

43.12504-406-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25506-540-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

17.25820-610-880401/19 Pro-rated Annual Hosting User Fee025-249442

59478 3/7/2019 USABluebook 160.291964

160.29501-503-701402/19 WP Parts for Air Vac Project807006

59479 3/7/2019 Verizon Wireless Services, LLC 805.191973

38.01101-413-72030Copdmdt 09 612-34689824510028

41.90101-413-72030Blevins 341-75129824510028

41.90101-413-72030Chief 974-67429824510028

38.01101-413-72030Copdmdt 16 612-36079824510028

41.90101-413-72030Velasquez 317-74169824510028

38.01101-413-72030Copdmdt 07 612-34449824510028

38.01101-413-72030Coalpd Lt08 538-40389824510028

38.01101-413-72030Coalpd Lt15 538-49599824510028

38.01101-413-72030Coalpd Lt13 538-44739824510028

38.01101-413-72030Copdmdt 10 612-35369824510028
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38.01101-413-72030Coalpd Lt11 538-43049824510028

38.01101-413-72030Coalpd Lt12 538-43459824510028

20.02101-413-72030Sim card for Traffic Camera 385-63909824510028

43.28101-413-72030UC Investigations 209-620-26359824510028

38.01101-413-72030Air Card 246-19349824510028

47.90101-413-72030Rouch 974-67349824510028

38.01101-413-72030Copdmdt 11 612-35409824510028

72.18101-413-72030Blevins 341-75129824510028

78.00101-413-72030Unlimited Text 15GB9824510028

59481 3/7/2019 WageWorks 75.001983

75.00950-000-346102/19 FSA Monthly FeeINV1219769

59482 3/7/2019 West Hills Machine Shop, Inc. 90.701991

90.70501-503-701401/19 WP Bolt set for P19044790

59483 3/7/2019 Westside Supply 497.101997

220.55501-508-701401/19 PW Locks, shut-offs supplies9570

220.55502-510-701401/19 PW Locks, shut-offs supplies9570

35.00501-508-701401/19 WP Cylinder RentalP190131

21.00101-431-701501/19 SVC Cylinder RentalS190131

59484 3/14/2019 Advanced Flow Measurement 4,458.791024

4,458.79503-520-881002/19 WWP Chart Recorder0003581

59485 3/14/2019 Aramark 705.281068

7.29101-431-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

7.28107-422-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

7.28501-503-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

7.28501-508-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

7.29502-510-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

7.28503-520-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

7.29503-521-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

7.29504-535-701001/19 PW Director Jacket21407095

16.19107-422-701002/19 PW Uniform Jackets21457316

16.19501-508-701002/19 PW Uniform Jackets21457316

16.18502-510-701002/19 PW Uniform Jackets21457316

16.18503-521-701002/19 PW Uniform Jackets21457316

3.39101-431-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046926

9.23107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046926

10.20501-503-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046926

9.22501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046926

9.22502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046926

10.20503-520-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046926

9.22503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046926

10.38101-431-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

29.07107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

33.15501-503-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

29.07501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

29.06502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

33.15503-520-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

29.06503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

12.24504-535-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

18.52506-540-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602046927

3.39101-431-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165

13.50101-432-840302/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165

9.23107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165

10.20501-503-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165

9.22501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165

9.22502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165

10.20503-520-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165
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9.22503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms (Coveralls/Rubber Mat602054165

10.38101-431-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

29.07107-422-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

33.15501-503-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

29.07501-508-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

29.06502-510-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

33.15503-520-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

29.06503-521-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

12.24504-535-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

18.52506-540-701002/19 PW Employee Uniforms602054166

59488 3/14/2019 AT&T 2005 1,576.4402069

242.29101-413-720302/19 PD Multi-line 559-935-849712626065

19.73101-413-720302/19 PD 559-935-600812626065

20.72101-413-720302/19 PD Business Alarm 559-935-035912626065

242.29101-413-720302/19 PD Multi-line 559-935-849612626065

39.80101-413-720302/19 PD Chief 559-935-421012626065

20.72101-413-720302/19 PD Crime Tip Line 559-935-320612626065

98.26101-416-720302/19 FD 559-935-165112626065

240.31101-432-720302/19 City Hall Main 559-935-153212626065

211.48101-432-720302/19 Admin Fax 559-935-078912626065

39.80101-432-720302/19 City Hall Modem 559-934-130612626065

19.07101-432-720302/19 Graffiti Hotline 559-935-328212626065

32.81101-432-720302/19 Bldg. Maint. 559-935-305012626065

76.29101-435-720302/19 AP Weather 559-935-596012626065

19.07101-435-720302/19 AP Maint. 559-935-859412626065

56.01501-503-720302/19 WP Alarm 559-935-302212626065

20.72501-503-720302/19 WP 559-935-188912626065

95.71502-510-720302/19 PW Yard 559-935-118512626065

19.20503-520-720302/19 Sewer Plant 559-935-227512626065

20.72503-521-720302/19 Echo Canyon Lift Station 559-935-187512626065

20.72503-521-720302/19 WWP Lift Station 559-935-551812626065

20.72503-521-720302/19 New Lift Station 559-935-189612626065

59490 3/14/2019 AT&T 2006 121.0202097

0.12101-432-720303/18 Courthouse RVP Project000011080461

-0.15101-413-720308/18 PD Dispatch 559-935-1525000011921764

-0.15101-432-720308/18 Courthouse 559-935-1560000011921764

-0.03107-422-720308/18 PW 559-935-5004000011921764

-0.04501-508-720308/18 PW 559-935-5004000011921764

-0.04502-510-720308/18 PW 559-935-5004000011921764

-0.04503-521-720308/18 PW 559-935-5004000011921764

60.51101-413-720302/19 PD Dispatch 559-935-152512626093

39.80101-432-720302/19 Courthouse 559-935-156012626093

5.26107-422-720302/19 PW 559-935-500412626093

5.26501-508-720302/19 PW 559-935-500412626093

5.26502-510-720302/19 PW 559-935-500412626093

5.26503-521-720302/19 PW 559-935-500412626093

59491 3/14/2019 AT&T 2630 1,128.6002108

1,128.60101-416-720302/19 FD Internet Svc12622147

59492 3/14/2019 AT&T 3310 2,871.3502094

1,699.36101-413-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

175.80101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

15.82101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

82.96101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

116.03101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

17.58107-422-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

1.46107-422-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

210.96501-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151
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7.83501-503-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

26.37501-503-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

17.58501-508-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

5.78501-508-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

184.59502-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

43.95502-510-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

5.84502-510-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

105.48503-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

3.32503-520-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

35.16503-520-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

2.20503-521-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

35.16503-521-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

10.55504-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

2.14504-535-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

59.77506-540-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

3.87506-540-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

1.79820-610-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106331012696151

59494 3/14/2019 AT&T 4050 1,146.6602080

678.65101-413-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

70.20101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

46.33101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

33.13101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

6.32101-432-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

0.59107-422-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

7.02107-422-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

84.24501-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

10.53501-503-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

3.13501-503-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

7.02501-508-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

2.31501-508-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

73.71502-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

2.33502-510-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

17.55502-510-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

42.12503-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

1.32503-520-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

14.04503-520-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

0.88503-521-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

14.04503-521-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

4.21504-406-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

0.86504-535-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

1.54506-540-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

23.87506-540-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

0.72820-610-720302/19 Internet Svc Acct 939106405012622396

59496 3/14/2019 AT&T Mobility 130.471081

59.12101-404-720302/19 Mobility Svc 630-2536828278815X030220

71.35101-431-720302/19 Mobility Svc 698-4142828278815X030220

59497 3/14/2019 BC Laboratories, Inc. 370.0002057

195.00501-503-880812/19 WP Outside Lab WorkB331160

75.00501-503-880812/19 WP Outside Lab WorkB331489

50.00503-520-880802/19 WWP Outside Lab WorkB331874

50.00503-520-880802/19 WWP Outside Lab WorkB332400

59498 3/14/2019 Billingsley Tire Service 1,269.381112

1,249.38504-535-840602/19 PW Street Sweeper Repairs230718

10.00501-508-840602/19 PW Tire Repair230762

10.00502-510-840602/19 PW Tire Repair230762
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59499 3/14/2019 Bureau of Reclamation 104,492.921133

24,910.96501-503-800102/19 Advance Water Delivery for March (262AF)022019

31,566.56501-503-800102/19 Advance Water Delivery for April (332AF)022019

48,015.40501-503-800102/19 Advance Water Delivery for May (505AF)022019

59500 3/14/2019 Coalinga Hardware 327.541224

18.45101-416-840701/19 FD Gorilla Tape782844

109.59503-520-701402/19 WWP Misc Supplies783366

7.78101-416-840302/19 FD Apoxy Glue783371

75.45101-432-840302/19 Bldg. Restroom Project783377

9.22101-416-840302/19 FD AAA Battery 8 Pack783417

3.48101-416-840302/19 FD Low Volt Staple Thermostats783426

12.81101-432-840302/19 Bldg. Awning Removal783431

58.94101-432-840302/19 Bldg. Awning Removal783440

18.50101-432-840302/19 Bldg. Awning Removal783443

5.12501-503-701402/19 WP Misc Supplies783467

8.20101-416-840702/19 FD LED A19 100W783539

59501 3/14/2019 Curtis 1000, Inc 89.841264

28.07101-401-700402/19 Business Cards-R Lander5522030

28.07101-401-700402/19 Business Cards-R Singleton5522030

16.85101-413-700402/19 Business Cards-S Young5522030

16.85101-413-700402/19 Business Cards-D Blevins5522030

59502 3/14/2019 DataProse, Inc. 5,254.441271

300.59501-406-700402/19 Natural Gas Safety Insert Printing3P41868

263.02502-406-700402/19 Natural Gas Safety Insert Printing3P41868

172.84503-406-700402/19 Natural Gas Safety Insert Printing3P41868

15.03504-406-700402/19 Natural Gas Safety Insert Printing3P41868

300.59501-406-700402/19 Income Survey Insert Printing3P41913

263.02502-406-700402/19 Income Survey Insert Printing3P41913

172.84503-406-700402/19 Income Survey Insert Printing3P41913

15.03504-406-700402/19 Income Survey Insert Printing3P41913

300.59501-406-700402/19 Shift S3ctor Insert Printing3P41965

263.02502-406-700402/19 Shift S3ctor Insert Printing3P41965

172.84503-406-700402/19 Shift S3ctor Insert Printing3P41965

15.03504-406-700402/19 Shift S3ctor Insert Printing3P41965

1,200.00501-406-881002/19 Data ConversionDP1900431

1,050.00502-406-881002/19 Data ConversionDP1900431

690.00503-406-881002/19 Data ConversionDP1900431

60.00504-406-881002/19 Data ConversionDP1900431

59504 3/14/2019 Farwest Corrosion 30,569.351355

30,569.35502-510-980402/19 PW Natural Gas Pipeline Corrosion Protection0331594-IN

59505 3/14/2019 Fresno County EDC 6,000.001403

6,000.00101-405-860301/19 Admin Membership Fees 7/18-6/198546

59506 3/14/2019 Glenn E. Mitchell 1,200.001433

600.00101-401-8810012/18 Council Video Production Svc57

600.00101-401-881001/19 Council Video Production Svc58

59507 3/14/2019 Government Staffing Services, Inc 5,346.001439

534.60101-406-881002/19 FY 17/18 Budget129110

1,069.20501-406-881002/19 FY 17/18 Budget129110

935.55502-406-881002/19 FY 17/18 Budget129110

614.79503-406-881002/19 FY 17/18 Budget129110

53.45504-406-881002/19 FY 17/18 Budget129110

1,069.21506-540-881002/19 FY 17/18 Budget129110

1,069.20820-610-881002/19 FY 17/18 Budget129110
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59508 3/14/2019 Hanford Veterinary Hospital 270.151453

270.15101-415-881002/19 AC Euthanasia for 3 animals1110432

59509 3/14/2019 HdL Companies 915.711908

915.71101-406-881002/19 Sales Tax Audit 1st Qtr.0030614-IN

59510 3/14/2019 International Code Council 135.001493

135.00101-404-860302/19 Membership Dues for 2019-20203222878

59511 3/14/2019 KRC Safety CO., INC. 569.431565

569.43107-422-701302/19 PW Street Signs41406

59512 3/14/2019 Landon Investment Co., Inc. 58.971574

27.17101-416-750101/19 FD Amb Meal8365

31.80101-416-750103/19 FD Amb Meal8395

59513 3/14/2019 Life Assist, Inc. 540.701593

540.70101-416-750002/19 FD Medical Supplies902134

59514 3/14/2019 Mercedes Garcia 3.971635

0.66101-401-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.66101-404-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.66101-405-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.66101-406-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.48101-408-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.14107-422-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.01501-406-7001012/18 Breakroom020619

0.17501-503-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.16501-508-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.01502-406-7001012/18 Breakroom020619

0.16502-510-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.01503-406-7001012/18 Breakroom020619

0.14503-520-7001012/18 Breakroom020619

0.01503-521-7001012/18 Breakroom Supplies020619

0.01504-406-7001012/18 Breakroom020619

0.01504-535-7001012/18 Breakroom020619

0.02506-540-7001012/18 Breakroom020619

59516 3/14/2019 Mountain Valley Pest Control 56.001661

28.00101-416-840501/19 FD Pest Control Svc98991

28.00101-416-840502/19 FD Station Supplies99151

59517 3/14/2019 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. 347.791692

51.78504-535-840602/19 PW Connectors for #874316-293258

57.87501-503-840602/19 WP Oil & Supplies for #234316-293319

57.87504-535-840602/19 WP Oil & Supplies for #234316-293319

64.15101-440-840602/19 PW Oil & Supplies for #464316-293802

101.45504-535-840602/19 PW LED Lights for #884316-293803

3.66107-422-840602/19 PW LED Light for #224316-293861

3.67501-508-840602/19 PW LED Light for #224316-293861

3.67502-510-840602/19 PW LED Light for #224316-293861

3.67503-521-840602/19 PW LED Light for #224316-293861

59518 3/14/2019 PG&E 48,810.511721

24.23101-432-720202/19 Electric Svc for Acct 5048050096-1030119

56.33101-432-720202/19 Electric Svc for Acct 5120357172-7030119

42,303.84502-510-800202/19 Gas Delivery  for Acct 7001750902-0030119

6,426.11502-510-800202/19 Gas Transmission Acct 0793426310-9030119

59519 3/14/2019 PG&E 1533-5 59,881.721722

46.76101-413-720204893477005 NE 11 20 15 Telecom Bldg021319

19.20101-416-72020705841037 7th & Elm FD Horn021319

1,014.26101-416-720207053841272 300 W Elm FD Lights021319
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112.71101-431-720207053841462 185 W Gale Recycling Svc021319

513.97101-432-72020795617993 240 N 6th St021319

2,810.71101-432-720207053841516 PD/Jail/City Hall021319

608.65101-435-720207053841565 NW Cor Phelps-Airport Lights021319

59.61101-435-720207053841771 27500 Phelps Ave Ste 1021319

12.79101-435-720207053841899 27500 Phelps Ave Ste 19021319

205.47101-440-720117053841464 Sunset & 5th Ave021319

70.82101-440-720117053841921 Sunset & Washington-Wtr Ftn021319

50.36101-440-720117053841177 300 Coalinga Plaza Ped Frm Prk021319

32.24101-440-720117053841050 5th & Cedar Tower Clock021319

13.71101-440-720117053841936 408 S 5th Lynch Park021319

112.10107-422-720213289090333 260 1/2 Cambridge Ave021319

111.49107-422-720213443128591 City Sunset St Project PM#30257800021319

281.90107-422-720217053841004 160W Elm Arpt 3144 Term Bldg021319

252.30107-422-720217053841253 Cambridge & Joaquin021319

244.10107-422-720217053841505 Cambridge & Elm Hwy 198021319

215.77107-422-720217053841244 TR 5344 Promontory Point021319

68.04107-422-720219713313248 25 1/2 W polk Traffic Control021319

182.89107-422-720217053841979 City Yard021319

168.32107-422-720213443128041 TR 5246 Phase II Stallion Spr021319

3,218.31107-422-720217053841008 160W Elm Arpt 3144 Term Bldg021319

1,176.77107-422-720217053841002 160W Elm Arpt 3144 Term Bldg021319

1,052.18107-422-720217053841016 160W Elm Arpt 3144 Term Bldg021319

1,016.78107-422-720217053841555 TR 5451 Warthan & Meadows021319

414.15107-422-720217053841429 TR 5339 Dorothy Allen Est021319

9.53107-422-720217053841204 SE Crn 1st & Forest Landscap Trees021319

121.84107-422-720217053841535 160 W Elm Street Light Inv Proj021319

126.34107-422-720213443128411 TR 5208 Spano Ent Posa Chanet021319

89.05107-422-720213249826069 TR 4492 Fox Hollow II021319

165.22107-422-720217053841397 Cambridge & Elm Hwy 198021319

33.87107-422-72021705384308 Van Ness & Elm021319

29.69107-422-720213443128925 TR 5140 Sandalwood Const Jayne & Wil021319

29.69107-422-720217053841349 160 W Elm021319

82.38107-422-720217053841379 Polk & Forest Ave021319

46.95107-422-720217053841365 Longhollow & Echo Canyon021319

61.90107-422-720213443128372 TR 5246 Phase I Stallion Sprg Sac & Frs021319

59.36107-422-720213443128611 TR 4492 Fox Hollow II @ Frst & Cox021319

54.38107-422-720217053841913 N/S Valley St Lights021319

51.46107-422-720217053841538 160 W Elm Street Light Inv Proj021319

107.12107-422-720217053841536 160 W Elm Street Light Inv Proj021319

99.00107-422-720217053841534 160 W Elm Street Light Inv Proj021319

95.97107-422-720217053841157 240 W Elm Storage Bldg021319

9.53107-422-720217053841206 Crn Posa & San Sim Lift Station021319

85.88107-422-720211638874976 25 1/2 W Polk021319

83.12107-422-720217053841022 160W Elm Arpt 3144 Term Bldg021319

159.60107-422-720217053841026 160W Elm Arpt 3144 Term Bldg021319

9.53107-422-720217053841439 Phelps & La Cuesta021319

38.68107-422-720217053841501 410 El Rancho Blvd021319

6.96107-422-720217053841661 Forest & 5th021319

10.87107-422-720217050007234 Coolidge N Hachman021319

9.64107-422-720217053841023 Monterey & Tyler Clock021319

9.61107-422-720217053841485 Washington & Fresno021319

9.59107-422-720217053841619 Monterey & Tyler021319

9.54107-422-720217053841791 745 W Forest Ave Landscape021319

9.53107-422-720217053841842 350 El Rancho Blvd Irrigation Ctrl021319

9.53107-422-720217053841909 200 El Rancho Blvd Irrigation Crtl021319

24.46107-422-720217053841990 160 W Elm021319

24.46107-422-720217053841014 160W Elm Arpt 3144 Term Bldg021319

17.01107-422-720217053841881 140 E Durian Prkg Lot Lights021319
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14.84107-422-720213443128775 TR 5208 Spano Ent Posa Chanet021319

11.56107-422-720217053841848 SE Juniper Rdg Sprinklers021319

36.69107-422-720217053841694 160 W Elm021319

10.87107-422-720217054518044 Coolidge N Hachman021319

32,539.59501-503-720207053841526 Palmer Ave021319

148.00501-503-720207053841171 SW SW 7 20 15 Booster Station021319

1,840.20501-503-720207053841036 NE SW 26 19 15 Booster Station021319

9.53501-503-720207053841131 SW Crn Gale & Derrick Wtr Mtr021319

31.74501-503-720207053841684 NW NW 11 20 15 Water Dept021319

103.91501-503-720207053841864 NE SW 31 20 15 Water Ctrl021319

15.36501-503-720207053841518 NW NW 31 20 16 Chlorine Booster021319

15.39501-503-720207053841615 SW SW SW 18 20 16 Reservoir021319

182.90501-508-720207053841979 City Yard021319

33.18502-510-720207053841361 Alley S Pleasant & E Warthan021319

32.37502-510-720207053841358 College Alley S Side Cat Pro021319

182.90502-510-720207053841979 City Yard021319

41.64502-510-720207053841574 Coalinga Alley Madison & Mont021319

32.09502-510-720207053841312 Thompson Btwn Valley & Polk021319

31.63502-510-720207053841066 NE Crn Harvard & College021319

26.65502-510-720207053841466 Fres Alley Tyler & Polk021319

25.18502-510-720207053841102 N end of Malple St021319

24.00502-510-720207053841657 Behind 595 Roosevelt Alley Light021319

18.46502-510-720207053841123 Cherry Ln021319

37.30502-510-720207053841697 Baker Alley021319

45.96502-510-720207053841783 California Alley021319

46.64502-510-720207053841243 Pine Alley021319

3,864.72503-000-113017053841893 Energy Eff Retofit Loan Instl021319

3,044.50503-520-720207052100780 NE SE 33 20 15 WWP021319

1,009.93503-520-720207056603692 SE 33 20 15 WWP021319

55.20503-521-720207053841845 Sewer Lift Station Polk021319

187.00503-521-720207053841194 Sewer Lift Pump Echo021319

26.10503-521-720207053841367 Sewer Lift Station Kim021319

95.15503-521-720207053841328 Sewer Lift Pump P/L021319

182.89503-521-720207053841979 City Yard021319

59526 3/14/2019 Price Paige & Company 790.001733

158.00101-406-880302/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

39.50150-751-965012/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

39.50150-752-965022/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

39.50150-753-965032/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

118.50501-406-880302/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Assets14719

118.50502-406-880302/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

118.50503-406-880302/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

15.80504-406-880302/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

23.70506-540-880302/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

118.50820-610-880302/19 Consulting Svc Prep Capital Asset14719

59527 3/14/2019 Resolve Insurance Systems Inc 1,252.141763

1,252.14101-416-750402/19 FD Collections AgencyFebruary 2019

59528 3/14/2019 San Luis & Delta-Mendota 44,697.121804

11,901.60501-503-800103/19 Adj Delivery Jan (Est.300AF/Act.570AF)270021419

10,579.20501-503-800103/19 Advance Water Delivery (240AF)021419

14,634.56501-503-800103/19 Estimate Water Delivery for April (332AF)030719

7,581.76501-503-800103/19 Adjustment for Feb (EST. 275AF/Acct.442AF)17030719

59529 3/14/2019 Self Help Enterprises 200.001821

200.00815-609-881002/19 Loan Svc FeesCOLADM Feb-19

59530 3/14/2019 Solomon Electric and Data, Inc 6,870.001852

350.00101-432-840302/19 Bldg Council Chambers Lighting RepairI190221961
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6,520.00501-503-880402/19 WP New Scada Computer UpgradeI190301973

59531 3/14/2019 Sun Run 79.201881

79.20101-400-421303/19 Building Permit Refund 1812-020030419

59533 3/14/2019 Telstar Instruments, Inc. 1,303.751898

1,303.75501-503-881002/19 WP Hypo Gen Repair98124

59534 3/14/2019 USA North 811 2,153.441947

717.81501-503-881002/19 WP Annual % of Ticket Fees1131882019DIG

717.82501-508-881002/19 PW Annual % of Ticket Fees1131882019DIG

717.81502-510-881002/19 PW Annual % of Ticket Fees1131882019DIG

59535 3/14/2019 Verizon Wireless Services, LLC 1,032.101973

228.06101-416-720302/19 FD Wireless Svc9824813652

38.01101-406-720302/19 Finance 401-9183 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

38.73101-435-720302/19 AP 381-1120 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

12.28501-406-720302/19 PW 381-1988 40% Acct 516264995-000019825238809

45.02501-503-720302/19 WP iPad-1 978-2846 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

45.02501-503-720302/19 WP iPad-2 383-4121 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

58.67501-503-720302/19 WP Router-1 383-4004 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

67.19501-503-720302/19 WP Router-2 383-4119 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

54.09501-503-720302/19 WP On-call 341-9613 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

54.09501-503-720302/19 WP Primary 383-4514 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

37.95501-503-720302/19 PW Director 341-4461 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

10.74502-406-720302/19 PW 381-1988 35% Acct 516264995-000019825238809

27.04502-510-720302/19 PW Superv 50% 974-1257 Acct 516264995-0009825238809

19.13502-510-720302/19 Field Supervisor 50% Acct 516264995-000019825238809

19.01502-510-720302/19 PW Tablet 240-3695 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

15.35502-510-720302/19 PW Stand by 50% 383-4014 Acct 516264995-009825238809

7.06503-406-720302/19 PW 381-1988 23% Acct 516264995-000019825238809

12.24503-520-720302/19 WWP 341-3958 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

42.92503-520-720302/19 WWP Wifi 383-4044 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

15.34503-521-720302/19 PW Stand by 50% 383-4014 Acct 516264995-009825238809

19.12503-521-720302/19 Field Supervisor 50% Acct 516264995-000019825238809

19.00503-521-720302/19 PW Tablet 240-3695 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

27.05503-521-720302/19 PW Superv 50% 974-1257 Acct 516264995-0009825238809

0.61504-406-720302/19 PW 381-1988 2% Acct 516264995-000019825238809

40.92506-540-720302/19 Transit M.Garcia 246-6243 Acct516264995-0009825238809

38.73506-540-720302/19 Transit 246-1403 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

38.73506-540-720302/19 Transit 246-0331 Acct 516264995-000019825238809

59537 3/14/2019 Visual Ink 309.2502021

43.83101-415-7010012/18 PD Shirts for ACO Meza12139

189.08101-413-840602/19 PD Reflective Film for Electric Vehicle12379

76.34101-413-701012/19 PD Shirts for PSD Nieto12443

59538 3/14/2019 West Hills Medical Group, Inc. 795.001992

70.00101-408-880602/19 HR Med Physicals/DOT Testing-K Zelenka2019-109

70.00101-408-880602/19 HR Med Physicals/DOT Testing-P Esparza2019-109

70.00101-408-880602/19 HR Med Physicals/DOT Testing-R Cabral2019-109

195.00101-408-890402/19 HR Med Physicals/DOT Testing-M Garcia2019-109

195.00101-408-890402/19 HR Med Physicals/DOT Testing-B Alcaraz2019-109

195.00101-408-890402/19 HR Med Physicals/DOT Testing-J Contreras2019-109

59539 3/14/2019 West Hills Oil, Inc. 7,423.801993

3,353.44101-416-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 20062546

62.36101-431-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 700162546

92.46101-440-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 607062546

461.40101-440-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 40062546

113.19107-422-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 607062546

142.45107-422-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 40062546



Expense Approval Report Payment Dates: 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019

4/10/2019 5:24:35 PM Page 12 of 30

Payment Amount

Payment Number

Payment Date

Account Number

Vendor #

Vendor NamePayable Number Description Item Amount

241.07501-406-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 90062546

527.74501-503-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 60062546

92.47501-508-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 607062546

461.41501-508-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 40062546

210.94502-406-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 90062546

92.47502-510-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 607062546

461.41502-510-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 40062546

138.62503-406-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 90062546

131.93503-520-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 60062546

461.41503-521-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 40062546

92.47503-521-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 607062546

12.05504-406-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 90062546

274.51504-535-701602/19 PW Fuel Purchases for Acct 700162546

59541 3/14/2019 Westside Supply 249.531997

28.21101-432-840502/19 PW Utility Parts & Supplies9596

41.49501-508-701402/19 PW Utility Parts & Supplies9596

4.66502-510-701402/19 PW Utility Parts & Supplies9596

89.39502-510-701402/19 PW Utility Parts & Supplies9653

29.78503-520-701402/19 PW Utility Parts & Supplies9653

35.00501-508-701402/19 PW Cylinder RentalP190228

21.00101-431-701502/19 SVC CTR Cylinder RentalS190228

59542 3/14/2019 Woodard & Curran Inc. 1,372.0002145

1,372.00501-503-881002/19 WP Water Audit Validations160281

59543 3/14/2019 Zee Medical Service Co. 129.122007

89.69501-503-840722/19 WP Medical Supplies66617448

39.43503-520-840732/19 WWP Medical Supplies66617449

59544 3/14/2019 CB&T COLUMBUS BANK & TRUST 380.331176

192.30950-000-34500Dependent Care0000564

188.03950-000-34500Unreimbursed Medical0000585

59545 3/14/2019 City Employee Contrib. Assoc. 65.001205

65.00950-000-33000CECA Dues0000571

59546 3/14/2019 COALINGA FIREFIGHTERS 550.001223

550.00950-000-33300Fire Union Dues0000572

59547 3/14/2019 COALINGA PEACE OFFICER'S ASSOCIATION 905.761228

297.50950-000-33200Mastagni Law Firm0000576

297.50950-000-33200CPOA Dues0000578

310.76950-000-33200PORAC Dues0000579

59548 3/14/2019 Fresno Co., Sheriff's Office 507.391395

495.39950-000-34050Fresno Co. Sheriff Ganishment0000573

12.00950-000-34050Fresno Co. Sheriff Gan Fee0000574

59549 3/14/2019 ICMA 457 RETIREMENT TRUST 9,547.281487

620.75950-000-32100457 ICMA $$ Gen0000556

1,430.58950-000-32100457 ICMA $$ Manager0000557

6,071.65950-000-32100457 ICMA % General0000558

1,035.27950-000-32100457 ICMA EE$ / ER%0000559

389.03950-000-32100457 ICMA EE% / ER$0000560

59550 3/14/2019 LEGAL SHIELD 147.711586

147.71950-000-34060Pre-Paid Legal Shield0000575

59551 3/14/2019 New York Life Insurance 708.9602043

708.96950-000-32400New Your Life0000577
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59552 3/14/2019 Newport Trust Company 3,937.951677

621.34950-000-32100457 Newport $$0000561

2,322.26950-000-32100457 Newport %0000562

994.35950-000-32100457 Newport EE$ / ER%0000563

59553 3/14/2019 SEIU Local 521 - Dues W/H 522.891820

10.00950-000-33000SEIU COPE0000580

512.89950-000-33000SEIU Dues0000581

59554 3/21/2019 Alliant Insurance Services 119.001037

119.00101-401-882201/19 Special Event Coverage for Imaginarium011018

59555 3/21/2019 AT&T 33.031079

33.03503-521-720303/19 PW Lift Station030119

59556 3/21/2019 AT&T 4711 301.3102056

301.31101-413-720302/19 PD DOJ Line12622534

59557 3/21/2019 Billingsley Tire Service 207.081112

207.08101-413-840602/19 PD Tires for Patrol Vehicle230738

59558 3/21/2019 City of Coalinga 8,446.051207

39.92101-413-7201090-11379-001 Animal House-Fresno/Coalinga Rd0000631

669.66101-416-7201070-08484-001 302 W Elm-Firehouse0000631

1,300.46101-432-7201070-08563-002 155 W Durian-Bldg0000631

39.49101-432-7201070-08559-001 160 W Elm-Annex0000631

358.85101-432-7201070-08562-001 155 W Durian-Landscaping0000631

16.39101-432-7201070-08558-001 160 W Elm-Old City Hall0000631

39.88101-435-7201090-10883-001 27500 W Phelps-AP Access Road0000631

32.92101-435-7201090-11994-001 Airport-Median 40000631

28.75101-435-7201090-11993-001 Airport-Median 30000631

19.01101-435-7201090-11991-001 Airport-Median 10000631

61.67101-435-7201090-10891-001 27500 W Phelps-AP Spencer House0000631

47.62101-435-7201090-10892-002 Coalinga AP Res0000631

35.70101-435-7201090-11992-001 Airport-Median 20000631

23.81101-440-7201151-04490-001 E Aport/Elm Lots0000631

23.81101-440-7201101-11879-001 Plaza Park0000631

23.81101-440-7201170-08679-001 Sunset/6th-Ventera0000631

23.81101-440-7201182-10406-001 E Polk/Warthan Crk Lot0000631

809.27101-440-7201184-12000-001 Sandalwood Park 30000631

1,003.32101-440-7201144-11880-001 Centennial Park0000631

66.42101-440-7201170-08445-001 6th/Elm-Parking0000631

25.24101-440-7201171-11970-001 Forest/Pacific0000631

357.55101-440-7201188-11697-003 Bourdeaux/Freisa0000631

360.41101-440-7201171-08739-001 200 E Pacific0000631

437.56101-440-7201145-11979-001 Centennial Park Landscaping0000631

23.81101-440-7201184-11980-001 Jayne Ave Landscaping0000631

23.81101-440-7201142-11981-001 W Gale & Hwy 1980000631

23.81101-440-7201151-04491-001 E Elm Trees0000631

23.81107-422-7201042-03294-001 Sunset/Fifth Lot0000631

95.20107-422-7201044-04178-001 San Simeon/Posa Chanet0000631

23.81107-422-7201052-11633-001 Cherry Ln-Median 30000631

95.20107-422-7201045-04295-002 Phelps/La Cuesta0000631

23.81107-422-7201041-03193-001 Princeton/Wash Lot0000631

95.20107-422-7201082-10397-001 1075 W Elm/Pacific/Lucille0000631

99.71107-422-7201084-10691-003 Juniper/Jayne0000631

23.81107-422-7201051-04426-001 Baker/Rotary Lot0000631

99.71107-422-7201084-10693-001 Juniper Rdg/Jayne0000631

23.81107-422-7201051-12025-001 E Elm/Van Ness Trees0000631

109.53107-422-7201070-11990-001 Elm/6th Landscaping 20000631

23.81107-422-7201070-11988-001 Elm/6th Landscaping0000631
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23.81107-422-7201082-11910-001 Hwy 198/Lucille-Landscaping0000631

23.81107-422-7201084-11908-001 Copper/Canyon-Landscaping0000631

28.10107-422-7201070-11963-001 Cedar/Fifth Clock0000631

23.81107-422-7201061-06870-001 Lynch Park-Triangle0000631

28.32107-422-7201084-10692-001 Juniper Rdg/Jayne0000631

28.32107-422-7201084-10736-001 Sandalwood/Longhollow0000631

23.81107-422-7201052-06069-001 Van Ness/Second St Lot0000631

23.81107-422-7201052-11631-001 Cherry Ln-Median 10000631

364.70107-422-7201041-03184-001 W Joaquin/Wash Lot0000631

225.25107-422-7201042-03438-001 Van Ness/Ash St. Lot0000631

23.81107-422-7201052-11634-001 Cherry Ln-Median 40000631

23.81107-422-7201001-11987-001 Elm/4th Landscaping 20000631

23.81107-422-7201022-08436-001 Forest/First Lot0000631

23.81107-422-7201062-08395-001 Forest/Second St0000631

18.96107-422-7201041-03130-001 Monterey/Monroe0000631

15.24107-422-7201052-11632-001 Cherry Ln-Median 20000631

147.16107-422-7201070-08463-001 290 W Elm-Museum0000631

23.81107-422-7201001-00006-001 200 E Elm-Trees0000631

23.81107-422-7201022-11239-001 Creek Side Lot0000631

23.81107-422-7201045-04297-002 Posa Chanet Blvd0000631

23.81107-422-7201001-11986-001 Elm/4th Landscaping0000631

361.84503-520-7201082-11346-001 Waste Water Plant0000631

25.24503-521-7201082-10306-001 Meter Shop0000631

97.15503-521-7201082-10304-001 Service Yard0000631

28.68502-510-801003/19 Gas Assistance Program for 81-09486-005032019

51.41502-510-801003/19 Gas Assistance Program for 62-07786-002032019

61.98502-510-801003/19 Gas Assistance Program for 52-05810-021032019

59563 3/21/2019 Coalinga Hardware 88.171224

28.70101-415-700602/19 AC Tarp783341

59.47101-415-702802/19 AC Dog Food783455

59564 3/21/2019 Department of Justice 1,876.981288

1,876.98105-413-9804010/18-12/18 PD DOJ CLETS LINE358534

59565 3/21/2019 Grainger 254.101445

171.68501-503-701402/19 WP Parts for Basin 29084244830

50.70501-503-701402/19 WP Parts for Basin 29084244848

31.72501-503-701402/19 WP Restroom Repair9087273265

59566 3/21/2019 High Desert Wireless Broadband Communications, LLC 3,932.501462

62.66101-401-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

245.27101-404-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

62.66101-405-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

15.67101-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

95.22101-408-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

1,629.90101-413-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

522.20101-416-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

1.68107-422-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

35.60107-422-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

208.88501-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

8.98501-503-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

53.41501-503-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

6.63501-508-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

35.60501-508-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

182.77502-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

6.70502-510-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

89.01502-510-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

104.44503-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

71.21503-520-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

3.81503-520-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874
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71.21503-521-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

2.53503-521-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

10.44504-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

2.46504-535-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

4.44506-540-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

64.56506-540-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

2.06820-610-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40874

332.50101-413-840602/19 PD MDT Dock Install40888

59568 3/21/2019 J.P. Cooke Co. 58.511503

58.51101-415-700601/19 AC Animal Tags550310

59569 3/21/2019 K. Hovnanian Homes 15,928.4002148

15,928.40101-400-460403/19 Reimb Permit 1903-011 through 1903-018032019

59570 3/21/2019 KINGS COUNTY TROPHY 190.091563

190.09101-413-700102/19 PD Employee of the Year2159

59571 3/21/2019 L.N. Curtis & Sons 441.261571

441.26101-413-701012/19 PD Duty Belt EquipINV258344

59572 3/21/2019 Life Assist, Inc. 527.191593

527.19101-416-750002/19 FD Medical Supplies904657

59573 3/21/2019 Mariano Castillo 62.751621

62.75502-510-801003/19 Gas Assistance Program032019

59574 3/21/2019 Mercedes Garcia 57.931635

9.66101-401-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

9.65101-404-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

9.65101-405-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

9.65101-406-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

6.98101-408-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

2.06107-422-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

0.19501-406-700102/19 Breakroom020719

2.50501-503-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

2.33501-508-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

0.17502-406-700102/19 Breakroom020719

2.33502-510-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

0.11503-406-700102/19 Breakroom020719

2.12503-520-700102/19 Breakroom020719

0.10503-521-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies020719

0.01504-406-700102/19 Breakroom020719

0.10504-535-700102/19 Breakroom020719

0.32506-540-700102/19 Breakroom020719

59576 3/21/2019 Mountain Valley Pest Control 225.001661

56.00101-415-881001/19 AC Pest Control Svc98988

56.00101-415-881002/19 AC Pest Control Svc99150

35.00503-521-881002/19 PW Pest Control Svc99152

28.00101-432-840302/19 Bldg Pest Control Svc99153

50.00101-435-840302/19 AP Pest Control Svc99154

59577 3/21/2019 Northern Safety Co., Inc 499.701686

166.57501-508-701403/19 PW Safety Equipment903350862

166.56502-510-701403/19 PW Safety Equipment903350862

166.57503-521-701403/19 PW Safety Equipment903350862

59578 3/21/2019 Office Depot 144.971695

45.59101-413-700102/19 PD MMJ Badges & Pens271926492001

26.50101-413-700102/19 PD Office Supplies271927344001

72.88101-413-700102/19 PD Office Supplies279387227001
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59579 3/21/2019 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. 297.991692

66.38501-508-840602/19 PW Parts for #1114316-294409

66.38502-510-840602/19 PW Parts for #1114316-294409

66.38503-521-840602/19 PW Parts for #1114316-294409

55.67101-416-840602/19 FD V-band for #72014316-294532

43.18504-535-840602/19 PW Hydrloil for #884316-294532

59580 3/21/2019 Pacific Telemanagement Services 66.001513

33.00101-435-7203012/18 AP Payphone2009409

33.00101-435-720302/19 AP Payphone2014120

59581 3/21/2019 Pacific Towing & Transport 750.0002147

750.00101-416-840601/19 FD Tow 7201 to Keller Ford1331

59582 3/21/2019 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INC. 858.4702047

858.47101-416-750002/19 FD Oxygen87996317

59583 3/21/2019 RSG, Inc. 3,043.7502048

2,883.75820-610-881002/19 Admin SA SvcI004518

160.00820-610-965002/19 Bond Disclosure Report 17-18I004520

59584 3/21/2019 Save Mart Supermarkets 247.741810

7.34101-401-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

7.34101-404-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

7.34101-405-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

7.34101-406-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

5.31101-408-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

1.56107-422-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

0.15501-406-700107/18 Breakroom0420180719022920

1.90501-503-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

1.77501-508-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

0.13502-406-700107/18 Breakroom0420180719022920

1.77502-510-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

0.08503-406-700107/18 Breakroom0420180719022920

1.62503-520-700107/18 Breakroom0420180719022920

0.08503-521-700107/18 Breakroom Supplies0420180719022920

0.01504-406-700107/18 Breakroom0420180719022920

0.07504-535-700107/18 Breakroom0420180719022920

0.24506-540-700107/18 Breakroom0420180719022920

91.33101-413-703802/19 PD Inmate Meals0420190203071300

5.76101-401-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

5.76101-404-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

5.76101-405-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

5.76101-406-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

4.17101-408-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

1.22107-422-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

0.11501-406-700102/19 Breakroom0420190207023417

1.50501-503-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

1.39501-508-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

0.10502-406-700102/19 Breakroom0420190207023417

1.39502-510-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

0.06503-406-700102/19 Breakroom0420190207023417

1.27503-520-700102/19 Breakroom0420190207023417

0.06503-521-700102/19 Breakroom Supplies0420190207023417

0.01504-406-700102/19 Breakroom0420190207023417

0.06504-535-700102/19 Breakroom0420190207023417

0.19506-540-700102/19 Breakroom0420190207023417

77.79101-413-703802/19 PD Inmate Meals0420190220064757

59587 3/21/2019 Shell Energy North American (US), LP 216,676.791830

216,676.79502-510-800302/19 Natural Gas Deliveries3186669
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59588 3/21/2019 Stacy Anderson 75.571864

75.57101-413-980303/19 PD Reimb for Microwave031219

59589 3/21/2019 The Ed Jones Co.,  Inc. 440.711905

414.51101-413-701018/18 PD Badge for Ybarra41906

26.20101-413-7010111/18 PD Excusion Pins42505

59590 3/21/2019 Trans Union LLC 126.881931

126.88101-413-900702/19 PD MMJ Backgrounds02930428

59591 3/21/2019 Verizon Wireless Services, LLC 38.011973

38.01101-413-720302/19 PD MDT Aircard9824498948

59592 3/21/2019 Visual Ink 443.4902021

443.49107-422-701302/19 PW Street Name Panel12521

59593 3/21/2019 West Hills Oil, Inc. 4,244.931993

43.68101-404-701602/19 CD Fuel Purchases for Acct 20162545

3,617.60101-413-701602/19 PD Fuel Purchases for Acct 30062545

220.82101-415-701602/19 AC Fuel Purchases for Acct 30062545

362.83506-540-701602/19 Transit Fuel Purchases for Acct 20262545

59594 3/21/2019 Westside Supply 29.981997

29.98501-508-701402/19 PW Backflow Parts9600

59595 3/21/2019 CB&T COLUMBUS BANK & TRUST 380.331176

192.30950-000-34500Dependent Care0000604

188.03950-000-34500Unreimbursed Medical0000625

59596 3/21/2019 City Employee Contrib. Assoc. 65.001205

65.00950-000-33000CECA Dues0000611

59597 3/21/2019 COALINGA FIREFIGHTERS 550.001223

550.00950-000-33300Fire Union Dues0000612

59598 3/21/2019 COALINGA PEACE OFFICER'S ASSOCIATION 905.761228

297.50950-000-33200Mastagni Law Firm0000616

297.50950-000-33200CPOA Dues0000618

310.76950-000-33200PORAC Dues0000619

59599 3/21/2019 Fresno Co., Sheriff's Office 427.451395

415.45950-000-34050Fresno Co. Sheriff Ganishment0000613

12.00950-000-34050Fresno Co. Sheriff Gan Fee0000614

59600 3/21/2019 ICMA 457 RETIREMENT TRUST 8,300.221487

620.75950-000-32100457 ICMA $$ Gen0000596

1,318.08950-000-32100457 ICMA $$ Manager0000597

4,930.76950-000-32100457 ICMA % General0000598

1,041.60950-000-32100457 ICMA EE$ / ER%0000599

389.03950-000-32100457 ICMA EE% / ER$0000600

59601 3/21/2019 LEGAL SHIELD 147.711586

147.71950-000-34060Pre-Paid Legal Shield0000615

59602 3/21/2019 New York Life Insurance 723.9602043

723.96950-000-32400New Your Life0000617

59603 3/21/2019 Newport Trust Company 3,528.381677

621.34950-000-32100457 Newport $$0000601

1,905.54950-000-32100457 Newport %0000602

1,001.50950-000-32100457 Newport EE$ / ER%0000603

59604 3/21/2019 SEIU Local 521 - Dues W/H 518.241820

10.00950-000-33000SEIU COPE0000620
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508.24950-000-33000SEIU Dues0000621

59605 3/28/2019 Advanced Lighting Services, Inc. 6,055.5702149

6,055.57107-422-720213/19 PW Light Repair on 5th near Christmas Tree42920

59606 3/28/2019 Alco Services 266.2502150

266.25101-416-840203/19 FD Washing Mach Repair11632

59607 3/28/2019 Angelica Corporation 551.381056

551.38101-416-750203/19 FD Linens7000198851

59608 3/28/2019 Aramark 464.871068

166.99101-413-703803/19 PD Jail Blanket Cleaning Service602054167

3.39101-431-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

13.50101-432-840303/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

9.23107-422-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

10.20501-503-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

9.22501-508-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

9.22502-510-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

10.20503-520-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

9.22503-521-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061403

10.38101-431-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

29.07107-422-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

33.15501-503-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

29.07501-508-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

29.06502-510-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

33.15503-520-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

29.06503-521-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

12.24504-535-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

18.52506-540-701003/19 PW Employee Uniforms602061404

59610 3/28/2019 Best Western Plus Novato Oaks Inn 1,234.1002153

1,234.10101-415-860103/19 AC Hotel for B. Meza20197

59611 3/28/2019 Brian Meza 540.0002058

540.00101-415-860103/19 AC Meal Advance for Basic Animal Law Enforc20197

59612 3/28/2019 California Water Service 7,164.001159

6,084.00501-503-881002/19 Water Consulting Svc0039676-IN

1,080.00503-520-881002/19 Water Consulting Svc0039676-IN

59613 3/28/2019 Deluxe Business Forms 447.471282

316.89101-408-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

5.59107-422-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

8.86501-406-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

26.18501-503-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

18.35501-508-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

7.74502-406-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

18.57502-510-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

5.10503-406-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

8.95503-520-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

4.70503-521-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

0.45504-406-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

4.47504-535-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

14.77506-540-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

6.85820-610-700103/19 Payroll Checks02044632431

59614 3/28/2019 Department of Justice 291.001288

160.00101-413-881003/19 PD Livescans358728

96.00101-408-890703/19 HR Livescans360773

35.00101-413-880803/19 PD Blood Alcohol Analysis363738
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59615 3/28/2019 Fresno Co., Sheriff's Office 335.821395

335.82101-413-881002/19 PD RMS/JMS/CADSO16326

59616 3/28/2019 Frisch Engineering, Inc. 8,900.0002091

8,900.00501-503-881003/19 WP Engineering Svc8048

59617 3/28/2019 Government Staffing Services, Inc 2,226.001439

222.60101-406-881003/19 FY 17-18 Budget129138

445.20501-406-881003/19 FY 17-18 Budget129138

389.55502-406-881003/19 FY 17-18 Budget129138

255.99503-406-881003/19 FY 17-18 Budget129138

22.25504-406-881003/19 FY 17-18 Budget129138

445.21506-540-881003/19 FY 17-18 Budget129138

445.20820-610-881003/19 FY 17-18 Budget129138

59618 3/28/2019 Grainger 338.781445

338.78501-503-701401/19 WP Parts for Hypo Pump9070742250

59619 3/28/2019 High Desert Wireless Broadband Communications, LLC 7,627.501462

62.66101-401-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

245.27101-404-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

62.66101-405-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

15.67101-406-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

95.22101-408-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

1,629.90101-413-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

522.20101-416-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

1.68107-422-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

35.60107-422-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

208.88501-406-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

8.98501-503-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

53.41501-503-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

35.60501-508-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

6.63501-508-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

182.77502-406-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

6.70502-510-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

89.01502-510-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

104.44503-406-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

3.81503-520-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

71.21503-520-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

2.53503-521-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

71.21503-521-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

10.44504-406-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

2.46504-535-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

64.56506-540-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

4.44506-540-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

2.06820-610-8804011/18 IT Monthly Contract40832

62.66101-401-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

245.27101-404-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

62.66101-405-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

15.67101-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

95.22101-408-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

427.50101-413-880402/19 PD IT Svc40893

1,629.90101-413-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

522.20101-416-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

1.68107-422-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

35.60107-422-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

208.88501-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

8.98501-503-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

53.41501-503-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

6.63501-508-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

35.60501-508-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893
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182.77502-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

6.70502-510-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

89.01502-510-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

104.44503-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

3.81503-520-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

71.21503-520-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

2.53503-521-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

71.21503-521-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

10.44504-406-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

2.46504-535-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

4.44506-540-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

64.56506-540-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

2.06820-610-880402/19 IT Monthly Contract40893

59623 3/28/2019 Home Depot Credit Services 367.161474

91.24107-422-701201/19 PW Misc Supplies3023598

118.77815-609-881001/19 PW Misc Supplies3023598

80.82107-422-840501/19 PW Misc Supplies4031486

15.89501-508-701401/19 PW Misc Supplies4031486

8.64502-510-701401/19 PW Misc Supplies4031486

51.80101-432-840301/19 Bldg. Misc Supplies6613746

59624 3/28/2019 Interstate Gas Services, Inc. 3,838.751494

2,220.00501-503-881002/19 Gas/Water Consulting Svc7021471

1,618.75502-510-881002/19 Gas/Water Consulting Svc7021471

59625 3/28/2019 L.N. Curtis & Sons 422.181571

422.18101-413-701013/19 PD Duty BeltINV262011

59626 3/28/2019 Lee Central California Newspapers 534.731585

534.73127-422-989602/19 ATP Cycle II-Sidewalk Gap Project234-60000442

59627 3/28/2019 Maria Meza 200.561620

134.56506-540-860103/19 Transit Driver In-service Training Mileage10153

66.00506-540-860103/19 Transit Driver In-service Training Meals10153

59628 3/28/2019 Mountain Valley Pest Control 30.001661

30.00503-520-881002/19 WWP Pest Control Svc99149

59629 3/28/2019 MVP Repair Service Co. 3,672.541664

3,672.54501-508-881003/19 PW Repair Large Meters & Test3910

59630 3/28/2019 Office Depot 1,039.241695

52.81101-401-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

41.88101-404-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

52.81101-405-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

30.30101-408-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

8.89107-422-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

0.83501-406-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

10.82501-503-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

10.11501-508-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

0.73502-406-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

10.11502-510-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

0.48503-406-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

9.21503-520-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

0.44503-521-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

0.04504-406-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

0.42504-535-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

45.97506-540-700109/18 Office Supplies203585450001

49.23101-413-700109/18 PD Office Supplies203651549001

22.30506-540-700102/19 Transit Office Supplies203651549001

43.79506-540-704401/19 Transit Office Supplies248078032001
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121.30101-413-700101/19 PD Office Supplies261787363001

92.45101-401-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

59.81101-404-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

174.16101-405-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

31.15101-408-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

9.15107-422-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

0.85501-406-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

11.13501-503-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

10.38501-508-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

0.75502-406-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

10.40502-510-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

0.49503-406-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

9.47503-520-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

0.45503-521-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

0.04504-406-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

0.43504-535-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

1.42506-540-700102/19 Office Supplies278060868001

1.80101-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284500892001

2.70101-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284500892001

35.95501-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284500892001

31.45502-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284500892001

17.97503-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284500892001

0.32101-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542866001

4.31501-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542866001

3.77502-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542866001

2.16503-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542866001

0.22504-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542866001

0.41101-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542868001

5.43501-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542868001

4.76502-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542868001

2.72503-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542868001

0.27504-406-700103/19 Finance Office Supplies284542868001

59634 3/28/2019 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. 40.991692

13.66107-422-840603/19 PW Vehicle Maint Unit 304316-295281

13.66501-508-840603/19 PW Vehicle Maint Unit 304316-295281

13.67502-510-840603/19 PW Vehicle Maint Unit 304316-295281

59635 3/28/2019 Pacific Telemanagement Services 100.001513

100.00101-413-720302/19 PD Jail Payphone Svc2014637

59636 3/28/2019 R.J. Berry Jr., Inc. 177,798.3902136

177,798.39127-422-989603/19 PW Close SW Gaps & ADA Ramps030419

59637 3/28/2019 RMA Geoscience, Inc 1,760.501771

1,760.50127-422-989603/19 PW ATP Cycle II Sidewalk Gap & ADA Improvmn9040

59638 3/28/2019 Santa Rosa Training Center 144.0002152

144.00101-415-860103/19 AC Animal Law Registration Fee for B. Meza20197

59639 3/28/2019 Shar-Craft Incorporated 1,575.001826

1,575.00503-520-840202/19 WWP Repairs for Effluent Motor I66716

59640 3/28/2019 Sparkletts 102.981858

32.07501-503-720102/19 WP Drinking Water9412248 030119

70.91101-432-720103/19 City Hall Water Delivery9689215 030719

59641 3/28/2019 Telstar Instruments, Inc. 1,871.901898

1,871.90501-503-881002/19 WP Repair Hypo Rectifier98204

59642 3/28/2019 Thomson Reuters/Barclays 478.161920

478.16101-413-900702/19 PD MMJ Backgrounds839903453
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59643 3/28/2019 Tri-City Engineering 44,790.751935

3,200.00305-422-989502/19 Forest St Design2580-17

13,325.00305-422-989402/19 Alley Paving Design Svc2654-08

1,385.00140-422-988812/19 Cambridge Signal Design Svc2691-15

2,730.00501-503-881001/19-2/19 TTHM Reduction Permanent Facilities2745-08

15,529.75127-422-989702/19 ATP Cycle III Design Svc2759-05

629.25501-508-881002/19 PW Water & Sewer Infrastructure2770-10

629.25503-521-881002/19 PW Water & Sewer Infrastructure2770-10

1,615.00111-422-989102/19 Sunset St Reconstrustion Design2772-05

3,385.00503-520-881002/19 WTP Yard Boxes & Pond Rehab-Phase I2786-09

2,047.50305-422-989602/19 ATP Cycle II Construction Mgmt2810-02

315.00101-404-865001/19 Pre-Project Meeting for Advantist Health2811-01

59644 3/28/2019 Tyler Technologies, Inc 862.471943

34.50101-406-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25107-422-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25110-424-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25125-422-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25127-422-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25130-451-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25140-422-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

215.62501-406-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

215.62502-406-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

215.61503-406-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

43.12504-406-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25506-540-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

17.25820-610-880402/19 Annual Hosting User Fee025-251508

59645 3/28/2019 West Pac Industries 442.1002154

442.10501-503-840722/19 WP Safety Equipment352084

59646 3/28/2019 Willdan 840.002000

840.00101-404-881207/18 DR Horton Coventry & Church Plan Check00327452

DFT0000300 3/8/2019 CalPERS 7,061.571162

7,061.57950-000-36000CalPERS Classic F/P ER 320480000565

DFT0000301 3/8/2019 CalPERS 4,955.551162

4,955.55950-000-36000CalPERS Classic Misc ER 320470000566

DFT0000302 3/8/2019 CalPERS 2,223.711162

2,223.71950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Misc 27481 EE0000567

DFT0000303 3/8/2019 CalPERS 2,434.311162

2,434.31950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Misc 27481 ER0000568

DFT0000304 3/8/2019 CalPERS 2,186.741162

2,186.74950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Fire/Police0000569

DFT0000305 3/8/2019 CalPERS 2,306.421162

2,306.42950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Fire/Police ER0000570

DFT0000306 3/8/2019 CalPERS 7,576.201162

7,576.20950-000-32000CalPERS Classic EE w/SS Offset0000582

DFT0000307 3/8/2019 State Disbursement Unit 407.991869

407.99950-000-34010SDU Fresno County0000583

DFT0000308 3/8/2019 State Disbursement Unit 245.071869

245.07950-000-34010SDU Kings County DCSS0000584

DFT0000309 3/31/2019 AFLAC Group Insurance 1,670.161025

1,198.26950-000-34600AFLAC PreTax0000586
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471.90950-000-34600AFLAC After Tax0000586

DFT0000310 3/8/2019 SDI 1,872.6102078

1,872.61950-000-31500SDI0000587

DFT0000311 3/8/2019 SDI (Mgr) 305.4402077

31.76101-404-62050Mgr SDI0000588

9.09101-405-62050Mgr SDI0000588

4.48101-406-62050Mgr SDI0000588

43.81101-413-62050Mgr SDI0000588

45.78101-416-62050Mgr SDI0000588

18.91107-422-62050Mgr SDI0000588

10.06501-406-62050Mgr SDI0000588

17.47501-503-62050Mgr SDI0000588

15.58501-508-62050Mgr SDI0000588

8.67502-406-62050Mgr SDI0000588

21.25502-510-62050Mgr SDI0000588

5.71503-406-62050Mgr SDI0000588

19.36503-520-62050Mgr SDI0000588

19.35503-521-62050Mgr SDI0000588

0.72504-406-62050Mgr SDI0000588

12.61506-540-62050Mgr SDI0000588

20.83820-610-62050Mgr SDI0000588

DFT0000312 3/8/2019 Employment Development Dept. 7,378.671331

7,378.67950-000-31200State WH0000589

DFT0000313 3/8/2019 United States Treasury 51,492.811957

18,452.67950-000-31100Fed W/H0000590

26,777.58950-000-31300Social Seccurity0000590

6,262.56950-000-31400Medicare0000590

DFT0000314 3/8/2019 SDI (Mgr) 175.3002077

175.30101-413-62050Mgr SDI0000591

DFT0000315 3/8/2019 Employment Development Dept. 1,156.971331

1,156.97950-000-31200State WH0000592

DFT0000316 3/8/2019 United States Treasury 6,538.621957

3,856.56950-000-31100Fed W/H0000593

2,173.70950-000-31300Social Seccurity0000593

508.36950-000-31400Medicare0000593

DFT0000318 3/22/2019 CalPERS 6,531.311162

6,531.31950-000-36000CalPERS Classic F/P ER 320480000605

DFT0000319 3/22/2019 CalPERS 4,925.211162

4,925.21950-000-36000CalPERS Classic Misc ER 320470000606

DFT0000320 3/22/2019 CalPERS 2,238.401162

2,238.40950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Misc 27481 EE0000607

DFT0000321 3/22/2019 CalPERS 2,450.401162

2,450.40950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Misc 27481 ER0000608

DFT0000322 3/22/2019 CalPERS 2,203.261162

2,203.26950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Fire/Police0000609

DFT0000323 3/22/2019 CalPERS 2,323.841162

2,323.84950-000-32000CalPERS PEPRA Fire/Police ER0000610

DFT0000324 3/22/2019 CalPERS 7,267.731162

7,267.73950-000-32000CalPERS Classic EE w/SS Offset0000622
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DFT0000325 3/22/2019 State Disbursement Unit 407.991869

407.99950-000-34010SDU Fresno County0000623

DFT0000326 3/22/2019 State Disbursement Unit 245.071869

245.07950-000-34010SDU Kings County DCSS0000624

DFT0000327 3/31/2019 AFLAC Group Insurance 1,670.161025

1,198.26950-000-34600AFLAC PreTax0000626

471.90950-000-34600AFLAC After Tax0000626

DFT0000328 3/22/2019 SDI 1,723.2602078

1,723.26950-000-31500SDI0000627

DFT0000329 3/22/2019 SDI (Mgr) 232.1502077

31.77101-404-62050Mgr SDI0000628

6.14101-405-62050Mgr SDI0000628

4.49101-406-62050Mgr SDI0000628

45.78101-416-62050Mgr SDI0000628

17.43107-422-62050Mgr SDI0000628

9.70501-406-62050Mgr SDI0000628

13.66501-503-62050Mgr SDI0000628

11.77501-508-62050Mgr SDI0000628

8.40502-406-62050Mgr SDI0000628

17.44502-510-62050Mgr SDI0000628

5.53503-406-62050Mgr SDI0000628

15.55503-520-62050Mgr SDI0000628

15.54503-521-62050Mgr SDI0000628

0.63504-406-62050Mgr SDI0000628

11.41506-540-62050Mgr SDI0000628

16.91820-610-62050Mgr SDI0000628

DFT0000330 3/22/2019 Employment Development Dept. 5,638.161331

5,638.16950-000-31200State WH0000629

DFT0000331 3/22/2019 United States Treasury 43,809.621957

14,299.16950-000-31100Fed W/H0000630

23,916.88950-000-31300Social Seccurity0000630

5,593.58950-000-31400Medicare0000630

1,127,147.02Grand Total:

vsauceda
Highlight
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101 - GENERAL FUND 82,200.64

105 - COPS GRANT FUND 1,876.98

107 - GAS TAX FUND 22,598.54

110 - LTF - ARTICLE VIII FUND 69.00

111 - SB1-ROAD REHAB MAINT ACCT FUND 1,615.00

125 - MEASURE C-STREET MAINTENANCE 69.00

127 - MEASURE C-FLEXIBLE FUNDING 195,692.37

130 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS 69.00

140 - GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 1,454.00

150 - COALINGA PUBLIC FINANCING AUTH 118.50

305 - CALTRANS GRANTS FUND 18,572.50

501 - WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 243,765.97

502 - GAS ENTERPRISE FUND 307,183.57

503 - SEWER ENTEPRISE FUND 26,649.98

504 - SANITATION ENTERPRISE FUND 3,427.68

506 - TRANSIT SYSTEM 2,812.06

815 - LOW/MOD HOUSING ASSET FUND 318.77

820 - RORF-REDEV OBLIG RETIREMT FUND 4,816.33

950 - PAYROLL TRUST & AGENCY FUND 213,837.13

1,127,147.02Grand Total:

Account Summary
Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name

101-400-42130 ResidenƟal Solar Permit  79.20

101-400-46040 Plan Checking Fees 15,928.40

101-401-70010 Office Supplies 168.68

101-401-70040 Printing & Binding 56.14

101-401-88010 City Attorney Fees 628.20

101-401-88040 Computer Programming 187.98

101-401-88100 Professional Services 1,200.00

101-401-88220 Special Events Expense 119.00

101-401-92060 Election Expense 68.00

101-404-62050 Disability Income Insura 63.53

101-404-70010 Office Supplies 125.10

101-404-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 43.68

101-404-72030 Telephone 59.12

101-404-86030 Subs., Dues, & PublicaƟo 135.00

101-404-86500 Planning-Reimbursable F 315.00

101-404-88040 Computer Programming 735.81

101-404-88120 Reimburseable Bldg Plan  840.00

101-405-62050 Disability Income Insura 15.23

101-405-70010 Office Supplies 250.38

101-405-86030 Subs., Dues, & PublicaƟo 6,000.00

101-405-88020 Outside Attorney Fees 69.60

101-405-88040 Computer Programming 187.98

101-406-62050 Disability Income Insura 8.97

101-406-70010 Office Supplies 28.64

101-406-72030 Telephone 38.01

101-406-88030 Accounting/Auditing 158.00

101-406-88040 Computer Programming 185.01

101-406-88100 Professional Services 1,672.91

101-408-70010 Office Supplies 395.28

101-408-86010 Training, Travel, & Confe 56.00

101-408-88040 Computer Programming 285.66

101-408-88060 Medical - General 210.00

101-408-89040 Physical w/Drug & Alcoh 585.00

101-408-89050 Polygraphs 600.00
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101-408-89070 Fingerprinting Expense 96.00

101-413-62050 Disability Income Insura 219.11

101-413-70010 Office Supplies 505.59

101-413-70040 Printing & Binding 1,281.59

101-413-70101 Uniforms-Safety Equipm 1,396.95

101-413-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 3,617.60

101-413-70380 Inmate Food/Jail Supplie 503.10

101-413-72010 Water, Gas, SanitaƟon &  39.92

101-413-72020 Electric 46.76

101-413-72030 Telephone 4,268.43

101-413-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  836.64

101-413-86010 Training, Travel, & Confe 135.00

101-413-88040 Computer Programming 5,317.20

101-413-88080 Laboratory 35.00

101-413-88100 Professional Services 495.82

101-413-90070 Investigative Expenses 605.04

101-413-98030 Office Furniture & Equip 75.57

101-415-70060 Small Tools & Equipment 87.21

101-415-70100 Uniforms 43.83

101-415-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 220.82

101-415-70280 Shelter Food/Supplies 59.47

101-415-86010 Training, Travel, & Confe 1,918.10

101-415-88100 Professional Services 607.28

101-416-62050 Disability Income Insura 91.56

101-416-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 3,353.44

101-416-70450 Station Supplies 319.97

101-416-72010 Water, Gas, SanitaƟon &  669.66

101-416-72020 Electric 1,033.46

101-416-72030 Telephone 1,454.92

101-416-75000 Medical Equipment & Su 1,926.36

101-416-75010 Meals-Ambulance Runs 58.97

101-416-75020 EMS-Linens 551.38

101-416-75040 Ambulance Billing Contr 1,252.14

101-416-84020 Major Equip Repairs &  266.25

101-416-84030 Buildings Repairs & Mai 20.48

101-416-84050 Grounds Repairs & Main 56.00

101-416-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  805.67

101-416-84070 Misc. Repairs & Maint. 26.65

101-416-88040 Computer Programming 1,566.60

101-431-70100 Uniforms 62.37

101-431-70150 Vehicle Parts & Supplies 42.00

101-431-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 62.36

101-431-72020 Electric 112.71

101-431-72030 Telephone 71.35

101-432-72010 Water, Gas, SanitaƟon &  1,786.10

101-432-72020 Electric 3,405.24

101-432-72030 Telephone 1,129.83

101-432-84030 Buildings Repairs & Mai 2,611.68

101-432-84050 Grounds Repairs & Main 28.21

101-435-72010 Water, Gas, SanitaƟon &  265.55

101-435-72020 Electric 681.05

101-435-72030 Telephone 200.09

101-435-84030 Buildings Repairs & Mai 100.00

101-440-62080 Uniform Allowance 60.00

101-440-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 553.86

101-440-72011 Water/Electric - City Plot 3,599.04

101-440-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  64.15

105-413-98040 Major Machinery & Equi 1,876.98
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107-422-62050 Disability Income Insura 36.34

107-422-70010 Office Supplies 28.61

107-422-70100 Uniforms 297.53

107-422-70120 Sidewalk Repairs 91.24

107-422-70130 Street Materials 1,109.72

107-422-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 255.64

107-422-72010 Water/Electric - City Plot 1,902.99

107-422-72021 Street Light Electricity 16,435.92

107-422-72030 Telephone 31.88

107-422-84050 Grounds Repairs & Main 210.51

107-422-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  17.32

107-422-88040 Computer Programming 180.84

107-422-88130 Grant WriƟng/ApplicaƟo 2,000.00

110-424-88040 Computer Programming 69.00

111-422-98910 Sunset Street Improvem 1,615.00

125-422-88040 Computer Programming 69.00

127-422-88040 Computer Programming 69.00

127-422-98960 ADA Imrpov-ATP Cycle 0 180,093.62

127-422-98970 ADA Improv-ATP Cycle 0 15,529.75

130-451-88040 Computer Programming 69.00

140-422-88040 Computer Programming 69.00

140-422-98881 HSIPL Elm/Cambridge Si 1,385.00

150-751-96501 Fiscal Agent Fees-1998 A 39.50

150-752-96502 Fiscal Agent Fees-1998 B 39.50

150-753-96503 Fiscal Agent Fees-1998 C 39.50

305-422-98940 2016 Alley Paving Projec 13,325.00

305-422-98950 Forest Ave 1st-Elm Ave S 3,200.00

305-422-98960 ADA Improv-ATP Cycle 0 2,047.50

501-406-62050 Disability Income Insura 19.76

501-406-70010 Office Supplies 56.69

501-406-70040 Printing & Binding 901.77

501-406-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 241.07

501-406-72030 Telephone 307.48

501-406-88030 Accounting/Auditing 118.50

501-406-88040 Computer Programming 1,489.12

501-406-88100 Professional Services 2,714.40

501-503-62050 Disability Income Insura 31.13

501-503-62081 Safety Boot Allowance 140.60

501-503-70010 Office Supplies 54.20

501-503-70100 Uniforms 180.68

501-503-70140 Utility Parts & Supplies 1,400.19

501-503-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 527.74

501-503-70202 Lab Supplies 86.45

501-503-70240 Chemicals Aluminate Sul 4,444.15

501-503-72010 Water, Gas, SanitaƟon &  32.07

501-503-72020 Electric 34,703.72

501-503-72030 Telephone 486.62

501-503-80010 Water Purchases 149,190.04

501-503-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  57.87

501-503-84072 Safety Equip. Repairs &  531.79

501-503-88040 Computer Programming 6,707.17

501-503-88081 Outside Laboratory 465.00

501-503-88100 Professional Services 25,199.46

501-508-62050 Disability Income Insura 27.35

501-508-62080 Uniform Allowance 90.00

501-508-70010 Office Supplies 44.49

501-508-70100 Uniforms 297.49

501-508-70140 Utility Parts & Supplies 544.48



Expense Approval Report Payment Dates: 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019

4/10/2019 5:24:35 PM Page 28 of 30

Account Summary
Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name

501-508-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 553.88

501-508-72020 Electric 182.90

501-508-72030 Telephone 37.91

501-508-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  93.71

501-508-88040 Computer Programming 126.69

501-508-88100 Professional Services 10,512.90

501-508-98054 Water Meters 1,166.50

502-406-62050 Disability Income Insura 17.07

502-406-70010 Office Supplies 49.61

502-406-70040 Printing & Binding 789.06

502-406-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 210.94

502-406-72030 Telephone 269.04

502-406-88030 Accounting/Auditing 118.50

502-406-88040 Computer Programming 1,410.79

502-406-88100 Professional Services 2,375.10

502-510-62050 Disability Income Insura 38.69

502-510-70010 Office Supplies 44.73

502-510-70100 Uniforms 297.45

502-510-70140 Utility Parts & Supplies 489.80

502-510-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 553.88

502-510-72020 Electric 578.00

502-510-72030 Telephone 251.13

502-510-80020 PG&E Wholesale Transp 48,729.95

502-510-80030 Gas Purchases for Resale 216,676.79

502-510-80100 Gas Assistance Program 996.28

502-510-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  93.72

502-510-88040 Computer Programming 287.13

502-510-88100 Professional Services 2,336.56

502-510-98040 Major Machinery & Equi 30,569.35

503-000-11301 CalPOP Energy Eff.Loan 3,864.72

503-406-62050 Disability Income Insura 11.24

503-406-70010 Office Supplies 29.18

503-406-70040 Printing & Binding 518.52

503-406-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 138.62

503-406-72030 Telephone 154.66

503-406-88030 Accounting/Auditing 118.50

503-406-88040 Computer Programming 1,175.76

503-406-88100 Professional Services 1,560.78

503-520-62050 Disability Income Insura 34.91

503-520-70010 Office Supplies 32.78

503-520-70100 Uniforms 180.68

503-520-70140 Utility Parts & Supplies 139.37

503-520-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 131.93

503-520-72010 Water, Gas, SanitaƟon &  361.84

503-520-72020 Electric 4,054.43

503-520-72030 Telephone 128.20

503-520-84020 Major Equip Repairs &  1,575.00

503-520-84073 Safety Equipment 39.43

503-520-88040 Computer Programming 225.06

503-520-88080 Laboratory 269.50

503-520-88100 Professional Services 8,953.79

503-521-62050 Disability Income Insura 34.89

503-521-70010 Office Supplies 5.84

503-521-70100 Uniforms 297.45

503-521-70140 Utility Parts & Supplies 166.57

503-521-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 553.88

503-521-72010 Water, Gas, SanitaƟon &  122.39

503-521-72020 Electric 546.34



Expense Approval Report Payment Dates: 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019

4/10/2019 5:24:35 PM Page 29 of 30

Account Summary
Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name

503-521-72030 Telephone 233.20

503-521-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  70.05

503-521-88040 Computer Programming 221.22

503-521-88100 Professional Services 699.25

504-406-62050 Disability Income Insura 1.35

504-406-70010 Office Supplies 1.06

504-406-70040 Printing & Binding 45.09

504-406-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 12.05

504-406-72030 Telephone 15.37

504-406-88030 Accounting/Auditing 15.80

504-406-88040 Computer Programming 203.80

504-406-88100 Professional Services 135.70

504-535-70010 Office Supplies 5.56

504-535-70100 Uniforms 56.25

504-535-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 274.51

504-535-72030 Telephone 3.00

504-535-84060 Vehicle Parts, Repairs &  2,650.76

504-535-88040 Computer Programming 7.38

506-540-62050 Disability Income Insura 24.02

506-540-70010 Office Supplies 85.23

506-540-70100 Uniforms 74.08

506-540-70160 Gasoline & Diesel 362.83

506-540-70440 Miscellaneous Supplies 43.79

506-540-72030 Telephone 207.43

506-540-86010 Training, Travel, & Confe 200.56

506-540-88030 Accounting/Auditing 23.70

506-540-88040 Computer Programming 276.00

506-540-88100 Professional Services 1,514.42

815-609-88100 Professional Services 318.77

820-610-62050 Disability Income Insura 37.74

820-610-70010 Office Supplies 6.85

820-610-72030 Telephone 2.51

820-610-88010 City Attorney Fees 17.40

820-610-88030 Accounting/Auditing 118.50

820-610-88040 Computer Programming 75.18

820-610-88100 Professional Services 4,398.15

820-610-96500 Fiscal Agent Fees 160.00

950-000-31100 Federal Withholding 36,608.39

950-000-31200 State Income Tax Withh 14,173.80

950-000-31300 FICA Withheld 52,868.16

950-000-31400 Medicare Insurance Wit 12,364.50

950-000-31500 State Disability Insuranc 3,595.87

950-000-32000 Employee ReƟrement W 33,211.01

950-000-32100 Employee Deferred Com 25,313.83

950-000-32400 Life Insurance 1,432.92

950-000-33000 CLOCEA Dues Withheld 1,171.13

950-000-33200 CPOA Dues Withheld 1,811.52

950-000-33300 Fire Assoc. Dues Withhel 1,100.00

950-000-34010 Other W/H Garnishment 1,306.12

950-000-34050 Garnishment Service Fe 934.84

950-000-34060 Prepaid Legal Services 295.42

950-000-34500 Unreimbursed Med/Dep  760.66

950-000-34600 AFLAC Insurance Withhe 3,340.32

950-000-34610 AFLAC AdministraƟon Fe 75.00

950-000-36000 Employer Retirement 23,473.64

Grand Total: 1,127,147.02



Expense Approval Report Payment Dates: 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019

4/10/2019 5:24:35 PM Page 30 of 30

Project Account Summary
Payment AmountProject Account Key

**None** 1,127,147.02

Grand Total: 1,127,147.02



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Approval of Resolution No. 3772-B Adding Locations Approved for the Operation
of Food Truck Vendors

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Marissa Trejo, City Manager

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

City Manage recommends approving this Resolution to allow Food Trucks to operate in additional
locations.  This was requested as a future agenda item by Councilman Adam Adkisson. 

II.    BACKGROUND:

III.   DISCUSSION:

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
RESO#3772-B_Food_Truck_ADDING_ADDITIONAL_LOCATIONS_DRAFT_051619.pdf Resolution No. 3772-B (Draft Changes)

RESO#3772-B_Food_Truck_ADDING_ADDITIONAL_LOCATIONS_CLEAN_COPY_051619.pdf Resolution No. .3772-B (Clean Copy)



 
RESOLUTION NO. 3772-B 

 
AN AMENDED RESOLUITON OF THE CITY OF COALINGA TO REFLECT ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS APPROVED 

FOR THE OPERATION OF FOOD TRUCK VENDORS  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coalinga (the “City”) has fielded a number of inquiries regarding the 
ability of food trucks to operate in the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mobile food vending, also referred to as “food trucks”, was ranked by Forbes Magazine as the 

number one small business in 2011. With the increase in popularity, operators are always interested in new locations to 
park a food truck. Areas lacking in restaurants and seeking to create synergy are prime areas for this type of user; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that providing an opportunity for Food Trucks to host periodic food truck 

round-ups within the City on designated dates and times would provide a great addition to the special events throughout 
the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on June 1, 2017, by Resolution No. 3772, the City approved the following: 
 

1. Designates the City of Coalinga parking lot located at 6th Street and W. Elm Ave, or an additional location 
determined by the Council by subsequent Resolution, a permitted location to allow food truck round-up 
events.  

2. Establishes general operational standards for each food truck vendors attending the food truck event which 
is attached and incorporated herein as part of the approved resolution. 

3. Sets a sunset date of 1 year from the date for this resolution where a permanent ordinance may be drafted 
to establish land use regulations for mobile vendors within the City of Coalinga.  
 

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2018, by Resolution No. 3772-A, the City amended the General Operational Standards 
for Food Truck Vendors; and   
 

WHEREAS, the City now desires to further amend the General Operational Standards to reflect additional 
locations for the operation of Food Truck Vendors;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Coalinga as follows:  
 
1. The General Operational Standards attached hereto are hereby amended to include additional locations 

listed as authorized locations for Food Truck Vendors.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of May, 2019, at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Coalinga by the following vote:   

 
AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
        APPROVED:  
 
 

____________________________________
 Ron Lander, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Shannon Jensen, City Clerk  



 
 

General Operational Standards 
 

 
1. Location(s).  

a. The City designated parking lot located at 6th Street and Elm Ave.  
b. Properties zoned commercial or industrial within the City where there is an existing 

business present. The Food Truck shall not take up more than 3 parking stalls.   
1.i. Exception: Private Parties in Residentially Zoned Properties reviewed and approved 

by the City Manager and Police Chief. Vending from Food Trucks on the street in 
conjunction with a private party shall be permitted so long as sales are not 
available to the public and the vehicle is parked in front of the residence or in the 
parking lot of a multi-family development.  

2. Facilities Request Form (agreement). Each vendor shall complete a facilities request form with the 
Senior Administrative Analyst’s office.  

a. Liability insurance naming the City of Coalinga as “additionally insured” in the amount of 
$1,000,0000.  

3. Hours of operation shall be no earlier than 8:00am and no later than 10:00pm. 
4. Each vendor is limited to utilizing the designated parking lot three times per week. 
5. Vendors shall display a valid City of Coalinga Business License and Fresno County Health 

Department Permit in plain view.  
6. Vendors shall provide proof of driver’s license registration. 
7. Vendors shall provide proof of a commissary agreement or alternative proof, approved by the City 

Manager or his/her designee, of a relationship with a valid commissary.  
8. All vehicles shall be regularly serviced and maintained.   
9. Vehicles must be entirely self-sufficient in regards to gas, electricity, water, and 

telecommunications.  
10. Each vendor shall provide its own waste container.  
11. Mobile food vendors are subject to the City noise ordinance. 
12. Mobile food vendors shall not engage in alcohol sales or service.  
13. Outside tables and chairs are permitted. 
14. The vendor shall maintain the area within which vending activities occur in a clean, safe, sanitary, 

and dust-controlled condition.  
15. Any other regulations as deemed necessary by the City Manager and/or his/her designee.  
16.  Deposit for trash.  
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RESOLUTION NO. 3772-B 

 
AN AMENDED RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COALINGA REFLECTING ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS APPROVED 

FOR THE OPERATION OF FOOD TRUCK VENDORS  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coalinga (the “City”) has fielded a number of inquiries regarding the 
ability of food trucks to operate in the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mobile food vending, also referred to as “food trucks”, was ranked by Forbes Magazine as the 

number one small business in 2011. With the increase in popularity, operators are always interested in new locations to 
park a food truck. Areas lacking in restaurants and seeking to create synergy are prime areas for this type of user; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that providing an opportunity for Food Trucks to host periodic food truck 

round-ups within the City on designated dates and times would provide a great addition to the special events throughout 
the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on June 1, 2017, by Resolution No. 3772, the City approved the following: 
 

1. Designates the City of Coalinga parking lot located at 6th Street and W. Elm Ave, or an additional location 
determined by the Council by subsequent Resolution, a permitted location to allow food truck round-up 
events.  

2. Establishes general operational standards for each food truck vendors attending the food truck event which 
is attached and incorporated herein as part of the approved resolution. 

3. Sets a sunset date of 1 year from the date for this resolution where a permanent ordinance may be drafted 
to establish land use regulations for mobile vendors within the City of Coalinga.  
 

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2018, by Resolution No. 3772-A, the City amended the General Operational Standards 
for Food Truck Vendors; and   
 

WHEREAS, the City now desires to further amend the General Operational Standards to reflect additional 
locations for the operation of Food Truck Vendors;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Coalinga as follows:  
 
1. The General Operational Standards attached hereto are hereby amended to include additional locations 

listed as authorized locations for Food Truck Vendors.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of May, 2019, at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Coalinga by the following vote:   

 
AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
        APPROVED:  
 
 

____________________________________
 Ron Lander, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Shannon Jensen, City Clerk  



 
 

General Operational Standards 
 

 
1. Location(s) 

 
a. The City designated parking lot located at 6th Street and Elm Ave.  

 

b. Properties zoned commercial or industrial within the City where there is an existing business present. 
The Food Truck shall not take up more than 3 parking stalls.   

i. Exception: Private Parties in Residentially Zoned Properties reviewed and approved by the 
City Manager and Police Chief. Vending from Food Trucks on the street in conjunction with a 
private party shall be permitted so long as sales are not available to the public and the vehicle 
is parked in front of the residence or in the parking lot of a multi-family development.  
 

2. Facilities Request Form (agreement). Each vendor shall complete a facilities request form with the Senior 
Administrative Analyst’s office.  
 

a. Liability insurance naming the City of Coalinga as “additionally insured” in the amount of $1,000,0000.  
 

3. Hours of operation shall be no earlier than 8:00am and no later than 10:00pm. 
 

4. Each vendor is limited to utilizing the designated parking lot three times per week. 
 

5. Vendors shall display a valid City of Coalinga Business License and Fresno County Health Department Permit in 
plain view.  

 

6. Vendors shall provide proof of driver’s license registration. 
 

7. Vendors shall provide proof of a commissary agreement or alternative proof, approved by the City Manager or 
his/her designee, of a relationship with a valid commissary.  

 

8. All vehicles shall be regularly serviced and maintained.   
 

9. Vehicles must be entirely self-sufficient in regards to gas, electricity, water, and telecommunications.  
 

10. Each vendor shall provide its own waste container.  
 

11. Mobile food vendors are subject to the City noise ordinance. 
 

12. Mobile food vendors shall not engage in alcohol sales or service.  
 

13. Outside tables and chairs are permitted. 
 

14. The vendor shall maintain the area within which vending activities occur in a clean, safe, sanitary, and dust-
controlled condition.  

 

15. Any other regulations as deemed necessary by the City Manager and/or his/her designee.  
 

16.  Deposit for trash.  
 

 
 
 

 
 



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Authorize City Manager to Approve the Proposal Received from MuniTemps
Municipal Staffing Solutions for Accounting Services Related to the Preparation of
Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Audit

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Jasmin Bains, Financial Services Director

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the proposal received from MuniTemps Municipal Staffing Solutions for
accounting services related to the preparation for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Audit.

II.    BACKGROUND:

The City has previously used MuniTemps for the preparation of past audits and to fill the interim vacancy of
the Financial Services Director position.

III.   DISCUSSION:

Additional assistance is needed in the Finance Department to prepare and complete the audits in an
expeditious manner to minimize the risk of losing grant funding.  MuniTemps is familiar with the City’s books
and can step in and assist to complete the preparation for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 audit.  The preparation
of the audit requires complex reconciliations and entries in the areas of accounts receivable, accounts
payable, payroll, utility billing, debt service, capital assets and grants.   

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

Total amount of the proposal is a not to exceed amount of $40,000.  The fiscal impact to the General Fund
will be $4,000 (10%) due to the allocation used.  The remaining allocations will be applied to the Water
(20%), Gas (17.50%), Wastewater (11.50%), Sanitation (1%), Transit (20%), and the RDA (20%) funds with
the respective percentages. 

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
MuniTemps_-_Exhibit_A_(FY_17-18_Audit_Prep_Assistance).pdf MuniTemps Proposal



GOVERNMENT STAFFING SERVICES, INC. EXHIBIT "A"

of Municipal Staffing Agreement

Municipality: City of Coalinga, CA Notes

Client Contact:  Marissa Trejo  City Manager 

Interim Position: Principal Accountant Monica Rueda will perform all work under direction of Jasmin Bains.

Bill Rate per Hour: $79.50

Hours per Week: TBD

FY17-18 Audit Prep Assistance (Not to Exceed $40,000).

Start Date: 5/6/2019

Expected Duration: 503 Hours Hours may be extended if requested by City.

Job Description

Authorized Signature: ______________________________________          _____________________________

City Representative                        Date

City will properly supervise MuniTemps employee(s) performing its work and be responsible for its business operations, services, and the quantity and quality of work to be performed under the direction 

of the Financial Services Director. All work performed under the supervision of the Financial Services Director.

Under the supervision of the City  to perform any and all accounting tasks assigned by the Financial Services Director or City Manager. This includes bank reconciliations, GL analysis, and any and all 

accounting tasks directed to be performd by the City.

INVOICING INFORMATION: Let us know who needs to receive a copy of invoices.  Note:  A/P must be copied also. 
Name:________________________     Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:_________________________      Title:_____________________________ 
 
Email:________________________     Email:____________________________ 

Municipal Staffing Agreement City of Coalinga - Exhibit A (FY 17-18 Audit Prep Assistance) 5/2/2019  3:26 PM



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Receive Report and Approve Commercial Cannabis Regulatory Permit for PEP
Partners LLC

Meeting Date: Thursday, May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Darren Blevins, (I) Chief of Police

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

Review and approve recommendation to grant a Commercial Cannabis Regulatory Permit to PEP Partners
LLC.

II.    BACKGROUND:

The City is in the process of reviewing applications for commercial cannabis companies.

III.   DISCUSSION:

PEP Partners LLC is an applicant for a commercial cannabis regulatory permit. All the tasks required by the
ordinance have been completed. This application has been approved for a CUP by the Planning Commission
at its May 14, 2019 meeting. The Police Department has completed all required background checks of the
operation and its ownership. All parties involved meet the minimum qualifications required by city ordinance
and state law. Staff recommends approval of a Commercial Cannabis permit to be issued to Hi Tone Inc.

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

Do not issue the permit     

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

Increased tax and licensing revenue to the City's General Fund.

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description

No Attachments Available



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Council Consideration and Certification of an Environmental Determination for the
Phelps Ave Reconstruction Project and Further Direct Staff to File a Notice of
Exemption with the County Clerk’s Office in Compliance with the California
Environmental Quality Act

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Sean Brewer, Community Development Director

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending that the Council Consider and Certify an Environmental Determination For the Phelps
Ave Reconstruction Project and Further Direct Staff to File a Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk’s
Office in Compliance With The California Environmental Quality Act.

II.    BACKGROUND:

In March of 2016, the City Council reprogramed project funding from Elm Ave to Phelps Ave with the
anticipation of the development of the West Hills College District Office Administration Building. Staff
executed task orders with the City Engineer to begin design engineering and prepared a preliminary budget in
the amount of $865,000 to design and construct Phelps Ave from Posa Chanet to Elm Ave.
 
During the course of project design the City adopted its first Active Transportation Plan (ATP) including the
development of a master multi-use trail system. In the proposed ATP, a segment of the trail was planned
along the Phelps  Ave alignment so the project design was amended to accommodate the new trail network.
 
The project is nearing design completion and staff needs to file an environmental document with the Clerks
office to satisfy the requirements of CEQA and Caltrans related to the issuance of an encroachment permit
near Elm Ave. 

III.   DISCUSSION:

The Phelp Ave reconstriuction project includes the reconstruction of Phelps Avenue from Elm Avenue to Posa
Chanet Boulevard.  Proposed work includes pulverization of existing AC pavement, grading of base material,
removal of minor concrete improvements, installation of curb and gutter, sidewalk, curb ramps, valley gutter,
median islands, AC pavement, multi-use trail, landscaping and irrigation. The project also includes installation of
storm drain inlet, storm drain main, fire hydrants and street lighting.
 
In accordance with California environmental Quality Act (CEQA) this activity constitutes a project under the
statute and an environmental determination must be made. Therefore, staff has reviewed the project scope and
subsequently has determined that this project is categorically exempt pursuant to section 15302 related to minor
alternations to land.
 



The proposed project includes the reconstruction of an existing arterial street and said improvements do not
include an increase in capacity or use beyond its current use. The proposed project would not result in any
significant effects related to biological resources, traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality, and the site would
be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. The proposed construction activity is
expected to occur within the existing right-of-way. 
 
 
With council approval staff will submit the attached notice of exemption to the Fresno County Clerk in
accordance with CEQA. 

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

None.

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

The processing fee for the notice of exemption is $50.00 and will be absorbed by project funding. 

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
NOE_Phelps_Ave.DOCX Notice of Exemption Phelps Ave



 

 

Notice of Exemption  
 

 

 

To:  Office of Planning and Research 
P.O. Box 3044, Room 113 
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 

County Clerk 

County of:   Fresno  

From: (Public Agency):   City of Coalinga  
155 West Durian  
Coalinga, CA 93210  

 

2220 Tulare Street  
Fresno, CA 93721  

 

Project Title:    Phelps Ave Street Reconstruction Project  
 

Project Applicant:    City of Coalinga, 155 W. Durian, Coalinga, CA 93210  
 

Project Location - Specific:  

The proposed project site is located between E. Elm Ave/SR198/33 and Posa Chanet on Phelps Ave in 
Coalinga, CA.   

 
Project Location - City:  Coalinga  

 
Project Location - County:    Fresno  

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: 

Reconstruction of Phelps Avenue from Elm Avenue to Posa Chanet Boulevard.  Proposed work includes pulverization 
of existing AC pavement, grading of base material, removal of minor concrete improvements, installation of curb  
and gutter, sidewalk, curb ramps, valley gutter, median islands, AC pavement, multi-use trail, landscaping and 
irrigation. The project also includes installation of storm drain inlet, storm drain main, fire hydrants and street lighting. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Coalinga  

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:  City Coalinga  

Exempt Status: (check one): 

����  Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 

���� Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 

���� Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 

�   Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  Section 15302 (Minor Alternations to Land) 

����   Statutory Exemptions. State code number:     

Reasons why project is exempt: 

The proposed project includes the reconstruction of an existing arterial street and said improvements do not include an increase in capacity 
or use beyond its current use. The proposed project would not result in any significant effects related to biological resources, traffic, noise, 
air quality, or water quality, and the site would be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. The proposed construction 
activity is expected to occur within the existing right-of-way.   

 

Lead Agency 
Contact Person:  Sean Brewer  

 
Area Code/Telephone/Extension: (559) 935-1533 ext. 143

 

If filed by applicant: 
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  � Yes � No 

Signature: Date:___5/20/2019 Title:     Com. Dev. Director  

���� Signed by Lead Agency ���� Signed by Applicant 
 

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:    
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Approve Contract for Gimme Love to Take Over Animal Control and Shelter
Services for the City of Coalinga

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, Citry Manager
Prepared by: Darren Blevins, (I) Cheif of Police

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

City Manager and (I) Chief of Police request Council approval to enter into a contract with Gimme Love to
take over animal control and shelter services for the City of Coalinga. 

II.    BACKGROUND:

During a recent council meeting, Councilmen Adkisson requested the City look into closing the City's animal
shelter.

III.   DISCUSSION:

Staff made contact with Gimme Love, a non-profit organization that currently operates a Cat Haven in
Warthan Canyon.  Gimme Love and the City have come to an agreement and with the Council's approval of
the 3 year contract, Gimme Love would take over animal control services for the City of Coalinga and would
run the City's animal shelter located at 150 W. Elm Avenue.
 
The cost to the City would be approximately $44,100.00 for the first year and approximately 34,100.00 each
year after.  In addition to the fee the City agrees to lease the current animal shelter to Gimme Love for a
$1.00 a year and allow Gimme Love to purchase the animal control van and its contents for $1.00.
 
Gimme Love would not be required to retain any of the shelter staff.  The current ACO would remain with
the city as an employee and would attend the basic police academy in August.  Upon completion of the
police academy in February 2020, the employee would be reclassified and would become the police
department's 17th police officer which would fulfill the councils Measure J commitment. 

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

The Council can deny the contract and the City can continue to operate the animal shelter and staff an ACO
position at and Fiscal impact of $115,594.00 to the general fund.

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact to the general fund would be approximately $44,100.00 for the first year and approximately
$34,100.00  each year after that.
 
Savings to the general fund for year 1 is approximately $71,494.00 and years 2 and 3 would be approximately



$81,494.00.

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
Gimme_Love_contract_AJM_rev.pdf Gimme Love ACO Contract
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GIMME LOVE ANIMAL SHELTER AND CITY OF COALINGA 
SHELTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the 16th day of May 2019, by 
and between the City of CITY OF COALINGA, referred to hereinafter as “CITY” and 
the Gimme Love Animal Shelter, referred hereafter as “Gimme Love”. 

 
WITNESSETH; 

 
 WHEREAS, the CITY has a need for Animal Shelter Services, 
  
 WHEREAS, the CITY may enter into written agreements  under Municipal Code 
Section 6-1.37 (b), with any veterinarian or any organized humane society or association, 
which will undertake to carry out the provisions of this chapter and maintain and operate 
an animal shelter, and which will license, take up, impound and dispose of animals.  
 
 WHEREAS, GIMME LOVE is able and desires to provide Animal Shelter 
Services, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 
 

A. This Agreement shall take effect on the July 1, 2019 and shall remain in full force 
and effect for a period of three year, ending on June 30, 2022, unless terminated 
earlier, as provided herein.  This agreement may be extended for a two year term 
if agreed upon by both parties and established in writing. 

 
B. Limits of Authority 

 
1. In performing the services required under this Agreement, Gimme Love 

 shall comply with all applicable federal, state, county, and city statutes, 
 ordinances and regulations. 

2. Under Section 6-1.37 (a) the police department under the direction of the 
 City Manager shall supervise and shall have charge of the City’s animal 
 shelter, employees and facilities. Under this authority the police 
 department shall issue special commissions and other legal authority 
 to properly deputize and invest with authority the qualified agents of 
 Gimme Love. Such authority shall be limited to the enforcement of the 
 CITY Code rules and regulations, and in accordance with all 
 provisions of state law. 

 
C.  Shelter Operations 
 

1. Business Hours will be Monday – Friday as established by Gimme Love. 
2. Gimme Love will train employees and shall not discriminate or allow 

 discrimination against any person or class of persons by reason of race, 
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 color, sex, religion, ancestry, disability, marital status, or national origin in 
 any manner prohibited by federal and state statutes. 

3. After hours calls for service which pertain to sick, injured or vicious 
 animals will be handled by the on call field officer within a timely manner 
 the same day. Calls for service which pertain to dead animals that are 
 creating a public nuisance or are hazardous to citizens, will be given to the 
 on call field officer and handled within a timely manner the same day. All 
 other calls will be filed and held until the next business day.   
   

D. Services to be Performed 
1. Provide shelter services for dogs and cats. 

 
E. Standards of Services 

 
1. Gimme Love will lease the Animal Shelter located at 150 W. Elm, 

 Coalinga, CA from City for $1.00 per year. 
2. Gimme Love will use its existing facility to house any and all cats. 
3. Gimme Love will use the Animal Shelter located at 150 W. Elm, 

 Coalinga, CA to house any and all dogs. 
4. Gimme Love shall purchase the existing City Animal Control Van and its 

 contents from City for $1.00. 
 

      F.   Release, Hold Harmless and Indemnification Agreement 
 

Gimme Love agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY and its 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all claims, 
demands, actions, injuries, liabilities, losses, costs or damages, direct or indirect, 
and any and all attorneys fees and other expenses which CITY or its officials, 
officers, employees, agents or volunteers may sustain or incur as a consequence of 
or anyway related to Gimme Love, or its employees, agents and subcontractor’s 
performance of the Services and Gimme Love responsibilities and obligations to 
be performed under this Agreement or its failure to perform or comply with any 
of its obligations or responsibilities contained in this Agreement. This 
indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 
 
 

 
      G.   Insurance 
 

1. Workers Compensation Coverage.  Gimme Love shall maintain Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for its 
employees in accordance with the laws of the State of California. In 
addition, Gimme Love shall require each subcontractor to similarly maintain 
worker’s compensation insurance and employer’s liability insurance in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California for all of subcontractor’s 
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employees.  The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against 
City, its officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers for losses 
arising from work performed by Gimme Love for City. 

 
2. General Liability Coverage. Gimme Love shall maintain commercial 

general liability insurance in an amount not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage.  If a commercial general liability insurance form or other form with 
a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall 
apply separately to the Services to be performed under this Agreement or 
the general aggregate limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence 
limit identified in this paragraph. 

 
3. Automobile Liability Coverage.  Gimme Love shall maintain automobile 

liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage for all 
activities of Gimme Love arising out of or in connection with the Services to 
be performed under this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired 
and non-owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence. 

 
4. Umbrella Coverage.  In addition to commercial general liability and 

automobile liability polices required above, Gimme Love will also maintain 
umbrella liability coverage that supplements such commercial general 
liability and automobile liability policies in an amount of not less than five 
million dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence. Such umbrella policy will be as 
broad as Gimme Love commercial general liability and automobile policies. 

 
5. Endorsements.  Each general liability and automobile, and umbrella liability 

insurance policy shall be with insurers possessing a Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII and which are licensed to conduct business in California, and 
shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

 
a. The CITY, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, 

agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured’s on all 
such policies of insurance with respect to liability arising out of 
services performed by or on behalf of Gimme Love. 

b. These policies of insurance shall be considered primary insurance as 
respects the CITY, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers.  Any insurance maintained by the 
CITY, including any self-insured retention the CITY may have, shall 
be considered excess insurance only and shall not contribute with the 
policies of insurance obtained by Gimme Love. 

c. These policies of insurance shall act for each insured and additional 
insured as though a separate policy had been written for each, except 
with respect to the limits of liability of the insuring company. 
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d. The insurer waives all rights of subrogation against the CITY, its 
elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or volunteers. 

e. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall 
not affect coverage provided to the CITY, its elected or appointed 
officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 

f. The insurance provided by these policies shall not be suspended, 
voided, canceled, modified or reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days written notice has been received by the CITY. 

g. The general liability insurance coverage shall be at least as broad as 
Insurance Services Office commercial general liability coverage 
(occurrence form CG0001). The automobile liability insurance 
coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form 
number CA 0001 Code 1 (any auto). 

 
6. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured 

retentions must be declared to and approved by the CITY.  At the CITY’s 
option, Gimme Love shall demonstrate financial capability for payment of 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions. 

 
7.    Certificate of Insurance.  Gimme Love shall provide certificates of insurance 

with original endorsements to the CITY as evidence of the insurance 
coverage required herein.  Certificates of such insurance shall be filed with 
the CITY on the date of execution of this Agreement by Gimme Love.  
Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the CITY at all 
times during this Agreement. 

 
      H. Contract not Assignable 
 

Gimme Love shall not have the right, authority, or power to sell, mortgage, or 
assign this Agreement or the powers granted to it, or any interest therein, for any 
purpose whatsoever without the prior written permission of the CITY, which may 
be withheld in the CITY’s sole discretion. 

 
 
       I. Gimme Love Independent Capacity 
 

Gimme Love, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall act as 
independent contractors during the term of this Agreement and not as officers, 
employees, agents or volunteers of CITY. All Animal Control Officers shall 
remain the employees of Gimme Love, and Gimme Love shall be responsible for 
compensating the Animal Control Officers and for making the appropriate 
compensation withholdings. 
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       J. Method of Payment 
 

As consideration for Gimme Love carrying out the obligations and responsibilities 
required under this Agreement, the CITY agrees to compensate Gimme Love as 
follows: 

 
1. CITY shall pay the annual sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), 

payable in one lump sum on or about July 1 annually. 
2. City shall pay a one-time Infastructure Upgrade payment of Ten Thousand 

Dollars ($10,000.00) due within ten business days of approval of the 
Agreement by the governing bodies of both the CITY and Gimme Love 
for necessary shelter upgrades for the Animal Shelter located at 150 W. 
Elm, Coalinga, CA. 

3. City shall pay all utilities (water, natural gas, sewer, garbage, recycling, 
and electricity) for the animal shelter used to house dogs at 150 W. Elm, 
Coalinga, CA, up to $2,500 per fiscal year. 

4. City shall pay $1,800 monthly for services rendered to the City for animal 
pick up. 

 
 
       K. Obligations 
 

Gimme Love shall provide CITY with monthly billing invoices, which shall be 
payable within thirty (30) calendar days of the City’s receipt of each invoice. 

 
      L. Default 
 

If either party to this Agreement defaults on any of the terms, conditions or 
obligations of this Agreement, then the non-defaulting party shall give written 
notice of default to the defaulting party stating the nature of the default.  If the 
defaulting party fails to remedy or commences to remedy any such default within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the date the non-defaulting party was given such 
written notice of default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to terminate 
this Agreement by giving the defaulting party thirty (30) calendar days prior 
written notice specifying the effective date of such termination. 

 
      M. Termination of Agreement 
 

Either party may terminate this Agreement, without cause upon giving ninety (90) 
days written notice to the other party. 
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      N. Notices 
 

Any notice to be given in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement shall 
be in writing and shall be served either by personal delivery or by first class mail, 
postage prepaid and addressed to the following: 

 
 CITY:  
 
 City of Coalinga 
 Attn:  Marissa Trejo, City Manager 
 155 W. Durian Ave 
 Coalinga, CA 93210           
 

Gimme Love:  
 
Gimme Love Animal Shelter 
Attn:  George and Lori Anderson 
70946 W. Hwy 198 
Coalinga, CA 93210 

  
   

Notices delivered personally shall be deemed communicated as of the date of 
actual receipt; mailed notices shall be deemed communicated as of the date of 
mailing. 

 
      O. Binding Arbitration 
 

Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this contract, or the breach 
thereof, shall be settled by arbitration administered by the American Arbitration 
Association in accordance with its Commercial Arbitration Rules including the 
Optional Rules for Emergency Measures of Protection, and judgment on the 
award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. The party prevailing in arbitration shall be entitled to its 
attorneys’ fees and costs. 

 
      P. Entire Agreement 
 

This Agreement is intended by the parties hereto as the final and exclusive 
expression of the provisions contained in this Agreement, and it supersedes and 
replaces any and all prior contemporaneous agreements and understandings, oral 
or written, between the parties hereto with respect to the operation of the animal 
shelter. This Agreement may be modified or changed only in writing, fully 
executed by the parties hereto. 
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      Q. Governing Law and Partial Invalidity 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  If any 
provision of this Agreement is held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless 
continue in full force.   

 
 
      R. Effect of Waiver 
 

The failure of either party to insist on strict compliance with any of the terms, 
covenants or conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall not be deemed 
a waiver of that term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or 
relinquishment of any right or power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver 
or relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other times. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed as of the day and year first above written. 

  
 
 

_______________________________________ ________________________ 
 City Manager,        Date 
 
 
 ATTEST: ________________________________ ________________________ 
      City Clerk      Date 
 
 
 _______________________________________ ________________________ 
 [NAME]        Date 
 
 
 _______________________________________ ________________________ 
 [NAME]        Date 



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Authorize the Police Department to Add 2 Additional Part -Time Reserve Officer
Positions and 4 Non-Paid Reserve Police Officer Positions

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, Citry Manager
Prepared by: Darren Blevins, (I) Cheif of Police

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

Police Department requests councils permission to hire 2 additional paid reserve police officers and 4 non-
paid reserve police officers.

II.    BACKGROUND:

On January 17, 2013 the council approved 12 reserve police officer positions for the police department and
since that time due to budgetary issues the police departments reserve program has been reduced to 2 part-
time reserve officers.
 

III.   DISCUSSION:

With recent cuts to full time police department personnel, the department's police officers and support staff
are working extra days and longer hours if required.  The department's secretary's are now working as
dispatchers and still having to do their required jobs to help keep the department operating.  The department
has hired and sworn in at the last council meeting 2 new full-time Public Safety Dispatchers that are currently
in training which will take approximately 4 month to complete and Officer Henderson as a reserve police
officer who will be reclassified as a  full-time police officer on July 1, 2019.
 
With the additional reserve officers, it would allow me to cover shifts better and allow full-time officer to take
some much needed time off.  It would also allow the police department the staffing to further
investigate crime and conduct search warrant operations and some specialized enforcement. 

The hourly rate for a Reserve Officer is $11.24 to $14.34 which is a substantial savings over the cost of a full
time officer. The Reserve Officer will supplement the patrol force in the City and work special assignments.
If approved our goal is to have these positions filled as soon as possible.

With the City’s current policy, the Reserve Officers are not compensated until they successfully pass the
Field Training Program, which is 4 months long.
 

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:



Council may elect not to authorize the additional positions.

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

The funding for these positions would come from the department's 101-413-6002 account.  The impact to the
general fund would be approximately  $10,071.04 for fiscal year 2019/2020.  By the time these positions are
hired and they successfully complete the FTO program, there would be 7 months left in the fiscal year. 

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description

No Attachments Available



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Notice of Completion for Close Sidewalk Gaps and Construct ADA Ramps
Project. Project No. PW18-001

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Pete Preciado, Public Works & Utilities Director

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Coalinga City Council accept the project as complete and authorize the City
Engineer to file the Notice of Completion for the project with the County Recorder and notify surety to
exonerate contract bonds.

II.    BACKGROUND:

On December 6, 2018, the City Council awarded a construction contract to R.J. Berry Jr., Inc. in an amount
of $433,359.00, with the City Council directive to have a deductive change order issued after award to stay
within the budgeted amount of $411,108.00.    
 
The project included demolition of existing improvements, sawcutting, installation of sidewalk, curb ramps,
curb and gutter, valley gutter, driveway approach, AC plug, existing lid adjustment, relocation of existing
street signs, and construction surveying.   
 
A notice to Proceed was issued to R.J. Berry Jr., Inc. providing 45 working days to complete construction. 

III.   DISCUSSION:

The project was completed on schedule. The final contract amount is $421,450.12 which is $10,342.12 above
the amount approved by City Council on December 6, 2018. The increase in the final contract amount is due
to additional hot mix asphalt added to the project to lengthen the pavement transition to meet minimum
slopes.
 
The final inspection was done on March 14, 2019, which included preparation of final punch list of items.
The punch list items were completed on May 1, 2019.  The notice of completion, when filed, begins a time
period for which mechanics liens, liens against the contractor, and stop payment notices can be filed against a
public construction project. It is a protection for the City during a construction project. Staff is not aware of
any issues related to this project.

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

None.



V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

The project was fully funded by Measure C funds and ATP funds in that amount of $421,450.12.  There is
no fiscal impact to the General Fund.  

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
Notice_of_Completion_Sidewalk_Gap.pdf Notice of Completion Sidewalk Gap





STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Authorize the Expenditure of Grant Funds for Purchase of Park Equipment
Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Pete Preciado, Public Works & Utilities Director

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the expenditure of grant funds from the Department of Housing and Community Development
(HCD) in the amount not to exceed $108,288.00 on park equipment.

II.    BACKGROUND:

Grant fund applications were submitted to HCD in the amounts of $193,000 to purchase various park
structures and equipment for Sadalwood Park. A similar application in the same amount was also submitted
to HCD for Centennial Park. The total project cost was estimated at $386,000.
 
Unfortunately, HCD only awarded $108,288 total for both parks which is well short of the $386,000 amount
requested.

III.   DISCUSSION:

HCD has approved great flexibility in the expenditure of the grant funds. So long as the items purchased are
park equipment the City is free to revise the scope of the project due to the reduced funding.
 
Staff has requested bids from various suppliers of park equipment and intends to spend roughly $54,000 on
each park (Sandalwood and Centennial). Staff reviewed park equipment costs from various supplies and
comparable equipment. The low bidders are AAA state of play (for the steel frame shelters), Pet drinking
fountains (for the pet friendly ADA compliant drinking fountains), Solomon Electric (for the emergency call
boxes) and Kings River Casting Inc. for all other items listed.
 

Sandlewood Park:
 
5 each park lights
3 each BBQ grill
6 each black trash receptacle
3 each blue recycle receptacle
2 each park table with chairs
2 each ADA park table 8 foot.
2 each pet friendly ADA compliant drinking fountain
2 each square steel frame shelter



1 each emergency call box
 
Centennial Park:
 
6 each park lights
2 each BBQ grill
4 each black trash receptacle
2 each blue recycle receptacle
2 each park table with chairs
2 each ADA park table 8 foot.
2 each pet friendly ADA compliant drinking fountain
2 each square steel frame shelter
1 each emergency call box

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

None. The grant funds need to be expended on park equipment or the funds returned to HCD.

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

None. These are grant funds provided by HCD. No funds from the general fund are used.

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
Park_Project_Description.pdf Park Project Description

Park_Project_Equipment.pdf Park Project Equipment













































STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 3898 - Acceptance of Public Utility Easements related
to the CHRPD Sports Complex Project (Portions of APN Numbers 070-060-82T
& 070-060-88T)

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, City Manager
Prepared by: Pete Preciado, Public Works & Utilities Director

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution No. 3898, accepting the dedications of Public Utility Easements related to the CHRPD
Sports Complex Project (Portions of APN Numbers 070-060-82T & 070-060-88T). 

II.    BACKGROUND:

CHRPD is currently preparing to continue work on the Sports Complex located on Cambridge Avenue.  In
order to do this CHRPD needs to dedicate the Public Utility Easement to the City of Coalinga.

III.   DISCUSSION:

 

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

Do not approve Resolution No. 3898 - staff does not recommend.
 
Amend Resolution No. 3898 and direct staff accordingly.

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund.

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
Resolution_No_3898.pdf Resolution No 3898

Deed_of_Easment_and_Exhibits.pdf Deed of Easement and Exhibits

















STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Police Department Monthly Report
Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Marissa Trejo, Citry Manager
Prepared by: Darren Blevins, (I) Cheif of Police

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

II.    BACKGROUND:

III.   DISCUSSION:

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
April_2019_Monthly_Report.docx Monthly Report For The First Quarter



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COALINGA POLICE DEPARTMENT’S 

MONTHLY REPORT 

April 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Staffing Report: 

� Authorized Strength: 14 sworn/ 15 funded FY 2018/2019 

� # of Personnel Available:   14 

� # of Personnel Modified Duty:  0 

� # of Personnel in field training: 1 

� # of Full Time Vacancies:  1 

 

Our Successes: 
First Quarter 2019 Department Statistics 

 

  Total Incidents                      4738 

       Calls for Service                 3180 

       Officer Initiated Incidents  1558 

       Traffic Stops                       403 

       Other OIA Incidents           1155 

       Bus/Building checks               35 

       Veh/Ped Check                     192 

   

   Total Officer Reports               469 

      Collision                                 21 

      Courtesy                                   6 

      Criminal Collision                    3 

      Felony                                     93 

      Information                           126 

      Infraction                                16 

      Misdemeanor                        195 

      Voided                                      6 

      Unclassified Reports                3 

 

   Total Misdemeanor & Felony Arrests   145 

      Misdemeanor Arrests                          105 

      Felony Arrests                                      40 

 

   Total Citations                      129 

      Admin Cites                          1 

      Infraction                             67 

      Misdemeanor                         8 

      Moving Vehicle                     4 

      Muni Code                             1 

      Parking                                 45 

      Unclassified                           3 

      FIs                                          5     



   

 

 

Coalinga Police Department 

UCR Statistics 

                

  

First 

Quarter 

2018   

First Quarter 

2019   Change 

Homicide 0   0   0.00% 

Rape 2   3   0.00% 

Robbery 3   1   -66.67% 

Aggravated Assault 15   9   -40.00% 

Simple Assault 12   16   25.00% 

Burglary 18   12   -50.00% 

Theft 32   51   37.25% 

Auto Theft 7   9   22.22% 

                

Total 89   101   11.88% 

        
  

 

The City has shown a reduction in Part 1 Crimes in the following areas; Robbery, Aggravated 

Assault and Burglaries.  We have also seen an increase in the area of Simple Assautls, Theft and 

Auto Theft. The men and woman of the police department are working hard to keep crime down 

in the city even with a reduction in staff.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The current DA Filing rates are as follows; 

 
 

 

 

 

The Campus and School Resource officer have been working hard over the first 

quarter of the year. 

 
 

 
 

 

Dispatcher and Officer of the Year: The Police Department wishes to congratulate 

Records Clerk/ Evidence Tech/Dispatcher, Vanesa Gonzales by the Police Department as its 

2018 Dispatchers of the Year. Officer Francisco Ybarra was selected as the 2018 Coalinga Police 

Departments Officer of the Year by his peers. 

 

 

 

 



Animal Control: 

 
The Animal Control Unit responded to 220 calls for service during the first quarter of 2019. Our 

animal control officer completed Euthanasia and Basic Animal Control training course training 

in April.   

During the first quarter of the year, Animal Control took in the following number of dogs per 

month; 

 

First Quarter 2019 

 

Jan 30 dogs    Feb 30 dogs   Mar 17 dogs   Apr 24 dogs 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted: 

 

Darren L. Blevins 

 

Darren Blevins 

(I)Chief of Police 

 

 



STAFF REPORT - CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/PUBLIC FINANCE
AUTHORITY

Subject: Consideration of Resolution No.3896 Approving Public Censure of Council
Member Tanya Stolz

Meeting Date: May 16, 2019
From: Mario Zamora, City Attorney
Prepared by: Mario Zamora, City Attorney

I.    RECOMMENDATION:

There is no staff recommendation. This was requested as a future agenda item by Councilman Adam Adkisson.

II.    BACKGROUND:

Councilman Adam Adkisson has alleged that Councilwoman Tanya Stolz has violated the City of Coalinga-
Council Rules of Procedure, Decorum of City Council Members (“Council Rules”), a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  Councilman Adkisson specifically alleges that Councilwoman Stolz has violated
sections (o), (dd), (ee), and (ff) of the Council Rules and has released information received during closed
session.  Examples provided by Councilman Adkisson are depicted in Exhibit 2 attached hereto.

III.   DISCUSSION:

IV.   ALTERNATIVES:

V.    FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description
RESO#3896_Censure_of_Council_Member_Tanya_Stolz_051619.pdf Resolution No. 3896

Exhibit_1_to_Staff_Report.pdf Exhibit 1:City of Coalinga-Council Rules of Procedure, Decorum of
City Council Members

Exhibit_2_of_Staff_Report.docx Exhibit 2: Staff Report Documents



RESOLUTION NO. 3896 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COALINGA APPROVING  
PUBLIC CENSURE OF COUNCIL MEMBER TANYA STOLZ 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that Council Member Tanya Stolz has, for 
reasons delineated below and during presentation and discussion of the item in an agendized Council 
Meeting on April 25, 2019: 

(i) Engaged in conduct unbecoming  a City Council Member; and 
(ii) Engaged in conduct which has brought embarrassment and discredit to the City 

Council; and  
(iii) The Council wishes it known that this Public Censure does not arise out of any good 

faith disagreement by or with Council Member Stolz on any matter, as good faith 
disagreement and debate are expected, encouraged and welcome; and  

(iv) Specific instances of Council Member Stolz’ misconduct leading to this Public Censure 
has included, and is not limited to: 

1. Violations of the Council Code of Conduct sections (o), (dd), (ee), and (ff) as 
attached hereto; 

2. Revealing information learned in a closed session in violation of the Brown 
Act.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council hereby finds, determines and resolves 
as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby concludes that the facts concerning Council Member Stolz’ 
conduct stated above constitute violations of the City of Coalinga Council Rules of Procedure, particularly 
the following sections: 

Decorum of City Council Members 

1. Council Members shall: 

b. treat each other, Staff, and the Public with dignity, courtesy, and respect; 

o. treat each other and everyone with courtesy and refrain from inappropriate 
behavior and derogatory comments at all times, including but not limited to Council 
Meetings, social media, and public events; 

ee. avoid involvement in personnel issues except during Council closed sessions 
regarding council-appointed staff such as the City Manager and City Attorney, 
including hiring, firing, promoting, disciplining, and other personnel matters; 

dd. treat staff professionally and refrain from publicly criticizing individual employees. 
and 

ff. discuss directly with the City Manager and/or City Attorney any displeasure with a 
department or Staff. 



Section 2. The City Council of the City of Coalinga thus hereby: 

1. Publicly censures Councilmember Stolz for engaging in the foregoing conduct which 
has caused undue disruption and loss of trust and confidence in her by the other City 
Council Members; 

2. Admonishes Councilmember Stolz to cease engaging in such conduct or similar 
conduct in the future, so that the Council may regain trust and confidence in her going 
forward, and thus allowing the Council to perform its duties in the best interests of the 
public; 

3. Removes Councilmember Stolz from all presently assigned committees; 
4. Expels Councilmembers Stolz from all future closed session items on any agenda; and 
5. Requires all future travel expenditures for Councilmember Stolz to be approved by 

Council prior to being expended. 

Section 3. This resolution shall be effective immediately after its passage and approval.  

Section 4. Certification.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution and 
enter it into the book of original resolutions.  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Coalinga this 16th day 
of May, 2019 by the following vote:   
 
AYES: 
 

NOES:  
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
           
                      APPROVED:  
        

     
_______________________________ 

                                                          Ron Lander, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 
Shannon Jensen, City Clerk 
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Decorum of City Council Members 

1. Council Members shall: 

a. put constituents first at all times; 

b. treat each other, Staff, and the Public with dignity, courtesy, and respect; 

c. value all opinions, be tolerant of new and different ideas, and encourage 
creativity and innovation; 

d. follow through on commitments and be accountable to each other; 

e. clarify when items are discussed in confidence and maintain appropriate 
confidentiality; 

f. be attentive to others, limiting interruptions and distractions; 

g. encourage dissent in debate while being mindful not to prolong discourse or 
block consensus; 

h. be candid with each other about ideas and feelings, and resolve conflicts 
directly; 

i. keep comments clear, concise, and on-topic to maximize opportunities for all 
to express themselves; 

j. continuously strive to improve how members work as a team; 

k. place clear and realistic demands on staff resources and time when requesting 
action; 

l. start and end meetings on time, work from an agenda, and be present, 
attentive, and prepared; 

m. present problems in a way that promotes discussion and resolution; 

n. continually work to build trust in each other;  

o. treat each other and everyone with courtesy and refrain from inappropriate 
behavior and derogatory comments at all times, including but not limited to 
Council Meetings, social media, and public events; 

p. be fair, impartial, and unbiased when voting on quasi-judicial actions; 
q. move to require the Mayor to enforce these Rules, and the Mayor shall do 

so upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the Council Members present; 

r. preserve order and decorum during the meeting; 

s. not delay or interrupt the proceedings or the peace of the council, nor disturb 
any council member while speaking, by conversation or otherwise; 

t. prohibit disclosure of confidential communications and authorize public 
censure for failure to comply; 
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u. support the Rules established by the Council; and 

v. abide by these Rules in conducting the business of the City of Coalinga. 

w. value each other’s time; 

x. attempt to build consensus on an item through an opportunity for dialogue; 
but when this is not possible, the majority vote shall prevail and the majority 
shall show respect for the opinion of the minority; 

y. have the right to dissent from, protest, or comment upon any action of the 
Council; 

z. respect each other’s opportunity to speak and, if necessary, agree to 
disagree; 

aa. avoid offensive negative comments and shall practice civility and decorum 
during discussions and debate; and 

bb. assist the Mayor’s exercise of the affirmative duty to maintain order. 

cc. speak to the City Manager directly on issues and concerns but not give 
individual direction; 

dd. treat staff professionally and refrain from publicly criticizing individual 
employees; 

ee. avoid involvement in personnel issues except during Council closed 
sessions regarding council-appointed staff such as the City Manager and 
City Attorney, including hiring, firing, promoting, disciplining, and other 
personnel matters; 

ff. discuss directly with the City Manager and/or City Attorney any displeasure 
with a department or Staff; and 

gg. request answers to questions on agenda items from the City Manager, City 
Attorney, City Clerk, City Treasurer, Department Directors, or Division 
Managers prior to the meeting whenever possible. 

Decorum of City Staff 

1. City Staff shall: 

a. prepare well-written staff reports and provide accompanying documents on all 
agenda items in accordance with the agenda format and preparation schedule; 

b. be available for questions from Council Members in accordance with the Brown 
Act prior to and during meetings; 

c. respond to questions from the public during meetings only when requested to 
do so by Council Members or the City Manager; 

d. refrain from arguing with the Public or Council Members; and 

e. switch any electronic equipment such as pagers and cellular telephones to 
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silent, airplane mode or off during Council meetings. 
f. remain objective on issues and should not be advocates for issues unless so 

directed by the City Manager. 
 
Decorum of the Public 

1. Members of the public attending Council meetings shall observe the same rules 
and decorum applicable to the Council Members and staff as noted above. 

2. Members of the public attending Council meetings shall not bring food items into 
the Council Chambers.  Water is okay so long as the container it is in has a closed 
top. 

3. No person shall engage in conduct that is intended to or is likely to provoke violent 
or riotous behavior, nor shall any person engage in conduct that disturbs the 
orderly conduct of the Council meeting.  Examples of disorderly conduct include, 
but are not limited to, feet-stamping, whistling, yelling or shouting, organized silent 
demonstrations, physically threatening conduct, name calling, cursing, and similar 
demonstrations. 

4. The Mayor shall request that a person who is breaching the rules of decorum cease 
the conduct.  If the person does not cease the conduct immediately, the Mayor 
may declare that person to be in disorder as a result of their conduct and order the 
person to leave the Council meeting. The Coalinga Police Department shall assist 
the Mayor in enforcing the rules of decorum, including removing disorderly persons 
upon order of the Mayor. 

5. Lobbyists shall identify themselves and the client(s), business, or organization they 
represent before speaking to the Council. 

Addressing the Council 

1.  Purpose of Citizen Comments.  During City Council meetings, the City provides 
opportunities for the public to address the Council as a whole in order to listen to 
the public’s opinions regarding unagendized matters within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the City 

a. Citizen comments should not be addressed to individual Council Members nor 
to City Officials, but rather to the Council as a whole regarding city business. 

b. While members of the public may speak their opinions on City business, 
personal attacks on Council Members and City Officials, use of swear words, 
and signs or displays of disrespect for individuals are discouraged as they 
impede good communication with the Council. 

c. Consistent with the Brown Act, the public comment periods on the agenda are 
not intended to be “Question and Answer” periods or conversations with the 
Council and City Officials. The limited circumstances under which members 
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may respond to public comments as set out in Rule 8.D.2. 

d. Members of the public with questions concerning Consent Calendar items may 
contact the Staff person who provided the report prior to the meeting to reduce 
the need for discussion of Consent Calendar items and to better respond to the 
public’s questions. 

e. During Discussion items, the Mayor may stop a member of the public whose 
comments are not confined to the agendized item being heard.  

 
2. Speaker time limits.  In the interest of facilitating the Council’s conduct of City 

business, the following time limits apply to members of the public (speakers) who 
wish to address the council during the meeting. 
a. Matters not on the agenda. Three minutes per speaker. 

b. Consent Calendar items. The Consent Calendar is considered a single item, 
and speakers are therefore subject to the three-minute time limit for the entire 
Consent Calendar.  Consent Calendar items can be pulled at a Council 
Member’s request and will be considered individually, with up to three minutes 
of public comment per speaker. 

c. Discussion Calendar items. Three minutes per speaker. 

d. Time limits per meeting.  

(i) Each speaker shall limit his/her remarks to the specified time allotment. 

(ii) The Mayor shall consistently utilize the timing system. 

(iii) In the further interest of time, speakers may be asked to limit their 
comments to new materials and not repeat what a prior speaker said. 
Organized groups may choose a single spokesperson who may speak 
for the group, but with no increase in time. 

(iv) Speakers shall not concede any part of their allotted time to another 
speaker. 

(v) The Mayor, with consensus of Council, may further limit, or expand, the 
time allotted for public comments per speaker or in total for the orderly 
conduct of the meeting; such limits shall be fairly applied. 

Electronic Devices 

1. Members of the public shall turn their electronic devices that are capable of 
emitting sound – including cellular telephones, personal data devices, pagers, 
digital tablets, laptop computers, etc. – to the off or silent mode during Council 
meetings. 

2. Cameras. Cameras and recording equipment may be used during Council 
meetings only if: 
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a. the devices are silent during use; and 

b. the devices are used in a manner and at locations that do not impede 
walkways or others views of the meeting or disrupt the conduct of the meeting. 

Location of Speaker 

1. Members of the public shall not approach the dais without the express consent of 
the Mayor. 

2. Members of the public wishing to address the Council must approach the podium 
when recognized by the Mayor and speak only from the podium. 

3. Members of the public should, but are not required, to state their name and 
address before beginning comments. 

 
MEETING TYPES AND SCHEDULES 

 
Regular Meetings 

1. The Council shall meet the first and third Thursday of each month generally 
beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 155 W. Durian Ave, 
Coalinga, California, except as otherwise provided in the annually adopted 
meeting schedule or as otherwise revised by the Council.  

2. Whenever possible, Special Workshops shall take place in the Council 
Chambers. 

Adjourned Meetings 

As permitted by law, the Council may adjourn any Regular, adjourned Regular, 
Special, or adjourned Special meeting to a time and place specified in the motion of 
adjournment. 

Any Regular, Adjourned Regular, Special, or Adjourned Special Meeting of the 
Council may be adjourned to a time and place specified in the order of the 
adjournment.  Less than a quorum may so adjourn from time to time.  If all the 
members of the Council are absent from a Regular or Adjourned Regular Meeting, 
the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated 
time and place and shall cause a written notice of the adjournment to be delivered 
personally or by mail to each member of the Council, the City Attorney, and to each 
local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station requesting 
notice in writing. Such notice shall be delivered personally or by mail at least twenty-
four (24) hours before the time of such meeting as set forth in the notice.  A copy of 
the order or notice of an adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on or near the 
door of the place where the Regular, Adjourned Regular, Special, Adjourned Special 
Meeting was held within twenty-four (24) hours after the time of the adjournment.  
When a Regular or Adjourned Regular Meeting is adjourned as provided in this 
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section, the resulting Adjourned Regular Meeting shall be a Regular Meeting for all 
purposes. When an order of adjournment of any meeting fails to state the hour at 
which the Adjourned Meeting is held, it shall be held at the hour specified for Regular 
Meetings by ordinance, resolution, law, or other rules.  

Special Meetings 

A Special Meeting of the City Council may be called at any time by the Mayor, Mayor 
Pro-Tem, or by a majority of the members of the Council by delivering personally or 
by mail a written notice to each member of the Council, the City Attorney, and to 
each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station requesting 
notice in writing.  Such notice shall be delivered personally or by mail at least twenty-
four (24) hours before the time of such meeting as set forth in the notice.  The call 
and notice shall set forth the time and place of the Special Meeting and the business 
to be transacted.  No other business shall be considered at such meeting.  Such 
written notice may be dispensed with as to any member who, at or prior to the time 
the meeting convenes, files with the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk, a written waiver 
of the notice.  Such waiver may be given by telephone or by telegram.  Such written 
notice may also be dispensed with as to any member who is actually present at the 
meeting as the time it convenes.  

Emergency Meetings 

1. In the case of an emergency situation involving matters upon which prompt 
action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public 
facilities, the legislative body may hold an Emergency Meeting without 
complying with either the 72-hour or 24-hour notice and posting requirements 
for Regular and Special Meetings, but shall otherwise comply with the Brown 
Act procedures generally stated below. 

2. Each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station that 
has requested notice of Special Meetings pursuant to the Brown Act, shall be 
notified by the Mayor of the legislative body, or designee thereof, at least one 
hour prior to the Emergency Meeting, or in the case of a dire emergency, at or 
near the time that the Mayor or designee notifies the Council of the Emergency 
Meeting. 

3. This notice shall be given by telephone call to the numbers provided in the most 
recent request for notification. 

4. In the event that telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirements 
of this section shall be deemed waived, and the legislative body, or designee of 
the legislative body, shall notify those newspapers, radio stations, or television 
stations of the Emergency Meeting, the purpose of the meeting, and any action 
taken at the meeting as soon after the meeting as possible. 
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5. During an Emergency Meeting, the legislative body may meet in closed session 
pursuant to the Brown Act if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the members 
present, being not less than four votes of the Council. 

6. All Special Meeting requirements in the Brown Act shall be applicable to an 
Emergency Meeting, with the exception of the 24-hour notice and posting 
requirement. 

7. The minutes of an Emergency Meeting; a list of persons who the Mayor or 
designee of the Council, notified or attempted to notify; a copy of the roll call vote; 
and any actions taken at the meeting, shall be posted for a minimum of ten days 
in a public place as soon after the meeting as possible. 

Closed Sessions 

1. Closed Sessions generally shall be conducted on the first and third Thursday of 
every month or during Special Meetings held immediately prior to Regular 
Meetings. 

2. In accordance with the Brown Act, the public may speak regarding any Closed 
Session item prior to the Closed Session. 

3. All Closed Session information, verbal or written, is privileged and confidential and 
shall not be shared with any person not at the Closed Session. Any Council 
Member sharing information in violation of this rule may be subject to censure by 
the Council consistent with the Council’s confidentiality policy then in effect. 

4. The City Attorney shall report out in open session any reportable actions that were 
taken by Council and the vote on such actions in accordance with the Brown Act. 

Public Hearings 

1. The city clerk shall set Public Hearing dates on all matters that require a notice and 
Public Hearing before the Council, such as matters received from the planning 
division and appeals to the Council. 

2. Public Hearings will not be withdrawn or continued without the full knowledge and 
concurrence of the Council Members within whose districts/jurisdiction the issue 
resides. 

3. The Council may refuse to grant a continuance of any Public Hearing unless there 
is a valid legal reason why the Public Hearing must be continued. 

4. Continuances. 

a. Any person (applicant, appellant, or designated representative) scheduled for 
a Public Hearing before the Council: 

(i) may obtain one continuance for a period not to exceed the second 
Regular Meeting after the original scheduled Public Hearing date, as 
a matter of right, without personally appearing before the Council on 
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the scheduled hearing date, provided a written request for the 
continuance must be delivered to the City Clerk by noon on the day 
prior to the scheduled Public Hearing.  Any person, who has once 
obtained a continuance by any procedure, may not obtain a 
subsequent continuance by notifying the City Clerk as provided in this 
Rule 6.F.a(i). 

(ii) who wants to obtain a continuance of the Public Hearing beyond the 
second Regular Meeting after the original scheduled Public Hearing 
date, or has not notified the City Clerk as provided in Rule 6.F.4.a(i), 
may obtain a continuance only by appearing before the Council at the 
time the original Public Hearing is scheduled and requesting a 
continuance. This continuance is not a matter of right and will not be 
granted unless the Council is satisfied that good cause exists for the 
continuance and that a substantial number of people will not be 
inconvenienced by such continuance. 

(iii) who has once obtained a continuance of a Public Hearing either by 
notice to the City Clerk per Rule 6.F.4.a(i) or by personal appearance 
per Rule 6.F.4.a(ii), may obtain a further continuance only by 
appearing before the Council at the scheduled Public Hearing and 
satisfying the Council that extraordinary circumstances exist that 
would justify this second continuance. 

(iv) who has twice obtained a continuance of a Public Hearing, may obtain 
an additional continuance only by appearing before the Council at the 
scheduled hearing and satisfying the Council that a miscarriage of 
justice would result from the refusal of the Council to grant a 
continuance. 

b. City Staff may request and upon Council’s approval obtain a continuance based 
on the need of the originating department or on behalf of a Council Member.  
Department staff may request, via the City Clerk, as many continuances as 
needed to complete and ready the project or appeal for the Public Hearing 
process; however, Staff may not serve as a requestor on behalf of an applicant 
or appellant. 

c. Any organized group of residents or neighborhood associations, not recognized 
as an applicant or appellant, may contact their Council Member and request a 
continuance as needed to complete and ready the project or appeal for the 
hearing process. The Council Member, in his or her sole discretion, may 
request the Council approve the continuance for good cause. 

d. At the meeting when the Public Hearing is scheduled, but before the hearing 
starts, any Council Member may request the Council approve a continuance. 

e. Disputes regarding the length of a continuance will be decided by the Council 
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at the scheduled hearing if City Staff or the City Clerk cannot obtain mutual 
agreement between the parties beforehand. 

     

MEETING AGENDAS 
 

Requirements for Agenda Item Submission 

1. The City Manager and City Clerk shall develop the agenda for Council meetings in 
consultation with the Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem. 

2. Council Members may submit items for inclusion on a future agenda by submitting 
the request via email within ten (10) days of the next finalized agenda via email or 
written notice.  

3. Council Members may submit staff reports or descriptions of oral reports to the City 
Clerk and or the City Manager for placement on the agenda. 

4. Department directors, subject to the discretion of the City Manager, may submit 
staff reports or descriptions of oral reports to the City Clerk for placement on the 
agenda. 

5. Outside agencies may submit agenda items in accordance with the following: 

a. Items from outside agencies must be sponsored for agenda placement by 
Council Members or department Staff; and 

b. All agenda items must be submitted in accordance with the agenda packet 
submission and preparation requirements. 

Declaration of Policy 

1. No ordinance, resolution, motion, or item of business shall be introduced or acted 
upon at a meeting of a legislative body of the City without it appearing on a duly 
noticed and posted agenda in accordance with the Brown Act. Exceptions to this 
rule are limited to those provided by state law. 

2. No ordinance, resolution, motion, or item of business will be considered that: 

a. does not affect the conduct of the business of the City of Coalinga or its powers 
or duties as a municipal corporation, or 

b. supports or disapproves of any legislation or action 

(i) of the State of California; 

(ii) of the Congress of the United States; or 

(iii) before any officer or agency of the state or nation, 

unless the proposed legislation or action, if adopted, will affect the conduct of 
the municipal business or the powers or duties of the City of Coalinga or its 
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officers or employees. 
c. Rule 7.B.2 may be invoked only before Public Comment or council deliberation 

on the matter and by three affirmative votes on the question: “Shall the Council 
consider this matter?” 

Procedures for Submission of Reports 

1. A written staff report should be prepared and submitted for agenda review in 
accordance with the agenda review procedure. 

2. Staff reports shall include a section reflecting review by the City Attorney as 
appropriate.  

3.  “Continued” items do not require a new staff report if there are no changes other 
than the agenda date.  If there is any other change, a new staff report meeting all 
applicable requirements must be submitted. 

4. Staff reports shall the name of the staff member or department head putting the 
item on the agenda. 

5. Staff reports shall include any fiscal information as it relates to the city budget or 
spending or saving money.  

Written Communications from the City and the Public 

1. The City Clerk, City Manager, and or City Attorney shall manage communications 
to Council Members regarding meeting topics to ensure compliance with the Brown 
Act. 

a. Except for records exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records 
Act and otherwise by law, agendas or any other writings distributed to all or a 
majority of the Council Members for discussion or consideration at a Public 
Meeting are disclosable to the public, and shall be made available upon request 
without delay. 

b. Materials distributed to the Council Members during the meeting shall be 
available for viewing by the public during the meeting if the materials were 
prepared by the City or a Council Member, or at the conclusion of the meeting 
if prepared by another person. 

2. Interested parties or their authorized representatives may address the Council by 
written communications regarding agenda items. 

a. Written communications received by the City Clerk prior to posting of the agenda 
will be included in the agenda packet material.  Written communications 
received by the City Clerk after that deadline will be delivered to the Council 
Members at the Council Meeting if related to an item on the meeting agenda.  

b. Documents (10 copies recommended) that members of the public submit to the 
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City Council at the meeting shall be given directly to the City Clerk for distribution 
and shall not be given directly to the Council. The documents will be made 
available to the public. 

Preparation of the Agenda Packet 

1. No later than 6:00 p.m. on the Monday prior to each regularly scheduled meeting, 
the City Clerk shall finalize the agenda packet. 

2. Agenda Packet Contents.  

a.  The agenda packet shall include the agenda, the staff reports, draft resolutions 
and ordinances, contract, and other attachments.  Items noted as “To Be 
Delivered” on the agenda will be delivered prior to the start of the Council 
Meeting and published to the City’s website no later than the following day.  No 
item shall be required to be considered by the Council if the applicable written 
material is not delivered to the Council before the agenda item is discussed and 
made available to the public at the same time.  

b. Corrections or supplements to a staff report or other written materials already 
included in the agenda packet may be delivered separately.   

c. All agreements on the agenda shall be available for review by the Council and 
the Public prior to the meeting, or at the meeting location during the meeting, 
unless determined otherwise by the City Attorney.  

Distribution of the Packet 

1. The City Clerk shall distribute the agenda packet to the Council Members and 
persons requesting copies of the agenda packet no later than Monday at 6:00 
p.m. prior to the regularly scheduled meeting. 

2. Paper or electronic copies of the agenda packet shall be available for the news 
media and other such organizations, agencies, institutions, or persons who so 
subscribe. 

Posting of Agenda 

1. The City Clerk shall post the agenda of each Regular or adjourned Regular 
Meetings of the legislative body at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in a 
location that is freely accessible to members of the public as required by the Brown 
Act. 

2. The City Clerk shall maintain an affidavit indicating the location, date, and time of 
posting each agenda. 

3. Agendas will generally be published to the City’s website by the end of business 
on the Monday before Regular Meetings. 
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4. Staff reports including attachments, exhibits, and agreements will generally be 
published to the City’s website by end of business on the Monday before Regular 
Meetings. 

5. If technical difficulties occur, the agenda and reports will be published on the City’s 
website as soon as those difficulties are resolved. 

Failure to Meet Agenda Deadlines 

1. The City Clerk shall not, without the consent of the City Manager or City Attorney, 
accept any agenda item or revised agenda item after the deadlines established 
and noted in these Rules. 

Exceptions to the Agenda Requirement 

1. Matters not included on the published agenda may be discussed and acted upon 
by the legislative body only in the following situations: 

a. at a meeting during which a majority of the Council Members determine in open 
session that the matter in question constitutes an “emergency"; or 

b. Upon a determination by two-thirds of the Council Members, or if less than two-
thirds are present by unanimous vote of the Council Members present, that: 

(i) there is a need to take immediate action; and 

(ii) the need for action came to the attention of the City after the agenda 
had been posted; or 

c. the item was posted for a prior meeting occurring not more than five calendar 
days prior to the date action is taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the 
item was continued to the meeting at which action is being taken. 

Types of Agenda Items 

1. Closed Sessions – confidential discussions with the legislative body as permitted 
by the Brown Act. 

2. Ceremonial Matters – the presentation and receipt of ceremonial resolutions and 
celebrations not requiring formal legislative body action. 

3. Administrative Matters – consent items making clerical corrections to previous 
legislative documents and to ensure accurate legislative history. 

4. Consent Calendar – considered one item, consisting of matters routine in nature 
and not likely to be subject to debate or inquiry by the Council Members or the 
public; typically adopted in one motion. 

5. Public Hearings – duly noticed hearings as mandated by local, state, or federal 
law, providing an opportunity for public review and comment of a proposed action 
by the Council. 
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6. New Business – non-routine items requiring an oral presentation and discussion 
before action is taken. 

7. Information Items – items when staff is required by federal or state law or city code 
to inform Council of an issue when authority has been delegated to a person, 
position, board, or commission. 

8. Public Comment – oral communications from the public regarding matters not on 
the agenda but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City. 

9. City Council Reports and Requests: 

a. Brief oral or written reports summarizing meeting or conference attendance at 
City expense, as required by AB 12349; 

b. Requests that City Manager or Staff report on various issues; 

c. Requests to place items on a future council meeting agenda must be approved 
(consensus by Council must be received); 

d. Reports on district and citywide activities or news. 

Ordinances and Non-Binding Resolutions 

1. Ordinances on the agenda may be passed for publication or adopted in 
accordance with established procedures. 

2. Ordinance changes during the review and adoption process. 

a. The text of an ordinance receiving the necessary votes to bring the matter to 
Council shall be the text that is included in the published agenda as pass-for-
publication. 

b. The text of an ordinance passed for publication shall be the text that is included 
in the published agenda for the meeting at which the adoption of the ordinance 
is discussed. 

c. Notwithstanding subsections a, b, and c, typographical and clerical errors may 
be corrected at any time during the ordinance review and adoption process. 

d. If a Staff Member intends to make a substantive (i.e., anything not 
typographical or clerical) change to an ordinance after it is included in a 
published agenda, at or before the time the ordinance adoption item is called 
on the agenda the Staff Member shall distribute sufficient written copies of the 
proposed change so that all other members, the Council Members, relevant 
City staff, and the public audience have copies. 

e. Consideration of a proposed substantive change from the ordinance text that 
was included in the published agenda shall be continued until the next regular 
council meeting unless another meeting date is approved by Council. 
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f. If the Council’s motion to adopt an ordinance includes a change to the 
ordinance text from that published in the agenda, prior to the vote the City 
Attorney or City Clerk shall repeat verbatim the proposed change or otherwise 
indicate the change is reflected in the circulated written copy of the change. 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

Call to Order – Mayor 

1. The Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence the Mayor Pro-Tem, shall take the chair at 
the hour appointed for the meeting and shall immediately call the meeting of the 
Council to order. 

2. In the absence of the Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem, the City Clerk shall call the 
meeting to order and a Mayor Pro-Tempore shall be appointed from the members 
present. 

3. Upon the arrival of the Mayor, the Mayor Pro-Tem or Mayor Pro-Tempore shall 
immediately relinquish the chair at the conclusion of the business then before the 
Council. 

Roll Call / Attendance 

1. A majority of the members of the Council then in office and present within the City 
limits of Coalinga shall constitute a quorum. 

2. Before the Council proceeds with the business before it, the City Clerk shall call 
the role and note the Council Members present for the minutes. The late arrival 
of Council Members shall be entered into the minutes. 

3. A Council Member shall be considered present at a meeting if the member either 
is physically in the Council Chambers or is participating in the meeting through 
teleconference in accordance with the Brown Act.  Meeting attendance of Council 
Members through teleconference will be permitted on a case-by-case basis, 
determined by the majority of Council. 

4. Council Members attending a council meeting through a teleconference are 
counted when determining a quorum unless they are not within the City limits of 
Coalinga. 

5. Council Members must be physically present at the Council Chamber dais or 
teleconference location to vote.  Proxy or absentee voting is not permitted. 

Order of Discussion 

The order of business is typically carried out as listed on the agenda or as set out 
below; however, the Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem and or City Manager may request the 
items, unless Council Members object. 
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Council Members may request items be reordered by motion. 

1. Public Comment will be held at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. 

2. Consent Calendar items removed for discussion. 

a. Council Members or the City Manager may request that an item be removed 
from the Consent Calendar for separate consideration. 

b. Members of the Public wishing to have an item removed from the Consent 
Calendar for separate consideration may make a request to a Council Member 
or the City Manager prior to the beginning of council meeting.  

c. All matters remaining on the Consent Calendar shall be approved by a single 
action, such single action to have the legal effect of individual action on each 
matter. 

d. If Consent Calendar items are removed, they shall be discussed immediately 
and voted on individually after adoption of the balance of the Consent 
Calendar. 

3. Public Hearings. 

a. The order of Public Hearings will generally be as follows: 

(i) Staff comments, information, and reports, followed by Council Member 
questions. 

(ii) proponent, if applicable, speaks, followed by Council Member questions. 

(iii) opponent, if applicable, speaks, followed by Council Member questions. 

(iv) if the Public Hearing is on an appeal that does not require Council de 
novo review, then the appellant (opponent) speaks before the applicant 
(proponent) in accordance with the allotted time. 

(v) Public Comments. 

(vi) if the Public Hearing is a de novo review appeal, the applicant speaks in 
rebuttal, but if not a de novo review appeal, the appellant speaks in 
rebuttal. 

(vii) closure of Public Comment. 
(viii) further Council Member discussion. 
(ix) motion to close Public Hearing and take action.  See Rule 6.F regarding 

continuances. 
b. The Mayor may direct speakers to avoid repetition in order to permit maximum 

information to be provided the Council within the time allotted to the hearing. 

4. New Business. 
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a. The order of discussion after introduction of an item by the Mayor will 
generally be as follows: 

(i) Staff comments, information, and reports, followed by questions from the 
Council Members. 

(ii) Public Comments and information, followed by questions from the 
Council Members. 

(iii) Council Member discussion, motion, and action. 

b. Once the item is placed before the Council for discussion, motion, or action, 
no member of Staff or the Public shall be allowed to address the Council 
without the consent of the Mayor or Council Members. 

Oral Communications from the Audience 

1. As required by the Brown Act, a portion of each Council Meeting agenda will 
provide an opportunity for members of the Public to address the Council on 
any agendized item, including Closed Session and Consent calendar items. 
Regular Meeting agendas also will provide for Public Comment on any 
unagendized matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City. 

2. In response to Public Comment on non-agendized items, the Council 
Members may individually: 

a. briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by members of 
the Public; 

b. ask questions for clarification; 

c. provide a reference to Staff or other resources for factual information or 
response; 

d. request Staff, with consensus of Council,  to report to the Council at a 
subsequent meeting; and 

e. request Staff, with consensus of Council, to place a matter of business on 
a future agenda as needed. 

Quorum Call 

1. During the course of the meeting, should the presiding officer note a quorum 
is lacking, the mayor shall call this fact to the attention of the City Clerk. 

2. The Mayor then shall issue a quorum call. If a quorum has not been restored 
within two minutes of a quorum call, the Mayor may declare a recess for a 
reasonable period of time in order to reestablish a quorum. 

3. If no quorum is reestablished within a reasonable time, the Mayor shall 
adjourn the meeting. 
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Obtaining the Floor 

1. Any Council Member wishing to speak must first obtain the floor by being 
recognized by the Mayor. The Mayor shall recognize any Council Member 
who seeks the floor when appropriately entitled to do so. 

2. With the concurrence of the Mayor, a Council Member holding the floor may 
address a question to another Council Member and that Council Member 
may respond while the floor is still held by the member asking the question. 
A Council Member may opt not to answer a question while another member 
has the floor. 

Motions 

1. Robert’s Rules of Order, a manual of parliamentary procedure shall be used 
for the management of motions. 
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Adkisson alleges violation of Council Rules of Procedure, Decorum of City Council Members, Section o: 

“Council Members shall: … (o) treat each other and everyone with courtesy and refrain from inappropriate behavior and 

derogatory comments at all times, including but not limited to Council Meetings, social media, and public events.” 

Exhibit 1: 
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Exhibit 2: 

 

Exhibit 3: 

 

Exhibit 4: 
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Exhibit 5: 

  

Exhibit 6: 

 

Exhibit 7: 

  

Exhibit 8: 
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Exhibit 9: 

 

Exhibit 10: 
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Adkisson alleges violation of Council Rules of Procedure, Decorum of City Council Members, Section dd: 

“Council Members shall: … (dd) treat staff professionally and refrain from publicly criticizing individual employees” 

Exhibit 1: 
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Exhibit 2: 

 

Exhibit 3: 

 

Exhibit 4: 
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Exhibit 5: 

  

Exhibit 6: 

 

Exhibit 7: 
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Adkisson alleges violation of Council Rules of Procedure, Decorum of City Council Members, Section ee: 

“Council Members shall: … (ee) avoid involvement in personnel issues except during Council closed sessions regarding 

council-appointed staff such as City Manager and City Attorney, including hiring, firing, promoting, disciplining, and 

other personnel matters.” 

Exhibit 1: 
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Exhibit 2: 

  

 

 

Exhibit 3: 
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Adkisson alleges violation of Council Rules of Procedure, Decorum of City Council Members, Section ff: 

“Council Members shall: … (ff) discuss directly with the City Manager and/or City Attorney any displeasure with a 

department or Staff.” 

Exhibit 1: 
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Exhibit 2: 

 

Exhibit 3: 

 

Exhibit 4: 
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Exhibit 5: 
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Adkisson alleges that Ms. Stolz has disclosed information received during closed session: 

Exhibit 1: 

 


	Meeting Agenda
	Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Audited Financial Statements by the City Auditor
	Council Consideration of Conditional Use Permit Application 19-02 and Further Adopting Resolution No. 3897 with Conditions, to Reestablish the Legal Non-Conforming Status of the Structure Located at 358 E. Polk Street
	Check Register: 03/01/2019 - 03/31/2019
	Approval of Resolution No. 3772-B Adding Locations Approved for the Operation of Food Truck Vendors
	Authorize City Manager to Approve the Proposal Received from MuniTemps Municipal Staffing Solutions for Accounting Services Related to the Preparation of Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Audit
	Receive Report and Approve Commercial Cannabis Regulatory Permit for PEP Partners LLC
	Council Consideration and Certification of an Environmental Determination for the Phelps Ave Reconstruction Project and Further Direct Staff to File a Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk’s Office in Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
	Approve Contract for Gimme Love to Take Over Animal Control and Shelter Services for the City of Coalinga
	Authorize the Police Department to Add 2 Additional Part -Time Reserve Officer Positions and 4 Non-Paid Reserve Police Officer Positions
	Notice of Completion for Close Sidewalk Gaps and Construct ADA Ramps Project. Project No. PW18-001
	Authorize the Expenditure of Grant Funds for Purchase of Park Equipment
	Adoption of Resolution No. 3898 - Acceptance of Public Utility Easements related to the CHRPD Sports Complex Project (Portions of APN Numbers 070-060-82T & 070-060-88T)
	Police Department Monthly Report
	Consideration of Resolution No.3896 Approving Public Censure of Council Member Tanya Stolz

